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vIision

When eensumers and businesses dhink of a Woerld Class fnanclal serviees provides

they choess Severaig.

mIssion

Severeign Is a Werld Class fnanclal serviees provider commited to helping our
sueeead by undersanding and anteipating dhelr individual fnancial
previding eustemized solutons, resuldng In caeh custemer heving six er
services with Severeign.

company profile

Ine.. (“Severeign™) (NYSE: SOV), headquartered in Philadelphia,
Pennsylvanta, a $40 billion finandel insttuden, is the parent company of Sovereign Bank.
Severelgn has 525 eemmunity banking offices, ebeut 1,000 ATMs and 8,000 team
members in Connectiaut, Massachusetrs, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New Yorik,
Pennsylvania and Rhede lsand. Seversign Bank is one of the top 25 largest banking
instiadons in the United Setes.

FORWARD—LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain portions of this Annual Report contain various forward-looking statements. Please refer to page | of the
Form 10-K for a discussion of the various factors that could adversely affect the future results — causing them to
differ materially from those expressed herein.

NoN-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

This document contains financial information determined by methods other than in accordance with U.S. Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP"). Sovereign's management uses the non-GAAP measures of Operating
Earnings and Cash Earnings, which are included and defined herein, in their analysis of the company's performance.
Operating Earnings are net income plus the tax-effected add-back of non-operating items such as merger-related.
integration and restructuring charges. Cash Earnings are Operating Earnings plus the tax-effected add-back of
intangible amortization and ESOP and stock option expenses. Since these items and their impact on Sovereign's
performance are difficult to predict, management believes presentations of financial measures excluding the impact of

these items provides useful supplemental information in evaluating the operating results of Sovereign's core businesses.

These measures should not be viewed as a substitute for net income determined in accordance with GAAP, nor are
they necessarily comparable to non-GAAP performance measures which may be presented by other companies.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

[ am pleased to report that Sovereign continued to build on its strong foundation in
2002 with solid earnings and significant capital growth. We exceeded our publicly
stated goals for financial performance and strengthened our balance sheet considerably.
Our 2002 financial highlights include the following:

> Cash earnings per diluted share of $1.52 versus our guidance of $1.45 to $1.50.

> Operating earnings per diluted share of $1.28 up 14% compared to $1.12 in 2001.
Our guidance for 2002 operating earnings was $1.25 to $1.30, but it did not
include a $.03 charge for expensing of stock options, which we chose to adopt
in the third quarter and expense for the full year of 2002. Accordingly, we
exceeded the top end of cur earnings guidance to Wall Street by $.01 and beat
consensus analysts’ estimates for operating earnings by $.02 per diluted share.

* Net income was $1.23 per diluted share and included merger-related
charges of $.05 for the Main Street Bancorp acquisition.

° We exceeded our Tier | leverage (capital) goal for the holding company of 5.00%.
 Tangible common equity grew $537 million, with no equity offerings.

> Core deposits increased by $3.7 billion or 23%.

> Commercial and consumer banking fees increased by 25% and 14%, respectively.

* In 2002, SOV stock increased by 15% and book value per share rose 19%.
Sovereign’s stock price had increased by approximately 50 % during 2001.

In addition to superior financial performance and above average stock appreciation,
Sovereign was rewarded and recognized in other ways during 2002 and into early 2003:

&searnings per share

o Early in 2002, Standard and Poor’s upgraded Sovereign’s credit rating back to
were $ .28 up ‘investment grade,’ the same rating as before the New England acquisition.

‘ | > Fortune Magazine named Sovereign as one of the Top 10 most admired
14% compared to es i nits ficat
° P companies in the United States in its industry classification for both 2002 & 2003.
The ranking was based on financial soundness, employee talent, use of corporate
assets, long-term investment value, social responsibility, quality of products and
services, innovation and quality of management.

e Throughout 2002, Sovereign was the only ‘regional’ or ‘super-regional’ banking
institution with a substantial presence in the tri-state Philadelphia region to
receive Bauer Financial’s highest rating for financial soundness.

» Standard and Poor's Equity Research recently upgraded Sovereign to its highest
rating, five stars, based on their independent assessment of Sovereign.

* In the January 2003 edition, Forbes Magazine placed Sovereign on the Platinum
400 list of companies. This prestigious list identifies companies who have
exhibited superior financial performance over certain time periods.

° In March of 2003, Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and Sovereign Bank received
single-notch credit rating upgrades from Moody’s Investment Service.

In many ways, 2002 was a gratifying year for Sovereign, and we are off to a good
start in 2003 despite a difficult economic environment. While we are proud of our
past performance, we believe Sovereign’s best years are ahead. We are absolutely
focused on becoming a high performance company and a great company to work for.
The following is a discussion of our business strategy and philosophy which, in our
opinion, become the elements of superior execution:

Il | Sovereign Bancorp



BUILDING AND MAINTAINING A STRONG
AND COHESIVE TEAM

° VWe invest heavily in continuous efforts to attract, retain and develop the best,
. . . . Xy
brightest, most driven and dedicated team members who are passionate about ~TRENGTHS
achieving our company’s vision, mission and goals and their own individual * Absolute clarity about vision,

. mission, values and strate
business and developmental goals. &

. . . L _ Strong and cohesive leadership
° We are convinced that managing talent effectively leads to superior financial team with extensive team

performance and above average growth. member development programs

Alignment of goals with
reward systems and creation
of shareholder value

> We have found that our ‘super-star’ rated team members often outperform
average team members by up to 50%.

° We evaluate leaders for strong business skills, cutstanding human skills and a

Exceptional franchise in terms of
commitment and passion for excellence. market share and demographics

Large, stable and low-cost

e Our reward systems are based on achievements and leadership qualities. _
core deposit base

o All our leaders have customized personal development plans.
P P P * Highly diversified and granular

¢ VWe have a senior level Managing Director of Organizational Development and a loan portfolio
Chief Learning Officer committed to assisting with leadership development.

Accelerating fee-based revenues
and cross-selling metrics

Very strong internal generation

EMBRACING A CULTURE THAT BREEDS GREAT COMPANIES

of equity
° We believe that there must be absolute clarity about the company’s vision, _
issi i VYEAKNESSES
mission, values and strategy, and that they need to be communicated and v
discussed regularly with all team members. * Holding company debt is

. . ) a drag on performance
° We continue to build a culture that is based upon mutual trust, respect and candor.

Holding company capital is
> We always strive for open and currently below peer group

SOVEREIGN STOCK PRICE CHART

honest communications among (NYSE: SOV 12731/01 10 12/31/02) . Qoss—sqle statistics are bg!ow
team members at all levels. six services per relationship
o Team members have $16.00 - 50% | . gan.k goes n;ft pz;)sses;
, esired market share in some
5.00 |- - 0% :
knowledge of how one’s g $ Y : geographic markets
goals contribute toward & si400 0% 8 ;
the achievement of the 2 ool Lo 2 . {OPPORTUNITIES
' el g ' ° I . i
company’s goals, mission £ 6200 £ ! * Retire all expensive debt by 2006
. & $12.00 - 0% & |
and vision. 1 * Excellent environment to gain
. $H.00 | ) % : U -
> We have absolute alignment e 0 ! greater penetration into existing
. 1 custommer base

of performance with our $10.00 -10%

i g & g 3 & 8 & *» Competitive landscape provides
recognition and reward systems. > 8 3 s = = 2 »
e g 9 & 2 o Q enormous opportunities to attract
T new customers
D SOV Price D SOV % Chg ‘ S&P Bank Index

* Increase revenues at twice
the rate of expenses

ALIGNING TEAM MEMBER
AND SHAREHOLDER INTERESTS N ) .
* Numerous suitable, fill-in

> We act like shareholders because we are shareholders with about 0% insider ‘ acquisition opportunities
beneficial ownership, after giving effect to outstanding stock options, restricted

stock and other stock-based compensation plans. - HREATS
. , ) » Continued soft economy or
° For years, we have had stock ownership requirements for senior level double-dip recession ~ including
management as a multiple of his or her annual base salary. lower interest rates with a flat
yield curve

° Directors are required to own a minimum of $100,000 in Sovereign stock. B
+ Competitive landscape may

° In early 2002, stock option grants were given to practically all team members. become more fierce with
We have been expensing stock options since 2002. irrational pricing
= All leaders and many other team members are on a performance-based cash * Regulatory environment may

become more stringent,

and stock incentive compensation plan. limiting growth

° We have deep participation in the Team Member Stock Purchase Plan.

[continued on page 4] Sovereign Bancorp | III



Dear Mr. Sidhu,

| take great pleasure in writing
this letter to you regarding Sharon
Franklin, vice president and senior
community banking manager at
the West Park Avenue community
banking office in Ocean, N.J.
Sharon is a wonderful example

of what a banking relationship
should be with a customer —

true Red Carpet Service. She has
been courteous, helpful and
whenever | see her or speak with
her on the phone, she is always
upbeat and personable.

Sharon obviously enjoys her work
at Sovereign. She always returns
my phone calls and has provided
me assistance and advice with
not only my personal accounts,
but more importantly my business
accounts.

You have a gem of an employee
in Sharon, and | hope, as my
business continues to grow, so
will my relationship with Sharon
and Sovereign Bank.

Hazlet, N.J.

IV | Sovereign Bancorp
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[Letter to Shareholders continued from page 3]

DIFFERENTIATING OUR COMPANY BASED ON
SUPERIOR CUSTOMER SERVICE

= We are absolutely clear about our relationship-oriented banking strategy for both
consumers and business customers.

> To the best of our knowledge, we are the only bank in our marketplace to
guarantee service levels to all customers (see Red Carpet Service™).

= We understand that superior service drives sales and customer retention,

> We measure service quality on a regular basis for the purpose of recognizing
and rewarding our team members for superior service.

OPTIMIZING OUR FRANCHISE

e Qur goal is to be the principal financial service provider for all our customers
by providing customized solutions that meet or exceed our customers’ expectations.

° A true sales and service culture exists at Sovereign with daily, weekly and
monthly tracking, and alignment with recognition and reward systems.

° We strive to sell 6+ services to every customer.

> We are pursuing top market share in each of our local markets.

STRONG CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CULTURE

° In September 2002, we publically announced that Sovereign was substantially in
compliance with NYSE’s proposed new listing standards relating to corporate
governance and the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 relating
to corporate governance and financial statement integrity.

° Since 1989, Sovereign’s Board has consisted entirely of non-management
directors, except for the CEO.

° Since 1995, Sovereign’s Board has maintained an Ethics and Corporate
Governance Committee consisting entirely of non-management directers,
except for the CEO who last served on this Committee in 2002.

> Sovereign has maintained, since 1988, a written Code of Conduct and Ethics
which covers conflict of interest, breaches of confidentiality, fair dealing, compliance
with law and personal investing and trading in Sovereign’s common stock.

We are continually challenging ourselves, evaluating our strengths, weaknesses,
opportunities and threats and focusing on superior execution. We believe Sovereign
is positioned to deliver above average returns to our shareholders and has the
necessary elements to become one of the best companies to work for in our

nation. To that end, we are extremely proud of our team members for their passion,
dedication, spirit and commitment. We value our relationship with customers and
the communities we serve. We are grateful for the wisdom and direction provided
by our Board of Directors. And most important, we are honored by the confidence
you, our shareholders, have placed in us.

Jay S. Sidhu
Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Officer
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{C) Mix percentages as of 12/31/02

RECONCILIATION TABLE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Netincome/{loss) as reported ... o $ 341,985 3 116,821 $ (30.242) $ 179,299 $ 136,455
Loss on the early extinguishment of debe(1) ..................... o - 6,549 - - -
Net negative carry on escrowed bond proceeds(2) . ... - - 18,589 3123 -
Merger-related and integration costs refated to recent acquisitions ... .. ... ... 14,216(7) 97,063(3) 20,576(3) 33533
Expense an convertible trust preferred securities ("PIERS™(2) ........... ... ... - 6,502 2,125 -
Loss on securities due to restructuring of the balance sheet(4) .. ......... ... ... ... - - 66,956 - -
RESIUCIUTING(S) ..o - 5,525 12,025 - -
Non-solicitation expense(f) . ....... ..o - 158,106 78,039 . -
Assumed income from reinvestment of net proceeds of common equity and PIERS(Z) . .. - - (3.051) (2.827) -
OPErating €aMINGS .. ..ottt e 356,201 287,001 239,881 202,296 169,988
Amortization of intangibles(8) .. ... 54,121 89,408 67,003 26,968 {5,588
Stock option expense(T) L ... 9,249 - - - -
ESOP eXPENSe . ..ot 2,554 1,906 1,680 2203 2,601
CaSh BAMNINGS .. o e et e et e e e $ 422,125 $ 378315 $ 308,564 $ 231,467 $ 188,177

(1) Because the 2001 extinguishment of debs was not part of 2 strucwred deleveraging transaction where an offsetting gain was recorded within our statement of operations, we have included the extinguishment loss as a *'special charge™ in our

reconciliation of net income to operating earnings.

(2) In connection with the New England Acquisition, Sovereign raised $1.8 billion of debt and equity capital in November and December of 1999, of which §1.3 billion of debt proceeds were in escrow with limited ability to reinvest the proceeds untl
the acquisition was completed on July 21, 2000. Consequently, the excess of negative carry and trust preferred expense over interest expense reduction realized on the raised capital resulted in a net reduction in pretax income of $24.7 miion
($16.0 million after-tax) comprised of the following components for the year ended December 31, 2000: a) a reduction of net interest income of $28.6 million ($18.6 million after-tax): b) expense of $10.0 milion ($6.5 million after-tax) associated
with PIERS issued in November 1999 ¢} an assumed $13.9 million ($9.1 miliion after-tax) of interest expense reduction from the assumed paydown of ather borrowings with the proceeds of the Trust Preferred Securities and common stock offerings.

(3) Merger-related and integration charges include direct costs associated with the New England Acquisition. including investment banking and debt commitment fees. indirect costs incurred to integraie recent acquisitions into Sovereign's back-office
systens, costs of training, relocation and associated travel, and management’s estimate of the carrying costs of certain facilides and personnel acquired in the first and secand closings on March 24 and June 16, 2000 that were not fully operational
und! july 21, 2000, the date of the final dosing. Also included in merger-related and integration costs are expenses paid refated to a strucred real-estate transaction involving certain real estate related to SBNE.

(4) In June and September 2000, Sovereign sold $2.1 billion of investment securities as part of a balance sheet deleveraging srrategy and incurred a $103 million loss ($67.0 millian after-tax). Sovereign used the proceeds from such sales primarity to repay

short-term borrowings.

(5) Sovereign recorded restructuring charges of $27.0 miliion ($17.5 million after-tax), $8.5 million of which was recorded in 2001 refated to the closure of 14 in-store offices and a redirection of e-commerce efforts, and $18.5 million of which was
recorded in 2000 primarily related to severance and outplacement refated expenses.

(6) As more fully discussed in Note 2 to the Financial Statements, Sovereign was required to pay $363 millon to FleetBoston, subject to FleetBoston's compliance with a non-solicitation agreement. Sovereign expensed such payments ratably from the

completion of the acquisition undil final payment in September 2001.

(7) Merger-related and integration changes in 2002 include charges for an additional loan oss provision of $6.0 million ($3.9 million after-tax) to conform Main Street’s allowance for loan losses to Sovereign’s reserve policies, as well as for merger related
expenses of $15.9 million ($10.3 million after-tax) refated to branch and office consolidations, system conversions and community grants .

(8) 2002 earnings do not include amortization of goodwill which was discontinued January |, 2002 upon adoption of SFAS 142,

(%) Expense provisions of SFAS 123 were adopted in the quarter ended September 30, 2002 for options granted in 2002. The resufts of 2001, 2000, 1999, and 1998 amounts do not include compensation expense for stock options under SFAS No, 123.
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James D. Hogan, CPA
Chief Financial Officer
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At least annually, Sovereign’s
Board meets with management
for a retreat, in addition to
regular Board meetings.

At these strategic sessions

the Board members:

* Review Sovereign’s
business plans

* Review strategic alternatives
including a sale of the
company

* Discuss corporate strategy and
evaluate Sovereign’s strengths,
weaknesses, opportunities
and threats

* Review Sovereign’s progress
against Sovereign’s vision,
mission, values and critical
success factors

VI | Sovereign Bancorp

SOVEREIGN’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Sovereign Bancorp has always had a strong and proactive corporate governance
culture. We support efforts by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC"),
the United States Congress (with the passage of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)
and the New York Stock Exchange in proposing new listing standards to improve and
enhance corporate governance and financial statement integrity.

Sovereign believes that strong corporate governance is crucial to the long-term
success of our company. The Sarbanes-Oxley legislation and proposed NYSE new listing
standards will hold directors, auditors, audit committees and officers to higher standards.

Sovereign believes it is very
important in these uncertain
economic times to restore investor
confidence in public companies.
Sovereign has been a leader in
sound corporate governance. Jay
Sidhu, Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer, and Jim
Hogan, Chief Financial Officer,
believe that Sovereign’s financial
review processes, and systems

of internal controls, are
comprehensive, effective and
produce accurate and timely
financial information.

Andrew C. Hove, Jr., former
Chairman of the FDIC and a
Sovereign director, chairs
Sovereign’s Ethics and Corporate Governance Committee. Sovereign follows many
leading corporate governance practices, including the following:

> Sovereign has had only one management director on its board since {989.

* Sovereign's Audit, Nominating and Compensation Committees are comprised
entirely of outside, independent directors.

> Sovereign’s board has had an Ethics and Corporate Governance Committee
since 1995. The function of the committee is to help insure that Sovereign
directors, management, affiliates and employees act in accordance with high
standards of professional and ethical conduct. The committee also monitors
compliance with Sovereign’s written Code of Conduct.

As a part of orientation, new team members are introduced to “The Sovereign Way,”
a training program that defines Sovereign’s mission, vision and values. Specifically,
it states:

“We achieve our mission and practice our values in an ethical, moral and legal
atmosphere, where mutual trust and understanding are practiced. Qur ethics are
based upon honesty, fairness, and being up front with everyone. We follow through
with our commitments.”




COMMERCIAL AND BUSINESS BANKING

During 2002, we continued to build our highly personalized relationship-oriented business
and commercial banking group. We exceeded our financial and strategic goals, and believe
that we have positioned our lines of business within commercial banking for an equally
promising 2003 and beyond.

PrRobucT AND SERVICE ENHANCEMENTS

> We established a Business Solution Center, a dedicated toll-free call center for our
small business customers, staffed with an experienced team to address customer inquiries.

= We have invested heavily in sales and service training for all of our relationship managers
and have implemented SalesNet, a Web-based sales and marketing solution system.

> We strengthened our Municipal Banking Team and International Trade Services
Team by hiring seasoned professionals in these respective lines of business.

° We hired an experienced team of Asset-Based Lenders in the Mid Atlantic market,
further strengthening our financing solutions for customers.

Lig

4
7

i
Joseph P. Campanelli
> We converted our clients to a new account reconciliation system, which provides President and Chief Operating Officer
broader functionality and streamiines our internal operations and processing. of Sovereign Bank New England Division

This enhancement is also linked, in real time, to our teller system — a rare feature
among banks in our market.

° We introduced a new account analysis system and seamlessly converted
our 30,000 customers.

° Sovereign added retail lock box services with leading-edge technology that enables high volume remittance processing on an image-based
operating system. This technology enables expedited problem resolution and enhanced customer satisfaction.

° Sovereign also implemented a “world-class” float pricing system with enhanced check clearing capabilities that provides our
customers with expedited funds availability.

» We implemented phase one of Interactive Reporting and initiation Services (IRIS). RIS is an Internet-based cash management
program that offers the very latest in Web-based information reporting and transaction initiation technology. RIS enabies our
clients to access their data anywhere in the world. During 2003, internet-based wire transfers will be available to our customers,
and we will have imaging capability. We believe IRIS will drive substantial revenue growth over the coming years and result in
enhanced customer service.

STRATEGIC ALLIANCES: WORKING WITH INDUSTRY-LEADING COMPANIES
FOR NEw REVENUE STREAMS

° Seovereign Merchant Services (SMS), our card-processing alliance with First Data Merchant Services, a global leader in merchant
payment services, became a new source of fee income and helped establish new customer relationships. We exceeded our sales
goal by 100%.

* We strengthened our strategic alliance with Ceridian, a leader in human resources and payroll services, to offer our clients a payroll
solution seamlessly through Sovereign.

° We also launched Sovereign Insurance and Benefits Management Services through an alliance with USI Insurance Services, one of
the nation’s leading insurance brokers. Through this alliance, Sovereign now offers a complete and robust set of insurance-based
products and services to further meet the needs of our customers.

2003 AND BEYOND

Sovereign’s enhanced Commercial and Business Banking product lines that are supported by experienced relationship managers and
other support staff, uniquely positions our company for significant growth in sales and service with existing and prospective customers.
We believe that we have a virtual “one-stop shop” to mest the financial service needs of small to mid-size companies across our entire
market. We believe this creates a significant, competitive advantage and these capabilities will facilitate double-digit growth in

financial performance.

Sovereign Bancorp | VII




Since 1987, Sovereign has managed i A h -

its businesses around four critical ‘ e ‘

success factors. The following

D

discussion depicts our 2002

performance relative to these factors.

Elsie Maduro
Community Development Officer,
CRA Mortgage Specialist

SUPERIOR ASSET QUALITY SUPERIOR RiISK MANAGEMENT
Two thousand and two was a challenging credit environment Despite volatile interest rates over the past two years,
for the banking industry. On balance, Sovereign performed Sovereign's net interest margin has increased as depicted
well relative to peers as shown in the following table: in the following chart. Year 2003 will be more challenging,
however, as historically low rates continue to put pressure
Peers* SOV on our mildly asset-sensitive balance sheet.
Dec. Dec. Dec. Dec.

2001 2002 2001 2002

NET INTEREST MARGIN

NPAs / Assets 1% 72% 69% .65%
NPLs / Loans F.12% 1.18% I.11% 1.00% .

0l 3.57%
NCOs / Avg. Loans .83% 93% 43%  59%

‘02 ) 3.61%

* Data per SNL Financial, Top 25 largest banking institutions
with at least 25% commercial loans to total loans.

NPAs = Non-performing assets
NPLs = Non-performing loans
NCOs = Net charge-offs

VIII | Sovereign Bancorp




Dear Sovereign,

Moniz showed my “special needs” son and me. When we originally came to your bank | was

I would like to acknowledge the fine, courteous service that Lucille Chasse, Kelly Contois and Rui \

greeted by Lucille, who pleasantly and patiently explained the best account for us. Recently we had \
more banking needs. Although Lucille wasn’t working the day we went in, she had set up an
appointment for us with Kelly and Rui. Both Kelly and Rui showed us the same respect and

understanding that we had originally experienced with Lucille.

As a parent of a “challenged” son, kindness means a lot and these three individuals definitely
displayed it. My compliments to Sovereign Bank. Kudos to Lucille, Kelly, and Rui.

New Bedford, Mass.

STRONG SALES AND SERVICE CULTURE

Sovereign had a very successful year attracting new customers
and expanding relationships with existing customers as depicted
in the table below:

CONSUMER BANKING

($ ! miLLioks)

20010 2002 % Change
Loans* $ 6831 $85I19 25%
Core Deposits*  $ 11,070 $14,137 28%
Fee income $ 1575 %1794 4%

*ending balances

CoMMERCIAL BANKING

($ ¥ niLLions)
200! 2002 % Change
Loans* $ 8564 310,26l 20%

Core Deposits*  $ 5454 $ 6,097 12%

Fee Income $ 758 & 951 25%

*ending balances

\

Edwin Silverio
Analyst

PRODUCTIVITY AND
ExPENSE CONTROL

Sovereign is keenly focused on productivity and cost
control. The following chart depicts the favorable overall
trend that we expect to continue in future periods.

EFFICIENCY RATIO

‘0l 53.49%

‘02" O 53.23%

* If Sovereign had not adopted the expense provisions of SFAS
No. 123 related to stock options, the 2002 efficiency ratio would
have been 52.6%.
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RETAIL AND
CONSUMER |
BANKING

Lawrence M. Thompson, Jr, Esq.

Sovereign Bank Chief Operating Officer, The Retail and Consumer
President of Consumer Banking Division

Banking Group continued to

gain market share throughout

Sovereign’s footprint in 2002

with enhanced products and

services. In addition, a new

1 customer satisfaction program
— Red Carpet Service™ -

Dear Sovereign,

For a number of years, my farnily ‘ throttled into high gear,

has used the Pacli, Pa. community and an internal award and

banking office. My husband and | recognition initiative was

have commented many times over launched as a tie-in to Glynis White

the years that Ron Nesmith is an i the program. Personal Banking Representative

incredible, personable representative
of your bank who has provided

outstanding service. 1 HIGHLIGHTS INCLUDED:

Recently, we met Helen Talamini
when we had a situation with our
son’s banking needs. Ron and Helen
were not only professional, but gave ° Developed a retail branch strategy with the goal of achieving 1, 2 or 3 deposit
us a personal touch of caring and share in each of our 125 local markets.

service that is almost unheard of in
today’s world of technology.

> A heightened focus on sales management and sales culture increased sales to 4.88
products and services per household by the end of 2002.

> Grew total core deposits by 23% during 2002, or $3.7 billion.

° Implementation of a sales performance management system that ranks all

We wanted to let you know that community banking offices by sales results on a daily, weekly and monthly basis.
as a result of the fine service,

you will see an increase in your
investments as we are moving 1 business owners. |
another account to Sovereign. ° Redesigned the Retail Banking Web site, resulting in a 238% increase in usage and

a 16.5% increase in enrolled NetBanking accounts.

> Established weekly “market on the move” sales efforts for calling on small

Thank you for your kind attention

and your obvious support of your ‘ ° Extension of hours — including Sunday hours — at several community banking
talented and dedicated employees. ‘ offices in Pennsylvania.
Paoli, Pa. |
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Rep CARPET SERVICE™

Our job is to provide a superior customer experience.

In January of 2002, Sovereign Bank rolled-out Red Carpet Service, an initiative that
guarantees superior service levels to our customers. Simply put — if we don't deliver,
we will pay* our customer for the inconvenience. To the best of our knowledge,
Sovereign is the only bank in its marketplace to make a “perform or pay” guarantee
to its customers.

To underscore the importance of Red Carpet Service, Sovereign introduced the Red
Carpet Champion Program in 2002. This program is primarily about recognizing the
superior efforts of team members in meeting the needs of both external and internal
customers.

ReEp CARPET SERVICE" GUARANTEES

°

o

Wait no longer than five minutes
in a teller line.

Customers have access to
Sovereign representatives 24
hours per day, 7 days per week.

We will return customer
telephone calls and e-mails the
same business day, if received
by 3:00 PM EST;

We will provide and mail
accurate account statements
within 7 days.

Our ATMs are always available.

We greet our customers and
thank them for banking with us.

Susan Soares (L) - Sovereign Direct Banking Officer/Service
Team Leader and Diane Oliveira (R) - Sovereign Direct
Representative/Service

At Sovereign, we will never be content in our pursuit to satisfy our customers.

We strive to anticipate the needs of our customers and recommend personalized
solutions. Ve respond rapidly when customers have a service issue. Simply put, we
are passionate about pleasing our customers.

*Sovereign Bank makes this guarantee to its customers or it will pay $5 via a credit to their deposit account or a
check if they have a loan account. For full details, contact your banking representative.

IR

JoAnn Jacob
Executive Assistant

To Sovereign Bank:

We recently relocated from New
York to Monroe Township, N.J. and
decided to transfer our banking to
our new town. We decided that
we should “shop” for a bank

that would provide us with good
service. Qur first stop was
Sovereign Bank, where we met
with Lisa Varian. To make a long
story short, there was no need for
us to “shop” any further.

Especially commendable is the
personal interest taken by Ms.
Varian with regard to our banking
needs. She possesses splendid
assets of professionalism,
competence and initiative.

If Ms. Varian is indicative of

the caliber of your personnel,
you are fortunate.

Monroe Township, N.J.
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Sovereign loaned and
invested more than
$2.2 billien through
our Community
Relnvestrment Plan.

Warren Taylor
Division President

Sovereign Bank Arena
Trenton, New fersey
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SOVEREIGN [N THE COMMUNITY

In 2002, Sovereign team members again put others ahead of themselves, ultimately
to the benefit of those communities where they work and live.

Sovereign pledged a matching grant of $500,000 to a United Way fund-raising
campaign in Berks County, Pennsylvania. The bank also provided a corporate
contribution of $284,000 to United Way. In addition, team members donated a
record $1 million and volunteered more than 25,000 hours of community service
to more than 750 agencies and organizations.

The Sovereign Bank Foundation gave more than $2.4 million to more than 500
non-profit organizations with a focus on community and economic development,
youth and education, arts and culture. Also benefiting were social service agencies
serving low- and moderate-income individuals and communities.

Sovereign loaned and invested more than $2.2 billion in mortgages, small
business loans, consumer lending and community development projects
through our Community Reinvestment Plan.

The Sovereign Scholars Program, in partnership with the Philadelphia
Eagles, recognized eight students in Pennsylvania and New |ersey who
demonstrated a commitment to academics, coupled with outstanding
service to their family, school, and community. Each student received
$1,000 to further their post-secondary education.

The annual Holiday Book Drive collected about 13,000 books for
distribution to children through United Way partner agencies in
Massachusetts, Connecticut, Rhode Island and New Hampshire.

A partnership with Mosaic House, a Reading, Pennsylvania-based
social service agency that provides Transitional Employment Placement
for physically and mentally challenged individuals, was formed and led
to several individuals joining Sovereign’s Mortgage Cashiering and
Consumer Loan departments.

Sovereign worked with Boston-based Disability Law Center, Inc. to meet
the banking needs of the disabled. Several key initiatives were launched
to provide easier access to Sovereign’s banking services by individuals
with visual impairments and other challenges. Initiatives included the
installation of Talking ATMs, a user-friendlier Sovereign Internet Web
Site, and greater accessibility to printed materials.

Sovereign made a significant impact in the realm of economic assistance
by helping to convince a company that caters to outdoor enthusiasts to
build a superstore near Reading. The Cabela’s store is expected to
attract about six million people annually, which would make it the largest
tourist attraction in Pennsylvania. Sovereign agreed to provide $750,000
in tax relief to Tilden Township, where the store will be located, and
established a banking relationship with Cabela’s.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a "safe harbor” for forward-looking statements made by or
on behalf of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. (“Sovereign™). Sovereign may from time to time make forward-looking statements in
Sovereign's filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (including this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the Exhibits
hereto), in its reports to shareholders (including its 2002 Annual Report) and in other communications by Sovereign, which
are made in good faith by Sovereign, pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. Some of the disclosure communications by Sovereign, including any statements preceded by, followed by or which
include the words “may,” “could,” “should,” “pro forma,” “locking forward,” “will,” “would,” “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,”

“estimate,” “intend,” “plan,” “ assume” or similar expressions constitute forward-looking statements.

TS

"o "o

strive,” “hopefully,” “try,

These forward-looking statements include statements with respect to Sovereign's vision, mission, strategies, goals, beliefs,
plans, objectives, expectations, anticipations, estimates, intentions, financial condition, results of operations, future performance
and business of Sovereign, including statements relating to:

» growth in net income, shareholder value and internal tangible equity generation;
* growth in earnings per share;

* return on equity;

* return on assets;

» efficiency ratio;

* Tier | leverage ratio;

+ annualized net charge-offs and other asset quality measures;

- fee income as a percentage of total revenue;

» ratio of tangible equity to assets;

* book value and tangible book value per share; and

» loan and deposit portfolio compositions, employee retention, deposit retention, asset quality and reserve adequacy.

These forward-looking statements, implicitly and explicitly, inciude the assumptions underlying the statements. Although
Sovereign believes that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable, these statements
involve risks and uncertainties which are subject to change based on various important factors (some of which are beyond
Sovereign's control). The following factors, among others, could cause Sovereign's financial performance to differ materially
from its goals, plans, objectives, intentions, expectations, forecasts and projections (and the underlying assumptions)
expressed in the forward-looking statements:

» the strength of the United States economy in general and the strength of the regional and local economies in which
Sovereign conducts operations;

« the effects of, and changes in, trade, monetary and fiscal policies and laws, including interest rate policies of the Board
of Governors of the Federal Reserve System;

* inflation, interest rate, market and monetary fluctuations;

* Sovereign's ability to successfully integrate any assets, liabilities, customers, systems and management personnel
Sovereign acquires into its operations and its ability to realize related revenue synergies and cost savings within expected
time frames;

+ Sovereign's timely development of competitive new products and services in a changing environment and the acceptance
of such products and services by customers;

* the willingness of customers to substitute competitors' products and services and vice versa;

» the impact of changes in financial services policies, laws and regulations, including laws, regulations and policies
concerning taxes, banking, capital, liquidity, proper accounting treatment, securities and insurance, and the application
thereof by regulatory bodies and the impact of changes in and interpretation of generally accepted accounting principles;

» technological changes;

* changes in consumer spending and savings habits;
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= terrorist attacks in the United States or upon United States interests abroad, or armed conflicts relating to these attacks;
= armed conflicts involving the United States military;

» regulatory or judicial proceedings;

» changes in asset quality; and

= Sovereign's success in managing the risks involved in the foregoing.

If one or more of the factors affecting Sovereign's forward-looking information and statements proves incorrect, then its
actual results, performance or achievements could differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by, forward-looking
information and statements. Therefore, Sovereign cautions you not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking information
and statements. '

Sovereign does not intend to update any forward-looking information and statements, whether written or oral, to reflect any
change. All forward-looking statements attributable to Sovereign are expressly qualified by these cautionary statements.

ParT |
item |[. Business.

General

Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. (“Sovereign” or “the Company”), is the parent company of Sovereign Bank (“Sovereign Bank” or
“the Bank”), a $40 billion financial institution with 525 community banking offices, approximately |,000 ATMs and about
8,000 team members in Pennsylvania, New Jersey, Connecticut, New Hampshire, New York, Rhode Island, Defaware and
Massachusetts. Sovereign's primary business consists of attracting deposits from its network of community banking offices,
and originating small business and middle market commercial and asset-based loans, residential mortgage loans, home equity
lines of credit, and auto and other consumer loans in the communities served by those offices. Sovereign also purchases
portfolios of residential mortgage loans and other consumer loans throughout the United States.

Sovereign Bank was created in 1984 under the name Penn Savings Bank, F.S.B. through the merger of two financial institutions
with market areas primarily in Berks and Lancaster counties, Pennsylvania. Sovereign Bank assumed its current name on
December 31, 1991. Sovereign was incorporated in [987. Sovereign has acquired 24 financial institutions, branch networks
and related businesses since 1990. Fifteen of these acquisitions, with assets totaling approximately $24 billion, have been
completed since |995.

Sovereign is a Pennsylvania business corporation and its principal executive offices are focated at 1500 Market Street,
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Sovereign Bank is headquartered in Wyomissing, Pennsylvania, a suburb of Reading, Pennsylvania.

Sovereign Bank is a federally chartered savings bank and operates in a heavily regulated environment. Changes in laws
and regulations affecting Sovereign and its subsidiaries may have an impact on its operations. See “Business—Supervision
and Regulation.”

Business Strategy

Sovereign believes that as a result of continuing consolidation in the financial industry, there is an increasing need for
super-community banks throughout the northeastern United States. Sovereign considers a super-community bank to be a
bank with the size and range of commercial, business and consumer products to compete with farger institutions, but with
the orientation to relationship banking and personalized service usually found at smaller community banks.

In response to this need, in 1996, Sovereign initiated a strategy to transform itself from a traditional mortgage lender into a
super-community bank by:

= targeting small and medium size businesses through offering a broader array of commercial and business banking products
and services;

= changing the mix of its deposits and, while endeavoring to preserve its credit quality, changing the mix of its assets to
be more characteristic of a commercial bank;

= increasing its penetration into larger, more densely populated markets in the northeastern United States;
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* preserving its orientation toward relationship banking and personalized service, as well as its sales-driven culture; and
* increasing its non-interest income as a percentage of net income.

During 2000, Sovereign substantially completed its transformation by acquiring $12.3 billion of deposits, $8.0 billion of loans
(exclusive of $1.1 billion of non-relationship mortgage loans sold immediately after the acquisition), and 281 community
banking offices located in Massachusetts, Rhode Island, Connecticut and New Hampshire from FleetBoston Financial
Corporation (the “New England Acquisition”). As a result of the New England Acquisition, Sovereign doubled its deposit
base, changed the mix of loans and deposits to be more characteristic of a commercial bank, and increased the breadth and
depth of senior and middle management.

Subsidiaries

Sovereign has seven direct wholly-owned subsidiaries: Sovereign Bank, Sovereign Delaware Investment Corporation, Sovereign
Capital Trust |, Sovereign Capital Trust Il, Sovereign Capital Trust Hl, MBNK Capital Trust | and ML Capital Trust |. Sovereign
Delaware Investment Corporation is a Delaware corporation whose primary purpose is to purchase and hold certain investment
securities. Sovereign Capital Trust |, Sovereign Capital Trust Il, Sovereign Capital Trust Ill, MBNK Capital Trust | and ML
Capital Trust | are special-purpose statutory trusts created expressly for the issuance of preferred capital securities.

Employees
At December 31, 2002, Sovereign had 6,929 full-time and 1,078 part-time employees. None of these employees are represented
by a collective bargaining agreement, and Sovereign believes it enjoys good relations with its personnel.

Competition

Sovereign experiences substantial competition in attracting and retaining deposits and in lending funds. The primary factors
in competing for deposits are the ability to offer attractive rates, the convenience of office locations, and the availability of
alternate channels of distribution. Direct competition for deposits comes primarily from commercial banks and other thrift
institutions. Competition for deposits also comes from money market mutual funds, corporate and government securities,
and credit unions. The primary factors in the competition for loans are interest rates, loan origination fees and the range of
products and services offered. Competition for origination of loans normally comes from other thrift institutions, commercial
banks, mortgage bankers, mortgage brokers and insurance companies.

Envircnmental Laws

Environmentally related hazards have become a source of high risk and potentially unlimited liability for financia! institutions
relative to their loans. Environmentally contaminated properties owned by an institution’s borrowers may result in a drastic
reduction in the value of the collateral securing the institution's loans to such borrowers, high environmental clean up costs
to the borrower affecting its ability to repay the loans, the subordination of any lien in favor of the institution to a state or
federal lien securing clean up costs, and liability to the institution for clean up costs if it forecloses on the contaminated property
or becomes involved in the management of the borrower. To minimize this risk, Sovereign Bank may require an environmental
examination of, and report with respect to, the property of any borrower or prospective borrower if circumstances affecting
the property indicate a potential for contamination, taking into consideration the potential foss to the institution in relation to
the burdens to the borrower. Such examination must be performed by an engineering firm experienced in environmental
risk studies and acceptable to the institution, and the costs of such examinations and reports are the responsibility of the
borrower. These costs may be substantial and may deter a prospective borrower from entering into a loan transaction with
Sovereign Bank. Sovereign is not aware of any borrower who is currently subject to any environmental investigation or clean

up proceeding which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of

the Company.

Supervision and Regulation

General. Sovereign is a "savings and loan holding company” registered with the Office of Thrift Supervision ("OTS")
under the Home Owners' Loan Act ("HOLA") and, as such, Sovereign is subject to OTS oversight and reporting with respect
to certain matters. Sovereign Bank is charted as a federal savings bank, and is highly regulated by the OTS as to all its activities,
and subject to extensive OTS examination, supervision, and reporting.
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Sovereign Bank is required to file reports with the OTS describing its activities and financial condition and is periodically
examined to test compliance with various regulatory requirements. The deposits of Sovereign Bank are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”). Sovereign Bank is also subject to examination by the FDIC. Such examinations
are conducted for the purpose of protecting depositors and the insurance fund and not for the purpose of protecting holders
of equity or debt securities of Sovereign or Sovereign Bank. Sovereign Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank
("FHLB") of Pittsburgh, which is one of the twelve regional banks comprising the FHLB system. Sovereign Bank is also subject
to regulation by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System with respect to reserves maintained against deposits
and certain other matters.

Holding Company Regulation. The HOLA prohibits a registered savings and loan holding company from directly
or indirectly acquiring control, including through an acquisition by merger, consolidation or purchase of assets, of any savings
association (as defined in HOLA to include a federal savings bank) or any other savings and loan holding company, without
prior OTS approval. Generally, a savings and loan holding company may not acquire more than 5% of the voting shares of
any savings association unless by merger, consolidation or purchase of assets.

Federal law empowers the Director of the OTS to take substantive action when the Director determines that there is reasonable
cause to believe that the continuation by a savings and loan holding company of any particular activity constitutes a serious risk to
the financial safety, soundness or stability of a savings and loan holding company's subsidiary savings institution. Specifically,

the Director of the OTS may, as necessary, (i) limit the payment of dividends by the savings institution; (i) limit transactions
between the savings institution, the holding company and the subsidiaries or affiliates of either; (iii) limit any activities of the
savings institution that might create a serious risk that the liabilities of the holding company and its affiliates may be imposed

on the savings institution. Any such limits could be issued in the form of a directive having the legal efficacy of a cease and
desist order.

Control of Sovereign. Under the Savings and Loan Holding Company Act and the related Change in Bank Control
Act (the “Control Act”), individuals, corporations or other entities acquiring Sovereign common stock may, alone or together
with other investors, be deemed to control Sovereign and thereby Sovereign Bank. If deemed to control Sovereign, such
person or group will be required to obtain OTS approval to acquire Sovereign's common stock and could be subject to certain
ongoing reporting procedures and restrictions under federal law and regulations. Ownership of more than 10% of the capital
stock may be deemed to constitute “control” if certain other control factors are present. As of December 31, 2002, no
individual corporation or other entity owned more than 0% of Sovereign's capital stock.

Regulatory Capital Requirements. OTS regulations require savings associations to maintain minimum capital ratios.
These standards are the same as the capital standards that are applicable to other insured depository institutions, such as banks.

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (“FDIA”), insured depository institutions must be classified in one of five defined
categories (well-capitalized, adequately-capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized).
Under OTS regulations, an institution will be considered “well-capitalized” if it has (i) a total risk-based capital ratio of 10%
or greater, (ii} a Tier | risk-based capital ratio of 6% or greater, (iii) a leverage ratio of 5% or greater and (iv) is not subject
to any order or written directive to meet and maintain a specific capital level. A savings institution's capital category is determined
with respect to its most recent thrift financial report filed with the OTS. In the event an institution's capital deteriorates to
the undercapitalized category or below, the FDDIA and OTS regulations prescribe an increasing amount of regulatory intervention,
including the adoption by the institution of a capital restoration plan, a guarantee of the plan by its parent holding company
and the placement of a hold on increases in assets, number of branches and lines of business.

If capital has reached the significantly or critically undercapitalized levels, further material restrictions can be imposed, including
restrictions on interest payable on accounts, dismissal of management and (in critically undercapitalized situations) appointment
of a receiver or conservator. Critically undercapitalized institutions generally may not, beginning 60 days after becoming critically
undercapitalized, make any payment of principal or interest on their subordinated debt. All but well-capitalized institutions
are prohibited from accepting brokered deposits without prior regulatory approval. Pursuant to the FDIA and OTS regulations,
savings associations which are not categorized as well-capitalized or adequately-capitalized are restricted from making capital




distributions which include cash dividends, stock redemptions or repurchases, cash-out mergers, interest payments on certain

convertible debt and other transactions charged to the capital account of a savings association. At December 31, 2002, l

Sovereign Bank met the criteria to be classified as “well-capitalized.” |
|

The OTS Order (the “OTS Order”) issued in connection with the New England Acquisition required Sovereign Bank to be
“well capitalized” and also to meet certain other additional capital ratio requirements above the regulatory minimum, and
other conditions through December 31, 2002. Although OTS capital regulations do not apply to savings and loan holding
companies, the OTS Crder required Sovereign to maintain certain Tier | leverage ratio and related liquidity levels.
Additionally, Sovereign's various agreements with its lenders also require it to cause Sovereign Bank to be “well-capitalized”
at all times and in compliance with all regulatory requirements. As of December 31, 2002, Sovereign Bank was classified as

well-capitalized and in compliance with the conditions and capital requirements discussed above. The OTS order expired on
January 1, 2003.

Standards for Safety and Soundness. The federal banking agencies adopted certain operational and managerial
standards for depository institutions, including internal audit system components, loan documentation requirements, asset
growth parameters, information technology and data security practices, and compensation standards for officers, directors
and employees. The implementation or enforcement of these guidelines has not had a material adverse effect on Sovereign's
results of operations.

Insurance of Accounts and Regulation by the FDIC. Sovereign Bank is a member of the Savings Association
Insurance Fund, which is administered by the FDIC. Deposits are insured up to the applicable limits by the FDIC and such
insurance is backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government. As insurer, the FDIC imposes deposit
insurance premiums and is authorized to conduct examinations of, and to require reporting by, FDIC-insured institutions.

It also may prohibit any FDIC-insured institution from engaging in any activity the FDIC determines by regulation or order
to pose a serious risk to the Insurance Fund. The FDIC also has the authority to initiate enforcement actions against savings
institutions, after giving the Office of Thrift Supervision an opportunity to take such action, and may terminate an institution's
deposit insurance if it determines that the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices or is in an unsafe or
unsound condition.

The FDIC's deposit insurance premiums are assessed through a risk-based system under which all insured depository institutions
are placed into one of nine categories and assessed insurance premiums based upon their level of capital and supervisory
evaluation. Under the system, institutions classified as well-capitalized and considered healthy pay no premium or reduced
premiums while institutions that are less than adequately capitalized and considered of substantial supervisory concern pay
higher premiums. Risk classification of all insured institutions is made by the FDIC for each semi-annual assessment period.

The FDIC is authorized to increase assessment rates, on a semi-annual basis, if it determines that the reserve ratio of the
Savings Association Insurance Fund will be less than the designated reserve ratio of 1.25% of Savings Association Insurance
Fund insured deposits. In setting these increased assessments, the FDIC must seek to restore the reserve ratio to that designated
reserve level, or such higher reserve ratio as established by the FDIC. The FDIC may also impose special assessments on
Savings Association Insurance Fund members to repay amounts borrowed from the United States Treasury or for any other
reason deemed necessary by the FDIC.

The current premium schedule for Savings Association Insurance Fund insured institutions ranges from 0 to 27 basis points
per $!00 of deposits. In addition, all insured institutions are required to pay a Financing Corporation assessment, in order to
fund the interest on bonds issued to resolve thrift failures in the 1980s. The current rate for ali insured institutions is 1.68
basis points for each $100 in domestic deposits. These assessments are revised quarterly and will continue until the bonds
mature in the year 2017.

Federal Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates. All banks and savings institutions are subject to affiliate and
insider transaction rules applicable to member banks of the Federal Reserve System set forth in Sections 23A, 23B, 22(g)
and 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act, as well as such additional limitations as the institutions' primary federal regulator may
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adopt. These provisions prohibit or limit a savings institution from extending credit to, or entering into certain transactions
with, affiliates, principal stockholders, directors and executive officers of the savings institution and its affiliates. For these
purposes, the term “affiliate” generally includes a holding company such as Sovereign and any company under common
control with the savings institution. in addition, the federal law governing unitary savings and loan holding companies prohibits
Sovereign Bank from making any loan to any affiliate whose activity is not permitted for a subsidiary of a bank holding company.
This law also prohibits Sovereign Bank from making any equity investment in any affiliate that is not its subsidiary.

Restrictions on Subsidiary Savings Institution Capital Distributions. Sovereign's principal sources of funds are
cash dividends paid to it by Sovereign Bank, investment income and borrowings. OTS regulations limit the ability of savings
associations such as Sovereign Bank to pay dividends and make other capital distributions. Associations that are subsidiaries
of a savings and loan holding company must file a notice with the OTS at least 30 days before the proposed declaration of
a dividend or approval of the proposed capital distribution by its board of directors. In addition, a savings association must
obtain prior approval from the OTS if it fails to meet certain regulatory conditions, or if, after giving effect to the proposed
distribution, the association's capital distributions in a calendar year would exceed its year-to-date net income plus retained
net income for the preceding two years or the association would not be at least adequately capitalized or if the distribution
would violate a statute, regulation, regulatory agreement or a regulatory condition to which the association is subject.

Qualified Thrift Lender. All savings institutions are required to meet a qualified thrift lender test to avoid certain
restrictions on their operations. The test under the Home Owners Loan Act (HOLA) requires a savings institution to have
at least 65% of its portfolio assets, as defined by regulation, in qualified thrift investments. As an alternative, the savings institution
under HOLA may maintain 60% of its assets in those assets specified in Section 7701 (a)(19) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Under either test, such assets primarily consist of residential housing refated loans, certain consumer and small business
loans, as defined by the regulations and mortgage refated investments. Sovereign Bank is currently in compliance with the
qualified thrift lender regulations.

Other Loan Limitations, Federal law limits the amount of non-residential mortgage loans a savings institution, such
as Sovereign Bank, may make. Separate from the qualified thrift lender test, the law limits a savings institution to a maximum
of 10% of its assets in large commercial loans (defined as loans in excess of $2 million), with another 10% of assets permissible
in “small business loans.” Commercial foans secured by real estate can be made in an amount up to four times an institution's
capital. An institution can also have commercial leases, in addition to the above items, up to 10% of its assets. Commercial
paper, corporate bonds, and consumer loans taken together cannot exceed 35% of an institution's assets. For this purpose,
however, residential mortgage loans and credit card loans are not considered consumer loans, and are both uniimited in
amount. The foregoing limitations are established by statute, and cannot be waived by the OTS. Sovereign is currently in
compliance with these statutes.

Federal Reserve Regulation. Under Federal Reserve Board regulations, Sovereign Bank is required to maintain a
reserve against its transaction accounts (primarily interest-bearing and non interest-bearing checking accounts). Because
reserves must generally be maintained in cash or in non-interest-bearing accounts, the effect of the reserve requirements is
to increase an institution's cost of funds.

Numerous other regulations promulgated by the Federal Reserve Board affect the business operations of Sovereign Bank.
These include regulations relating to equal credit opportunity, electronic fund transfers, collection of checks, truth in lending,
truth in savings, availability of funds, home mortgage disclosure, and margin credit.

Federal Home Loan Bank System. The FHLB System was created in 1932 and consists of twelve regional FHLBs.
The FHLBs are federally chartered but privately owned institutions created by Congress. The Federal Housing Finance
board (“Finance Board”) is an agency of the federal government and is generally responsible for regulating the FHLB System.
Each FHLB is owned by its member institutions. The primary purpose of the FHLBs is to provide funding to their members
for making housing loans as well as for affordable housing and community development lending. FHLBs are generally able to
make advances to their member institutions at interest rates that are lower than could otherwise be obtained by such institutions.
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Community Reinvestment Act. The Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”) requires financial institutions regulated
by the federal financial supervisory agencies to ascertain and help meet the credit needs of their delineated communities,
including low to moderate-income neighborhoods within those communities, while maintaining safe and sound banking practices.
A bank's performance under the CRA is important in determining whether the bank may obtain approval for, or utilize
streamlined procedures in, certain applications for acquisitions or to engage in new activities. Sovereign Bank's lending
activities are in compliance with applicable CRA requirements.

Recent Legislation. Landmark legistation in the financial services area was signed into law by the President on
November 12, 1999. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act dramatically changed certain banking laws that had been in effect since
the early part of the 20th century. The most significant changes were that the separation between banking and the securities
businesses mandated by the Glass-Steagall Act was removed, and the provisions of any state law that prohibits affiliation
between banking and insurance entities were preempted. Accordingly, the new legislation now permits firms engaged in
underwriting and dealing in securities, and insurance companies, to own banking entities, and permits bank holding companies
(and in some cases, banks) to own securities firms and insurance companies. As Sovereign is a savings and loan holding
company, many of the provisions of the new legislation do not apply to it. The new law does change the status of Sovereign,
however, in that Sovereign can no longer become part of a non-financial group of companies, as it could under prior law.
Sovereign is still permitted to acquire non-financial companies, however. The new legislation also made a number of additions
and revisions to numerous federal laws that affect the business of banking. For example, there is now a federal law on privacy
with respect to customer information held by banks.

The OTS and other banking regulators adopted amendments to their capital rules concerning the treatment of residual interests
in asset securitizations and other transfers of financial assets. Generally, the rule varies the capital requirements for securitization
transactions based on their credit ratings, requires that risk-based capital be held in an amount equal to the amount of residual
interests retained on an institution's balance sheet, and limits the amount of residual interests that may be included in

Tier | capital.

In December 2001, the Federal Reserve Board amended the regulations that implement the Home Ownership and Equity
Protection Act (“HOEPA"). The amendments to Regulation Z (Truth in Lending) broaden the scope of loans subject to the
provisions of HOEPA by adjusting the price triggers that determine coverage under the act. The regulations lower the interest
rate-based trigger and revise the fee-based trigger to include opticnal insurance premiums and similar credit protection products
paid at closing. The loans that Sovereign Bank currently originates are generally below the rate and fee levels that trigger
HOEPA. Sovereign Bank has adopted procedures to screen purchased loan portfolios against HOEPA covered loans.

In October 2001, the USA PATRIOT Act became effective. Title Hl of that Act represents a major expansion of the U.S.
anti-money laundering laws granting broad new anti-money taundering powers to the Secretary of the Treasury and imposing
a variety of new compliance obligations on banks and broker dealers. The Act also requires a bank’s regulator to specifically
consider the bank's past record of compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act (anti-money laundering requirements) when acting
on any applications filed by such bank.

On July 30, 2002, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (“Sarbanes-Oxley”) was enacted. This act is not a banking law, but applies to all
public companies, including Sovereign. Sarbanes-Oxley is designed to restore investor confidence. Sarbanes-Oxley adopts
new standards of corporate governance and imposes new requirements on the board and management of public companies.
The chief executive officer and chief financial officer of a public company must now certify the financial statements of the
company. New definitions of “independent directors” have been adopted, and new responsibilities and duties have been
established for the audit and other committees of the board. In addition, the reporting requirements for insider stock
transactions have been revised, requiring most transactions to be reported within two business days. While complying with
Sarbanes-Oxley will result in increased costs to Sovereign, the additional costs are not expected to have a material effect
on results of operations.

In addition to the legislation discussed above, Congress is often considering some financial industry legislation, and the federal
banking agencies routinely propose new regulations. New legislation and regulation may include dramatic changes to the federal
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deposit insurance system. Sovereign cannot predict how any new legislation, or new rules adopted by the federal banking
agencies, may affect its business in the future.

item 2. Properties.

Sovereign Bank utilizes 605 buildings that occupy a total of 4.9 million square feet, including |33 owned properties with
1.0 million square feet and 472 leased properties with 3.9 million square feet. Six major buildings contain 1.0 million square
feet, which serve as the headquarters or house significant operational and administrative functions:

Columbia Park Operations Center - Dorchester, Massachusetts

East Providence Call Center and Operations and Loan Processing Center - East Providence, Rhode island
525 Lancaster Avenue Operations Center - Reading, Pennsylvania

1130 Berkshire Boulevard Bank Headquarters and Administrative Offices — Wyomissing, Pennsylvania
1125 Berkshire Boulevard Operations Center - Wyomissing, Pennsylvania

601 Penn Street Loan Processing Center — Reading, Pennsylvania

The majority of the properties of Sovereign outlined above are utilized by the retail banking operations and for general
corporate purposes.

item 3. Legal Proceedings.

Sovereign is not involved in any pending legal proceedings other than non-material legal proceedings occurring in the ordinary
course of business. Sovereign does not expect that any sums it may have to pay in connection with these matters would
have a materially adverse effect on its financial position.

item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
None.
item 4A. Executive Officers of the Registrant.

Certain information, including principal occupation during the past five years, relating to the principal executive officers of
Sovereign, as of February 28, 2003, is set forth below:

Jay S. Sidhu—Age 51. Mr. Sidhu became Chairman of Sovereign and Sovereign Bank in April 2002. He has been a director
of Sovereign since September 1988 and a director of Sovereign Bank since 1987. In addition, Mr. Sidhu has served as
President and Chief Executive Officer of Sovereign since November 1989. Prior thereto, Mr. Sidhu served as Treasurer
and Chief Financial Officer of Sovereign. Mr. Sidhu is also President and Chief Executive Officer of Sovereign Bank.
Prior to becoming President and Chief Executive Officer of Sovereign Bank on March 28, 1989, Mr. Sidhu served as
Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer of Sovereign Bank. ‘

Lawrence M. Thompson, Jr.--Age 50. Mr. Thompson serves as Vice Chairman and Chief Administrative Officer of
Sovereign. Mr. Thompson was appointed Vice Chairman in September 2002. Also, Mr. Thompson was appointed
President and Chief Operating Officer of Sovereign Bank's Consumer Banking Division in November 2000. Mr.
Thompson was hired as Sovereign Bank's General Counsel and Secretary in 1984. He was promoted to Vice President
in 1985. In April 1986, he became Sovereign Bank's Senior Vice President for legal affairs and administration. In January
1990, he became Group Executive Officer—Lending and in June 1995, he became Chief Administrative Officer of
Sovereign and Sovereign Bank. Mr. Thompson became Chief Operating Officer of Sovereign Bank in November 1996.

Dennis S. Marlo-Age 60. Mr. Marlo was appointed Chief Risk Management Officer and Executive Vice President of
Sovereign in April 2001. Mr. Marlo joined Sovereign in February 1998 as the President of the Pennsylvania Division of
Sovereign Bank. He was appointed Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Sovereign in May 1998 and served in that
capacity through April 2001. Prior thereto, Mr. Marlo served as President and Chief Executive Officer of ML Bancorp,
a predecessor company of Sovereign.
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John P. Hamill-Age 62. Mr. Hamill was named Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Sovereign Bank New
England Division of Sovereign Bank (“SBNE")in January 2000. Prior thereto, Mr. Hamill served as President of Fleet
National Bank—Massachusetts for eight years and President of Shawmut Corporation.

Joseph P. Campanelli-Age 46. Mr. Campanelli serves as a Vice Chairman of Sovereign. He became a Vice Chairman in
September 2002. In May 2002, Mr. Campanelli was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer of Sovereign
Bank’s Commercial Markets Group. Prior to becoming President and Chief Operating Officer of Sovereign Bank's
Commercial and Business Banking Division in May 2001, Mr. Campanelli was appointed President and Chief Operating
Officer of SBNE in January 2000. Mr. Campanelli joined Sovereign as Executive Vice President in September 1997
through Sovereign's acquisition of the Fleet Automotive Finance Division and assumed the role of Managing Director of
Sovereign's Automotive Finance Division and the Asset Based Lending Group.

James D. Hogan—Age 58. Mr. Hogan joined Sovereign as Chief Financial Officer in April 2001 and has served as Chief
Financial Officer and Executive Vice President since April 2002. Prior to that Mr. Hogan served as Executive Vice
President and Controller at Firstar Corporation, formerly Star Bancorp, from May 1993 until Aprit 2001, and as
Controller of Star Bank from 1987 until 1993.

James Lynch—Age 53. Mr. Lynch joined Sovereign as Chairman and CEO of Sovereign Bank Mid-Atlantic Division in
September 2002. Prior to Sovereign, in 1996, Mr. Lynch was President and CEO of Prime Bancorp, Inc. and Prime
Bank. He also became Chairman of Prime Bancorp, Inc. in 1997 until it merged with Summit Bancorp, Inc. in 1999. At
Summit, Mr. Lynch served as Senior Executive Vice President of Summit Bancorp and the Chairman and CEO of Summit
Bank - Pennsylvania until it merged with FleetBoston Financial in March 2001, where he acted as the President and CEC
of Fleet Bank - Pennsylvania until joining Sovereign.
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ParT il
ftem 5. Market for the Registrant’'s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.

Sovereign's common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol “SOV.” Sovereign's common
stock was listed and commenced trading on the NYSE on July 10, 2001. Previously, Sovereign's common stock was traded in
the over-the-counter market and was quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “SVRN.” At March 3, 2003, the
total number of holders of Sovereign's common stock was [8,364.

Market and dividend information for Sovereign’s common stock appear in ltem 7 of this Form [0-K.

For certain limitations on the ability of Sovereign Bank to pay dividends to Sovereign, see Part [, Item |, “Business Supervision
and Regulation - Regulatory Capital Requirements” and Note |7 at Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Equity Compensation Plan information

Following is a summary of the number of outstanding options, warrants and rights granted by Sovereign to employees and
other participants in equity compensation plans, as well as the number of securities remaining available for future issuance
under these plans as of December 31, 2002:

(@) (b) (©

Plan Category Number of securities to be Weighted-average exercise Number of securities
issued upon exercise of price of outstanding options, remaining available for
outstanding options, warrants warrants and rights future issuance under
and rights plans (excluding securities

reflected in column (a))

Equity compensation 9,247,191 $10.21 8,213,826

plans approved by
security holders ¢

Equity compensation 50,000 $8.40 0
plans not approved by
security holders @

Total 9,297,191 $10.20 8,213,826

(1) Consists of the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, the 1997 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan, the 1996 Stock Option Plan, the 1993 Stock Option Plan. and the 1986 Stock Option Plan.

(2) Consists of 50,000 options issued to an officer prior to his employment with the Company. The employee began employment approximately two weeks later with the Company at which time when the
Board of Directors approved the options, the Company's stock price had increased by $1.81 per share. Since no approved plans allow for the issuance of stock options whose exercise price is less than the
fair market value at the date of grant, these options were granted outside of plans approved by shareholders.

(3) Excludes the Company's Employee Stock Purchase Plan that has an approved reserve of 1,000,000 shares. Under this plan, substantially all employees of Sovereign are eligible to participate following completion
of one year of service and attaining age 21. Each eligible employee may purchase up to $25,000 of Common Stock annually (but limited 1o |5% of compensation per payrolt periad) at a purchase price per
share equal to 92.5% of the closing selling price per share of Common Stock on the payroll deduction date.

(4) Includes shares available for future issuance under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan and Restricted Stock Plan. As of December 3, 2002, an aggregate of 232,397 and 1,731,558 shares of Common Stock

were available for issuance under these plans.
The table does not include information for equity compensation plans assumed by the Company in connection with mergers and acquisitions of the companies which originally established those plans. As of

December 31, 2002 a total of 2,209,672 shares of the Company's Common Stock were issuable upon exercise of outstanding options under those assumed plans. The weighted average exercise price of those

outstanding options is $8.39 per share. No additional options may be granted under those assumed plans.
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item 6. Selected Financial Data.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA()

AT OR FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

20020 20010 2000 1999 1998

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Balance Sheet Data
TOtal BSSETS .ot $ 39,524,193 $ 35474838 $ 33,457,797 $ 26,607,112 $ 21913873
Loans, net of allowance ............... ..o 22,828,575 20,134917 21,655,889 14,155,479 11,448,968
Investment securities . ... 11,366,077 10,465,116 7,293,852 10,392,263 8,502,082
Deposits and other customer accounts ................. 26,784,980 23,297,574 24498917 12,012,675 12,460,022
Borrowings and long termdebt ........ ... .. s 8,829,289 8,939,770 6,240,308 12,370,109 7,764,933
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable

preferred securities of subsidiary trusts holding junior

subordinated debentures of Sovereign and minority

interest-preferred securities of subsidiaries ............ 596,957 604,528 458215 316,346 129,050
Stockholders' equity ... 2,764 318 2,202,481 1,948,884 1,821,495 1,204,068
Summary Statement of Operations
Total interestincome ... $ 2,059,540 $ 2222475 $ 2,269,735 $ 1607329 $ 135537
Total interest expense ..ot 899,924 1,168,193 1,414,924 992,673 861,759
Net iNterestinCome . .....ovvveirii i, 1,159,616 1,054,282 854,811 614,656 493,612
Provision forloanlosses ............................ 146,500 97,100 56,500 30,000 27961
Net interest income after provision for loan losses ... ..... 1,013,116 957,182 798,311 584,656 465,651
Total non-interest INCOME ... .o ottt 432,526 414,403 103,340 129,155 104,102
General and administrative expenses . .................. 820,107 777,285 726,090 391,837 325,410
Other Xpenses . ....vv v ieei i, 158,980 444355 281,793 53,360 33,137
Income/(loss) before income taxes

and extraordinary item ........ .. oo 466,555 149,945 {106,232) 268614 211,206
Income tax provision (benefit) ........................ 124,570 26,575 (65,215) 89,315 74751
Income/ (loss) before extraordinary item®@ .. ..., 341,985 123370 {41017 179,299 136,455
Extraordinary item (net of tax provision (benefit)

of $3,526in 2001 and of $(5,225)in2000) ........... - (6,549) 10,775 - -
Netincome/(loss)® .. ...... ... ... $ 341,985 $ 116,821 $ (30,242) $ {79,299 $ 136,455
Share Data®
Common shares outstanding at end of period

(inthousands) .........c..oiiiiiiii 261,624 247 470 226,501 225,408 159,665
Basic earnings/(loss) per share® .. ... .. ... ... $ 132 % 48 $ (3 3 102 3 88
Diluted earnings/ (loss) per share® . ................... $ 1.23 $ 45 $ (13) $ 1.0l $ 85
Common share price at end of period ................. $ 14.05 $ [2.24 $ 8.13 $ 7.45 3 14.25
Dividends declared per commonshare ................. $ 10 $ 10 $ 10 $ 10 $ 08
Selected Financial Ratios
Book value per common share® ... $ 10.57 $ 8.90 $ 8.60 $ 8.08 $ 7.54
Dividend payout ratio® .. ... ... 7.81% 22.22% -{19) 9.90% 9.40%
Return on average assets’”) ... ... ..o 9% 34% {19 75% T0%
Return on average equity® ... ... 13.50% 551% -{19 13.20% 12.42%
Average equity to average assets®) ... 6.71% 6.15% 5.83% 5.67% 5.60%

(1) All financial data has been restated to reflect all acquisitions which have been accounted for under the pooling-of-interests method of accounting.
(2) The results for the years ended 2002, 200!, 2000, 1999 and 1998 include after-tax merger-related, integration. and other special charges of $ 14 million ($0.05 per diluted share). $170 million

($0.66 per diluted share). $270 million ($1.20 per diluted share), $23 million ($0.13 per diluted share), and $34 million ($0.21 per diluted share). respectively.

(3) All per share data have been adjusted to reflect all stock dividends and stock splits.

{4) Effective January |, 2002. Sovereign adopted the fair value expense provisions of Statements of Financial Accounting Standards Nos. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation,” and 42, "Goodwill and

Other Intangible Assets.” See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staterments for further discussion regarding the impact to 2002 reported resufts of the change in accounting refated to these pronouncements,

{5) Book value per share is calculated using stockholders’ equity divided by common shares outstanding at end of period.

(6) Dividend payout ratio is calculated by dividing total dividends declared by net income for the period.

(7) Return on average assets is calculated by dividing net income by the average balance of total assets at the beginning and end of each period.

(8) Return on average equity is calculated by dividing net income by the average balance of stackholders' equity at the beginning and end of each period.

(9) Average equity to average assets is calculated by dividing the average balance of stockiolders' equity at the beginning and end of each period by the average balance of total assets at the beginning and end of each period.

(10) These ratios are not meaningful due to the net loss recognized for the year ended December 31, 2000.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A™).

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 AND 200!
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3,

2002 200!

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

NELINEEIEST INCOME .« o oo ettt ettt ettt e et e e e e e e e e e $ 1,159,606 $ 1,054,282
ProviSION for l0an 10SS8S .« ..o 146,500 97,100
Total NON-INTErEST INCOME L ottt e et e e e e e e e e 432,526 414,403
General and administrative EXPENSES . . . ... .ttt ettt e e e e e 820,107 777,285
OTNEr BXPENSES . . . o oot ottt e e 158,980 444355
Income before extraordinary Items . .. ... .t e 341,985 123370
N L COMIE © . ettt e et e e e e e e $ 340,985 $ 116,821
Basic @arnings Per Share ..« .. . e e $ 1.32 $ A48
Diluted earnings Per share .. ... . e $ 1.23 $ 45

The major factors affecting comparison of earnings between 2002 and 2001 were:

« Merger related and integration costs and other restructuring charges, which on an after-tax basis totaled $14 million in
2002 and $170 million in 2001, respectively.

e Increase in provision for loan losses.
< Acquisition of Main Street Bancorp, Inc.

= Adoption of Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation,” and
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

* Increase in net interest margin from 3.57% in 2001 to 3.61% in 2002 due to core deposit growth and an increase in
the level of our interest earning assets coming from internal generation of capital.

= Continued growth in consumer and commercial banking fee income.

= Reduction in mortgage banking fee revenues.

= Sale of retail branch locations in 2001 resulting in a gain of $28.1 million.
* Increase in realized gains on sales of investment securities.

The results for 2002 and 2001 include the effects of certain special items. These items should be considered in the comparison
of the annual results. The 2002 results include charges related to the Main Street Acquisition of $21.9 million consisting of
additional loan loss provision of $6 million ($3.9 million after-tax)and merger related expenses of $15.9 million ($10.3 million
after-tax). The 2001 results include charges of $10.1 million ($6.5 million after-tax) related to extinguishment of debt,

$8.5 million ($5.5 million after-tax) of restructuring charges related to the closure of 14 in-store offices and a redirection of
e-commerce efforts, and as more fully discussed in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, $243 million ($158 million
after-tax) for payments to FleetBoston, pursuant to the terms of a non-solicitation agreement. Total payments made to
FleetBoston under the non-solicitation agreement were $363 million. Sovereign expensed such payments ratably from the
completion of the acquisition in 2000 until final payment in September 2001.

The special items outlined above reduced diluted earnings per share by $0.05 and $0.66, respectively, for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Net Interest income. Net interest income for 2002 was $1.16 billion compared to $1.05 billion for 2001, or an increase
of 10%. The increase in net interest income in 2002 was due to an increase in interest-earning assets. The increase in our
assets was funded principally by the increase in low cost core deposits. Net interest margin (net interest income divided by
average interest-earning assets) was 3.61% for 2002 compared to 3.57% for 2001.

Interest on investment securities available for sale was $615 million for 2002 compared to $538 million for 2001. The increase
in interest income was due to the increase in the average balance of investment securities available for sale from $8.0 billion in
2001 to $10.1 billion in 2002, offset in part by a lower yield on these securities due to declining market interest rates.

Interest on investment securities held to maturity was $47 million for 2002 compared to $69 million for 2001. The average
balance of investment securities held to maturity was $749 million with an average yield of 6.28% for 2002 compared to an
average balance of $1.0 billion with an average yield of 6.76% for 2001,

Interest on loans were $1.39 billion and $1.61 billion for 2002 and 2001, respectively. The average balance of net loans was
$21.7 billion with an average yield of 6.45% for 2002 compared to an average balance of $20.9 billion with an average yield
of 7.75% for 2001. The decline in average yields year to year is due to the decrease of market rates experienced during 2002.
Approximately 36% of our loan portfolio reprices monthly or more frequently. In addition, the decrease in market interest
rates also resulted in higher prepayment experience on fixed rate loans with proceeds being reinvested in lower yielding
assets. The overall growth in loans from $20.4 billion at December 31, 2001 to $23.1 billion at December 31, 2002 resulted from
origination activity and purchases of bulk loans, principally in the consumer bank, as well as the acquisition of Main Street.

Interest on total deposits was $458 million for 2002 compared to $706 million for 2001. The average balance of total
deposits was $25.4 billion with an average cost of |.81% for 2002 compared to an average balance of $23.5 billion with an -
average cost of 3.00% for 2001. The increase in the average balance was due primarily to the success of marketing initiatives
to increase the amount of core deposits, such as our Extreme checking product, as well as the Main Street acquisition. The
decrease in average cost of deposits in 2002 is the result of the declining interest rate environment.

Interest on borrowings and long-term debt was $442 million for 2002 compared to $462 million for 2001. The average balance
of total borrowings and long-term debt was $8.6 billion with an average cost of 5.11% for 2002 compared to an average balance
of $8.0 billion with an average cost of 5.79% for 2001. The reduction in the cost of funds on borrowings and long-term debt

resulted principally from the lower rates on short-term sources of funding including repurchase agreements and overnight
FHLB advances.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Table | presents a summary on a tax equivalent basis of Sovereign's average balances, the yields earned on average assets
and the cost of average liabilities for the years indicated (in thousands):

TABLE [: NET INTEREST MARGIN

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001 2000
AVERAGE YIELD/ AVERAGE YIELD/ AVERAGE YIELD/
BALANCE INTEREST RATE BALANCE INTEREST RATE BALANCE INTEREST RATE
Interest-earning assets:
Interest-earning deposits ........... $ 202,482 $ 4,620 2.28% 3 65,002 $ 2522 3.88% $ 137,826 $ 22,158 16.08%
Investment securidest ')
available forsale ............... 10,079,134 630,097 6.25 7974688 548,430 6.88 6,840,799 496,922 726
held to maturity ............... 748,842 47,043 6.28 1,016,848 68,705 6.76 1,950,093 132,537 6.80
Loans:
Commercial .................. 9,481,973 559,152 5.90 8222120 624301 7.59 6,726,202 599,748 892
Consumer ... 1,745,575 520,216 6.71 6,613,152 513572 777 5,528,623 464,353 8.40
Residential mortgages . . ... 4,729,353 318,760 6.74 6,285,920 480,149 764 7,342,904 567,13% 772
Allowance for loan tosses . . . (287,141 - - (255,555} - - (185,875) - -
Netloans(D 21,670,760 1,398,128 645 20,865,637 1618022 775 19,411,854 1,631,240 840
Total interest-earning assets ......... 32,701,218 2,079,888 6.36 29922175 2,23767% 7.48 28,340,572 2,282,857 8.06
Non-interest-earning assets ......... 5,060,035 - - 4,552,095 - - 3,607,109 - -
Total assets ............. ST $ 37,761,253 $ 2,079,888 551% $ 34474270 $ 2237679 6.49% $ 3194768l $ 2282857 7.15%
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Demand deposit and NOW
BECOUMS .« v $ 9,311,827 $ 68,039 0.73% $ 7508165 $ 71,156 0.95% $ 5468164 $ 81,842 1.50%
Savings accounts . 2,990,231 38,413 1.28 2952,215 57,905 1.96 2,741,867 67,880 2.48
Money market accounts ......... 5,695,158 99,161 1.74 4,864,877 144,156 296 3,059.568 132,134 432
. Certificates of deposits ......... 7,363,172 252,674 3.43 8,194,540 432,669 5.28 7,935,943 453234 5.7
Total deposits ................. 25,360,988 458,287 1.81 23,520,197 705886 3.00 19,205,542 735,087 383
Total borrowings and long-term debt . 8,645,481 441,637 5.0 7,988,839 462,307 5.79 10,338,648 679,837 6.58
Total interest-bearing liabilities ... .. .. 34,006,469 899,924 265 31,509,036 1,168,193 371 29,544,190 1414924 479
Non-interest-bearing liabllites ....... 1,222,385 - - 843,660 - - 541,035 - -
Total liabifides ................. 35,228,854 899,924 255 32,352,696 1,168,193 361 30,085,225 1414924 4.70
Stockholders' equity ............ 2,532,399 - - 2,121,574 - - 1,862,456 - -
Total liabilities and stockholders'
QQUILY ..o $ 37,761,253 $ 899,924 238 $ 34474270 $ 1,168,193 339 $ 31947681 $ 1414924 4.43
Net interest spread® . .......... 3.12% 3.10% 27%
Taxable equivalent interest T
income/net interest margin ...... 1,179,964 3.61% 1,069,486 3.57% 867,933 3.06%
Tax equivalent basis adjustment ... ... (20,348) (15,204) (13,122)
Netinterestincome . ........... $ 1,159,616 $ 1054282 $ 854811
Ratio of interest-earning - - -
assets to interest- bearing liabilities . . . .96x .95x 96x

(1) Tax equivalent adjustments to irterest on investment securities available for sale for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were $15.4 million, $10.2 million and $9.5 million, respectively. Tax
equivalent adjustments to loans for the years ended December 31,2002, 2001 and 2000, were $4.9 million, $5.0 million and $3.6 million, respectively. Tax equivalent interest income is based upon an effective
tax rate of 35%.

(2) Amortization of net fees of $25.2 million, $29.7 million and §14.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. are included in interest income. Average loan balances include
non-accrual loans and loans held for sale.

(3) Represents the difference between the yield on total assets and the cost of total liabilities and stockholders’ equity.
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Table 2 presents, on a tax equivalent basis, the relative contribution of changes in volumes and changes in rates to changes in
net interest income for the periods indicated. The change in interest not solely due to changes in volume or rate has been
allocated in proportion to the absolute dollar amounts of the change in each (in thousands):

TABLE 2: VOLUME/RATE ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2002S. 2001 2001 VS. 2000
INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCREASE/(DECREASE)
VYOLUME RATE TOTAL YOLUME RATE TOTAL

Interest-earning assets:

Interest-earning deposits . ................ $ 3495 % (1,397 $ 2,098 % (8062) $ (1,574)  $ (19,636)

Investment securities avaitable for sale ... .. .. 134,935 (53,268) 81,667 79,046 (27.538) 51,508

Investment securities held to maturity ....... (17,104) (4,558) (21,662) (63,060) 772) (63,832)

Netloans) ... 60,474 (280,368) (219,894) 117,521 {130,739) (13,218)
Total interest-earning assets ................. (157,791) {45,178)
Interest-bearing liabilities:

Deposits ... 51,633 (299,232) (247,599) 146,961 (176.162) (29,201)

Borrowings ... 36,163 (56,833) (20,670) (142,384 (75.146) (217,530)
Total interest-bearing liabilities ............... (268,269) (246,731)
Net change in net interestincome ............ $ 94004 $ 16474 ¢ 110,478 § 120,868 % 80685 % 201,553

(1) Includes non-accruat foans and loans held for sale.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses is based upon credit loss experience and an estimation of
losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses for 2002 was $146.5 million compared to $97.1
million for 2001. The higher provision was required because of growth in loan portfolios, increased levels of non-performing
loans, and continued economic weakness resulting in charge-offs and current economic conditions. The overall aliowance as
a percentage of loans outstanding has remained relatively consistent, declining from 1.30% in 2001 to 1.29% in 2002.
Management regularly evaluates the risk inherent in its loan portfolio and increases its allowance for loan losses through
increases to its loan loss provision as deemed necessary.

Sovereign's net charge-offs for 2002 were $127.3 miltion and consisted of charge-offs of $162.6 million and recoveries of
$35.3 million. This compares to 2001 net charge-offs of $88.8 million consisting of charge-offs of $121.0 million and recoveries
of $32.2 million. The increase in charge-offs was driven by performance of our commercial loan portfolios where net charge-offs
increased from $43.0 million in 200! to $79.8 million in 2002. This increase in commercial charge-offs was significantly
impacted by one significant credit which resulted in a $15.5 million charge-off in 2002 as well as continued weakness in the
general business climate. Residential loan net charge-offs have increased $2.7 million from the prior year due to sales of
non-performing residential loans in the first and fourth quarters of 2002.

The ratio of net loan charge-offs to average loans, including loans held for sale, was .58% for 2002, compared to .42% for
2001. Commercial loan net charge-offs as a percentage of average commercial loans were .84% for 2002, compared to
.52% for 2001. Consumer loan net charge-offs as a percentage of average consumer loans were .51% for 2002, compared
to .62% for 2001. Residential real estate mortgage loan net charge-offs as a percentage of average residential mortgage loans,
including loans held for sale, were .16% for 2002 and .08% for 2001.

Other income. Total other income was $433 million for 2002 compared to $4 14 million for 2001. Several factors
contributed to the increase in other income as discussed below.

Consumer banking fees were $179 million for 2002 compared to $158 million in 2001. This increase was primarily due to an
expansion of our overall deposit base along with a favorable shift from time to core deposit products, increased cross selling
initiatives with existing customers and attracting new customers. The Company continues to aggressively promote demand
deposit products, which, in exchange for favorable minimum balance requirements and convenience for the customer, generally
produce higher fee revenues than time deposit products.
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Commercial banking fees were $95.1 million for 2002 compared to $75.8 million in 2001. This increase was due to growth in
both commercial loans and commercial core deposits, as well as increased cash management capabilities and product offerings.

Mortgage banking revenues were $28.6 million for 2002 compared to $69.5 million for 2001. The principal components of
mortgage banking revenues are gains from the sale or securitization of mortgage loans, servicing fees, amortization of mortgage
servicing rights and changes in the valuation allowance related to mortgage servicing rights. The primary factor contributing
to the decline in mortgage banking revenues was the reduction of gains on the sale or securitization of residential mortgage
loans. In 2001, the Company generated gains of $72.4 million related to sales and securitizations of mortgage loans. In 2002,
Sovereign had gains related to the sale and securitizations of mortgage loans of $43.8 million. At December 31, 2002, Sovereign
serviced $6. | billion of residential loans for others as compared to $5.1 billion at December 31, 2001. Sovereign’s related
mortgage servicing right capitalized asset was $55.5 million at December 31, 2002 and $50.7 million at December 31, 2001,
See Note 8 in the consolidated financial statements for a discussion on the valuation techniques utilized to estimate the fair
value of Sovereign’s mortgage servicing right capitalized asset, as well as the amount of mortgage servicing right impairment
charges and amortization that was recorded in 2002 and 2001. Servicing fee income was $15.8 million in 2002 compared to
$14.8 million in 2001.

The Capital Markets Group generated revenue of $15.0 million in 2002 and $11.2 million in 2001. The Capital Markets
Group was formed during 2000. Since inception, Sovereign has expanded its Capital Markets product offerings. Initially, we
provided risk management services for corporate clients including foreign exchange, investments and derivatives, and securitization
expertise. We have since added merger and acquisitions expertise to assist corporate clients. In November 2001, we
expanded our offerings with the formation of a broker dealer. In late 2002, Sovereign added an agency underwriting group
in Sarasota, Florida. We anticipate our capital markets revenues will continue to grow at an increased rate from 2002 levels
as we penetrate our existing customer base and develop new customer relationships.

Income from bank-owned life insurance ("BOLI") was $43.5 miillion for 2002 compared to $42.7 million for 200{. No purchases
of BOL! occurred during 2002.

Miscellaneous income was $19.6 million for 2002 compared to $42.2 million in 2001. 2001 results included a $28.1 million
gain related to the sale of branches located in southern New Jersey, Delaware and eastern Pennsylvania.

Net gains on sales of investment securities and related derivatives were $51.4 million for 2002, compared to $15.5 million
for 2001, The 2002 results include increased realized gains of available for sale investment securities. Included in 2002
results were impairment charges of $4.8 million related to our retained interests in securitizations and $4.0 million associated
with certain venture capital and equity investments. See Note 24 in the consolidated financial statements for a discussion

of our retained interests in securitized assets. Sovereign's venture capital and equity method investments portfolio totaled
$23.2 million at December 31, 2002. In 2001, as part of a balance sheet deleveraging strategy, Sovereign sold certain
investment securities and used the proceeds to pay off borrowings. Upon repayment of these borrowings, the related swaps
hedging these advances were terminated, resulting in a reclassification of $14.7 million of deferred losses out of accumulated
other comprehensive income into earnings. In these instances of balance sheet deleveragings, such hedge gains or losses are
netted against the offsetting security loss or gain.

Ceneral and Administrative Expenses. Total general and administrative expenses were $820 million for 2002
compared tc $777 million in 2001, or an increase of 6%. 2002 results included $10.4 million of stock option expense related
to the adoption of SFAS No. 123 and additional expenses due to the acquisition of Main Street Bancorp in March 2002.
Sovereign's efficiency ratio (all general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net interest income and recurring non-
interest income) for 2002 was 53.2% compared to 53.5% for 2001. If Sovereign had not adopted the expense provisions of
SFAS No. 123 related to stock options, the 2002 efficiency ratio would have been 52.6%.

Other Expenses. Total other expenses were $159 million for 2002 compared to $444 million for 2001. Other
expenses included amortization expense for intangible assets of $80.3 million for 2002 compared to $134 million for 2001.
The decrease in amortization expense resulted from the Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 142,”Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” which discontinued the amortization of indefinite lived intangible assets and goodwil! effective January |, 2002.
Amortization of goodwill recorded in 2001 was $30.9 million. Trust preferred securities and other minority interest expense
increased from $59.1 miltion in 2001 to $62.8 million in 2002.
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In November 2000, the Company announced a restructuring initiative. In addition to realigning the Office of the Chief
Executive Officer and the Company around customer channels, Sovereign analyzed front and back office operations and
computer operating platforms and eliminated approximately 500 positions. In total, Sovereign recorded $27 million in
restructuring costs, $8.5 million of which was recorded in 2001 related to the closure of 14 “in-store” offices and a redirection
of e-commerce efforts. The balance of the costs associated with this program was recorded in 2000. In connection with
the acquisition of Main Street Bancorp, Sovereign recorded charges of $15.9 million associated principally with the costs
incurred for consolidation of branches and Sovereign offices closed and account conversions.

As part of the New England Acquisition, Sovereign was required to pay $363 million over a period from January |, 200]
through September 2001, $120 million of which was expensed during 2000 and the remaining $243 million expensed in 2001
subject to FleetBoston's performance of non-solicitation obligations under the purchase agreement and satisfaction of certain
other conditions.

Income Tax Provision. The income tax provision was $125 million for 2002 compared to a provision of $27 million
for 2001. The effective tax rate for 2002 was 26.7% compared to 16.4% for 2001. The current year tax rate differs from
the statutory rate of 35% due in part to income from tax-exempt investments and income related to bank-owned life insurance.
The effective tax rate for 2001 is lower than the current year rate due to the high proportion of permanent tax differences in
relation to the recorded pretax income. For additional information with respect to Sovereign's income taxes, see Note 20 in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Extraordinary {tems. In March 2001, Sovereign completed a $400 million term and revolving credit facility with Bank
of Scotland of which $350 million was drawn to prepay an existing $350 million senior secured credit facility. In connection
with this transaction, Sovereign recorded a debt extinguishment loss of $10.1 million including the write-off of deferred
issuance costs. This charge was reflected, net of tax, as an extraordinary item in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Line of Business Results. During 2002, the Company established the following reportable segments: the Consumer
Bank, the Corporate Bank and Treasury & Other. For additional discussion of these business lines and the Company’s
related accounting policies, see Note 28 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company’s business lines are focused principally around the customers Sovereign serves. The Consumer Bank provides a
wide range of products and services to consumers including mortgage, automobile and other consumer loans and lines of
credits. The Consumer Bank also attracts deposits within its primary market area by offering a variety of deposit instruments
including demand and NOW accounts, money market and savings accounts, certificates of deposit and retirement savings
plans. The Corporate Bank originates small business and middle market commercial and asset-based loans and provides cash
management and capital markets services to customers in Sovereign’s market area. Treasury & Other includes interest
expense on Sovereign’s borrowings and debt, earnings from the investment portfolio, trust preferred securities and other
minority interest expense, amortization of intangible assets, merger-related and restructuring charges and certain unallocated
corporate income and expenses.

Segment results are derived from the Company's business unit profitability reporting system by specifically attributing managed
balance sheet assets, deposits and other liabilities and their related interest income or expense. Funds transfer pricing
methodologies are utilized to allocate a cost for funds used or a credit for funds provided to business line deposits, loans and
selected other assets using a matched funding concept. The provision for credit losses recorded by each segment is primarily
based on the net charge-offs of each line of business. The difference between the provision for credit losses recognized by
the Company on a consolidated basis and the provision recorded by the business lines at the time of charge-off is included in
Treasury & Other. Other income and expenses directly managed by each business line, including fees, service charges,
salaries and benefits, and other direct expenses as well as certain allocated corporate expenses are accounted for within
each segment's financial results. Designations, assignments and allocations may change from time to time as management !
accounting and business unit profitability reporting systems are enhanced or product lines change. During 2002, certain
organization and allocation methodology changes were made which enhanced the Company’s management reporting
systems and the information provided to the chief executive officer. In addition, designations, assignments and allocations
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may continue to change from time to time. Where practical, the results are adjusted to present consistent methodologies
for the segments. Accounting policies for the lines of business are the same as those used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements with respect to activities specifically attributable to each business line. However, the preparation of business
line results requires management to establish methodologies to allocate funding costs and benefits, expenses and other financial
elements to each line of business.

Consumer Bank net interest income increased $3.6 million to $904.3 million in 2002. The increase in net interest income
was principally due to loan growth, as well as an increase in low-cost deposits. The increase in non-interest income of $10.9
million to $245.6 million is due to an increase in fees related to Consumer Bank loans, other than mortgages, and deposits
generated in 2002, offset in part by a reduction in mortgage banking revenues. The provision for loan losses was $45.9 million
in 2002. General and administrative expenses (including allocated corporate and direct support costs) increased from $646.2
million to $650.2 million.

Corporate Bank net interest income increased $35.5 million to $259.3 million in 2002. The increase in net interest income
was principally due to loan growth. Non-interest income has increased by $1.9 million to $69.7 million. The provision for
loan losses increased to $80.4 million in 2002 as a result of increased provisions required for the commercial loan portfolio
due to the current economic environment and the increased level of non-performing assets. General and administrative
expenses (including allocated corporate and direct support costs) increased from $102.8 million to $131.0 million. The
increase was due in part to increased costs to support the Corporate Bank’s loan growth, as well as growth of the cash
management and capital markets businesses.

The net loss before income taxes for Treasury & Other decreased from $439.8 million in 2001 to $104.9 million in 2002.

In 2002, net interest income increased from net expense of $70.2 million to net expense of $4.1 million. In addition, the
Treasury & Other segment includes net gains on security and derivative transactions of approximately $5! million in 2002, as
compared to approximately $16 million recorded in 2001. The 2001 results also include expense of $243.2 million for the
payments pursuant to FleetBoston's non-solicitation obligations, as well as amortization of goodwill of $30.9 million. There
was no expense for non-solicitation payments to FleetBoston or goodwill amortization recorded pursuant to the Company’s
adoption of SFAS No. 142 in 2002.

ResuLTs OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AnD 2000

Net Interest Income. Net interest income for 2001 was $1.1 billion compared to $855 million for 2000, or an
increase of 23%. The increase in net interest income in 2001 was due to the full-year effect of the interest-earning assets
from the New England Acquisition, internal asset growth, and by the significant decline in interest rates throughout 2001.
The New England Acquisition added $8.0 billion to average loans and $6.9 billion to average deposits (replacing higher cost
FHLB borrowings) in 2000. Net interest margin (net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets) was 3.57%
for 2001, compared to 3.06% for 2000.

Interest on investment securities available for sale was $538 million for 200}, compared to $487 million for 2000. The increase
in interest income was due to the increase in average investment securities available for sale from $6.8 billion in 2000 to $8.0
billion in 2001, offset by lower interest income on investment securities available for sale due to declining interest rates.

Interest on investment securities held to maturity was $68.6 million for 2001 compared to $132.4 million for 2000. The average
balance of investment securities held to maturity was $1.0 biflion with an average yield of 6.76% for 200!, compared to an
average balance of $2.0 billion with an average yield of 6.80% for 2000. In 2000, in order to consummate the New England
Acquisition, the Company was required to hold in escrow until the final closing $1.3 billion in liquid short-term, low yielding
securities, which were classified as held to maturity. The release of those escrowed funds decreased the average balance for the
remainder of 2000 and all of 2001.

Interest on loans were $1.6 billion for both 2001 and 2000. The average balance of net loans was $20.9 billion with an
average yield of 7.75% for 2001 compared to an average balance of $19.4 billion with an average yield of 8.40% for 2000.
Although the New England Acquisition increased average loans by $8 billion in 2000, this growth in average loans was offset
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Interest on loans were $1.6 billion for both 2001 and 2000. The average balance of net loans was $20.9 billion with an
average vield of 7.75% for 2001 compared to an average balance of $19.4 billion with an average yield of 8.40% for 2000.
Although the New England Acquisition increased average loans by $8 billion in 2000, this growth in average loans was offset
by the conversion of $1.2 billion mortgage loans into mortgage-backed securities, strategic loan sales of $1.3 billion, and
runoff of certain portfolios due to management's desire to limit credit or interest rate exposure to certain loan types in the
economic environment at that time. The decline in average yields year to year is due to the decrease of market rates during
the year of 475 basis points.

Interest on total deposits was $706 million for 2001, compared to $735 million for 2000. The average balance of total
deposits was $23.5 billion with an average cost of 3.00% for 2001 compared to an average balance of $19.2 billion with an
average cost of 3.83% for 2000. The increase in the average balance was due primarily to the full-year effect of the New
England Acquisition, which added over $6.9 billion to average deposits during 2000. The decrease in average cost in 2001
mainly reflects the decrease in deposit rates due to market conditions.

Interest on borrowings and long-term debt was $462 million for 2001 compared to $680 million for 2000. The average balance
of total borrowings was $8.0 billion with an average cost of 5.79% for 2001 compared to an average balance of $10.3 billion
with an average cost of 6.58% for 2000.

Average non-interest earning assets were $4.6 billion for 2001, as compared to $3.6 billion for 2000, an increase of $1.0 billion.
The increase was due primarily to the full-year impact in 2001 of additions of non-earning assets during 2000, including $1.2

billion in goodwill and other intangibles from the New England Acquisition, an additional investment in bank owned life insurance
("BOLI") of $200 million.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses is based upon credit loss experience and an estimation of
losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses for 2001 was $97.1 million compared to $56.5
million for 2000. The higher provisioning was required because of loan growth during the year, an increase in problem loans,

and increased economic uncertainty. The overall allowance as a percentage of loans outstanding increased from 1.17% in
2000 to 1.30% in 2001.

Sovereign's net charge-offs for 2001 were $88.8 million, and consisted of charge-offs of $121 million and recoveries of $32.2
million. This compares to 2000 net charge-offs of $67.8 million consisting of charge-offs of $92.9 million and recoveries of
$25.1 million. Sovereign's increased level of commercial charge-offs in 2001 was related primarily to deterioration in a segment
of the portfolio concentrated in cash flow-based enterprise value lending, primarily in credits that were originated by other
banks and participated in by Sovereign. The increase in consumer charge-offs was due to a 7% increase in consumer loans
during 2001 and a general deterioration in the economic environment resulting in higher personal bankruptcies and larger
incidences of consumer loan losses.

The ratio of net loan charge-offs to average loans, including loans held for sale, was .42% for 2001, compared to .35% for
2000. Commercial loan net charge-offs as a percentage of average commercial loans were .52% for 2001, compared to
.48% for 2000. Consumer loan net charge-offs as a percentage of average consumer loans were .62% for 2001, compared
to .52% for 2000. Residential real estate mortgage loan net charge-offs as a percentage of average residential mortgage
loans, including loans held for sale, were .08% for 2001 and .09% for 2000.

Other Income. Total other income was $414 million for 2001, compared to $103 million for 2000. Several factors
contributed to the increase in other income as discussed below.

Consumer fees were $158 million for 2001, compared to $97 million in 2000. This increase was primarily due to a faverable
shift from time to core deposit products along with the full-year's impact of the New England Acquisition. Additionally, in
2001, the Company aggressively promoted demand deposit products, which, in exchange for favorable minimum balance
requirements and convenience for the customer, generally produce higher fee revenues than time deposit products.

Commercial fees were $75.8 million for 2001, compared to $36.9 million in 2000. This increase was due to growth in both
commercial loans and core deposits during the year augmented by a full year's impact of the New England Acquisition.
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Mortgage banking revenues were $69.5 million for 2001, compared to $25.2 million for 2000. Included in mortgage banking
revenues are gains of $72.4 million related to sales of mortgage loans as compared to gains of $14.9 million in 2000.

At December 31, 2001, Sovereign serviced $5.1 billion of residential loans for others as compared to $4.2 billion at
December 31, 2000. See Note 8 in the consolidated financial statements for a discussion of the amount of mortgage
servicing right impairment charges and amortization that was recorded in 2001 and 2000.

The Capital Markets Group generated revenue of $11.2 million in 2001 and $! .1 million in 2000. The Capital Markets
Group was created during 2000 in three phases. The first phase provided risk management services for corporate clients,
including foreign exchange, investments and derivatives, and securitization expertise for Sovereign's balance sheet assets.
The second phase added merger and acquisitions expertise to assist clients. The third phase, completed in November 2001,
included the formation of a broker dealer.

Income from bank-owned life insurance (“"BOLI") was $42.7 million for 2001, compared to $34.3 million for 2000.
This increase was primarily due to additional purchases of insurance consistent with growth in our business lines totaling
$200 million that was made during 2000.

Miscellaneous income increased $31.8 million to $42.2 million in 2001 due primarily to a $28.1 million gain related to the sale
of branches located in southern New Jersey, Delaware and eastern Pennsylvania. The impact of the sale did not significantly
impact results.

Net gains on sales of investment securities and related derivatives were $15.5 million for 2001, compared to a net loss of
$112 million for 2000. This improvement was due primarily to second and third quarter 2000 balance sheet deleveraging
transactions in which Sovereign sold $2.1 billion of available for sale mortgage-backed securities, resulting in losses of $103
million. Periodically, Sovereign wili sell certain investment securities and use the proceeds to pay off borrowings. Upon
repayment of the short-term advances, related swaps hedging these instruments may be terminated. in these instances of
balance sheet deleveraging, such hedging gains or losses are netted against the offsetting security loss or gain. Net

gains/ (losses) on investments were $30.2 million and ($120.9) million for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, and net gains/ (losses) on related derivative contracts were ($14.7) million and $9.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Sales of available for-sale investment securities have little impact on stockholders'
equity as unrealized gains and losses on these securities are recognized as market values change and are recorded as an increase
or decrease in the other comprehensive income component of stockholders' equity in accordance with SFAS No. | 15.

General and Administrative Expenses. Total general and administrative expenses were $777 million for 200
compared to $726 million in 2000, including $149 million of merger-related and other special charges in 2000 as described
below. This increase was due primarily to the full-year impact in 2001 of the New England Acquisition, which increased
compensation and benefits expenses by approximately 3,700 staff and management personnel that were added throughout
2000, increased occupancy and equipment expenses for the additional 281 community banking offices acquired, increased
technology expenses due to the expanded network and back office platforms built to support the New England Acquisition,
and increased other administrative expenses resulting from the acquisition. These expenses were reflected in 2000 results
from each of the respective three closing dates. See Note 3 - Business Combinations in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for more details on the New England Acquisition. Sovereign's efficiency ratio (all general and administrative
expenses as a percentage of net interest income and recurring non-interest income) for 200 was 53.5%, compared to
67.9% for 2000. The 2000 rate is not comparable due to merger-related, integration and other charges related to recent
acquisitions of $149 million that were included in general and administrative expenses. These special charges include
expenses directly attributable to the acquired SBNE branches, indirect costs incurred to integrate recent acquisitions into
Sovereign's back office systems, costs that management considered redundant due to separating the New England
Acquisition from a single closing into three separate closings, and expenses related to the structured real estate transaction
that involved properties utilized by SBNE.

Other Expenses. Total other expenses were $444 million for 2001 compared to $282 million for 2000. Other
expenses included amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets of $134 million for 2001 compared to $98.9 million
for 2000, and trust preferred securities expense of $59.1 miflion for 2001 compared to $44.3 million for 2000. The increase
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in amortization expense is due to the New England Acquisition, which added $1.1 billion to Sovereign's intangible assets. In
November 2000, the Company announced the results of a restructuring initiative. Sovereign analyzed front and back office
operations and computer operating platforms and eliminated approximately 500 positions. In total, Sovereign recorded $27
million in restructuring costs, $8.5 million of which was recorded in the first quarter 2001 related to the closure of 14 “in-store”
offices and a redirection of e-commerce efforts, and the remainder of which was recorded in 2000, and was comprised of
$14 million of severance and outplacement costs, and a $4.5 million write-off of a redundant computer-operating platform.

As part of the New England Acquisition, Sovereign was required to pay $363 million over a period from January |, 2001
through September 2001, $120 million of which was expensed during 2000, and the remaining $243 million was expensed in

2001 subject to FleetBoston's performance of non-solicitation obligations under the purchase agreement and satisfaction of
certain other conditions.

Income Tax Provision. The income tax provision was $26.6 million for 2001, compared to a tax benefit of $65.2 million
for 2000. The effective tax rate for 2001 was 16.4%, compared to (66.5%) for 2000. Certain components of Sovereign's
income are not subject to tax, including income of $29.1 million related to tax-exempt investments and income of $42.7 million
related to Bank-owned life insurance. The effective tax rates for 2001 and 2000 are not comparable due to the high proportion
of permanent tax differences, in relation to the recorded pretax income or loss. For additional information with respect to
Sovereign's income taxes, see Note 20 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Extraordinary ftems. In March 2001, Sovereign completed a $400 million term and revolving credit facility with Bank
of Scotland, of which $350 million was drawn to prepay an existing $350 million senior secured credit facility. In connection
with this transaction, Sovereign wrote-off $6.5 million net of tax ($10.1 million pre-tax) of deferred issuance costs remaining
from the existing line of credit. These costs were reflected net of tax as an extraordinary item in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

During the first quarter of 2000, Sovereign sold FHLB advances, which resulted in a pretax gain of $16.0 million ($10.8 million
after-tax), and was treated as an extraordinary item in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Critical Accounting Policies. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the Company’s Financial Condition and
Resuits of Operations is based on the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes that have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”). Our significant accounting policies
are described in Note | to the consolidated financial statements. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Certain policies inherently have a greater reliance on the use of estimates, assumptions, and judgements and, as such, have a
greater possibility of producing results that could be materially different than originally reported. However, the Company is
not currently aware of any reasonably likely events or circumstances that would result in materially different results. We
have identified accounting for the allowance for loan losses, securitizations, and goodwill as our most critical accounting policies
and estimates in that they are important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results, and they require management’s

most difficult, subjective or complex judgments as a resuft of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are
inherently uncertain.

The Company’s senior management has reviewed these critical accounting policies and estimates and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis regarding them with its audit committee. Information concerning the Company’s implementation
and impact of new accounting standards issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) is discussed in Note 2.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses represents management’s best estimate of probable losses
inherent in the loan portfolio. The adequacy of Sovereign's allowance for loan losses is regularly evaluated. This evaluation
process is subject to numerous estimates and applications of judgment. Management’s evaluation of the adequacy of the
allowance to absorb loan losses takes into consideration the risks inherent in the loan portfolio, past loan loss experience, specific
loans which have loss potential, geographic and industry concentrations, delinquency trends, economic conditions, the level of
originations and other relevant factors. Management also considers loan quality, changes in the size and character of the loan
portfolio, amount of non-performing loans, and industry trends. Changes in these estimates could have a direct impact on
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the provision for loan losses recorded in the income statement and could result in a change in the recorded allowance. The
loan portfolio also represents the largest asset on our consclidated balance sheet. Note | to the consolidated financial
statements describes the methodology used to determine the allowance for loan losses and a discussion of the factors driving
changes in the amount of the allowance for [oan losses is included in the Credit Risk Management section of this MD&A.
During the year ended December 31, 2002, we experienced an increase in our net credit losses and delinquency rates. If
such experience continues, higher loss experience could result in the future, resulting in increased provision for loan losses.

Securitizations. Securitization is a process by which a legal entity issues certain securities to investors, which securities
pay a return based on the cash flows from a pool of loans or other financial assets. Sovereign has securitized mortgage
loans, home equity loans, and other consumer loans, as well as automotive floor plan loans that it originated and/or
purchased from certain other financial institutions. After receivables or loans are securitized, the Company continues to
maintain account relationships with its customers. As a result, the Company continues to consider these securitized assets
to be part of the business it manages. Sovereign may provide administrative, liquidity facilities and/or other services to the
resulting securitization entities, and may continue to service the financial assets sold to the securitization entity. During 2000,
the Company acquired the servicing responsibilities and retained interests related to home equity, boat and recreational vehicle
loans which were previously securitized as part of the New England Acquisition.

In the case where Sovereign transferred financial assets to a special purpose entity, a decision must be made as to whether
that transfer should be considered a sale and whether the assets transferred to the special purpose entity should be consolidated
into the Company’s financial statements or whether the non-consolidation criteria have been met according to generally
accepted accounting purposes. The accounting guidance governing sale and consolidation of securitizated financial assets is
included in SFAS No. 140. In addition, in January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable
Interests.” See Note 2 to the consolidated financia! statements for a discussion of the impact of this new pronouncement
on Sovereign.

Accounting for the valuation of retained interests in securitizations requires management judgement since these assets are
established and accounted for based on discounted cash flow modeling techniques that require management to make estimates
regarding the amount and timing of expected future cash flows, including assumptions about loan repayment rates, credit loss
experience, and servicing costs, as well as discount rates that consider the risk involved. Because the values of these assets
are sensitive to changes to assumptions, the valuation of retained interests is considered a critical accounting estimate. Note
I and Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements include further discussion on the accounting for these assets as well
as to provide sensitivity analysis showing how the fair value of these assets would respond to adverse changes in the key
assumptions utilized to value these assets.

Goodwill. The purchase method of accounting for business combinations requires the Company to make use of estimates
and judgements to allocate the purchase price paid for acquisitions to the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. The excess of the purchase price of an acquired business over fair value of the assets and liabilities represents
goodwill. Goodwill totaled $1.0 billion at December 31, 2002.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 42, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” on January |, 2002. This statement provides
that goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible assets will no longer be amortized on a recurring basis, but rather will be
subject to periodic impairment testing. Other than goodwill, Sovereign has no indefinite lived intangible assets. Prior to
adopting SFAS No. 142, the Company amortized goodwill over periods not exceeding 25 years.

The impairment test for goodwill requires the Company to compare the fair value of business reporting units to their carrying
value including assigned goodwill. SFAS No. 142 requires an initial impairment test within six months after adoption and
annually thereafter. In addition, goodwill is tested more frequently if changes in circumstances or the occurrence of events
indicate impairment potentially exists. The Company performed the initial adoption impairment test during the second
quarter of 2002. During the fourth quarter of 2002, Sovereign updated its impairment analysis. No charge for impairment
of goodwill was required under the provisions of SFAS No. 142,

Determining the fair value of its reporting units requires management to allocate assets and liabilities to such units and make
certain judgments and assumptions related to various items, including discount rates, future estimates of operating resuilts, etc.
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If alternative assumptions or estimates had been used, the fair value of each reporting unit determined by the Company may
have been different. However, management believes that the estimates or assumptions used in the goodwill impairment
analysis for its business units were reasonable.

Formation of Sovereign Bank New England Division. On February 28, 2000, Sovereign entered into an amended
purchase and assumption agreement with FleetBoston Financial to acquire a business consisting of branch banking offices located
in Connecticut, Massachusetts, New Harmpshire and Rhode island, and related deposit iiabilities, loans and other assets associated
with the business of those branches (the “New England Acquisition™). In total, the Bank purchased 281 community banking
offices (exclusive of 4 locations which were resold to a third party). The New England Acquisition, which resulted in the
creation of the Sovereign Bank New England division of Sovereign Bank, included the former Fleet Bank community banking
franchise in eastern Massachusetts, the entire former BankBoston community banking franchise in Rhode Island, and select
community banking offices of Fleet Bank in southern New Hampshire and BankBoston in Connecticut. In addition, Sovereign
acquired a substantial portion of the middle market and small business lending group of Fleet Bank in Massachusetts and New
Hampshire, and of BankBoston in Rhode Island and Connecticut. The New England Acquisition included the purchase of
fully functioning business units, with the necessary management, relationship officers, support staff and other infrastructure
for the acquired loans and deposits to be fully serviced.

Sovereign completed the New England Acquisition in three phases during 2000. Sovereign's results include the operations of
these acquired branches, assets and liabilities from their respective acquisition dates, and thereafter. Total liabilities assumed
through the acquisition were $12.3 billion. Additionally, tangible assets purchased by Sovereign included loan balances of
$9.1 billion, which included $3.1 billion of commercial loans and leases, $1.7 billion of consumer loans and $4.3 billion of
residential mortgages (inclusive of $1.1 billion of residential mortgage loans which were not relationship assets that were
subsequently sold as part of the Bank's asset-liability management strategy to reduce interest-rate risk), $85 million of currency,
$68 million of premises and equipment, $180 million of precious metals inventory and $213 million of prepaid and other
miscellaneous assets. Cash received, net of the premium paid, was $1.9 billion.

Total consideration for the New England Acquisition was 12% of acquired deposits less agreed upon reductions. The premium
included $848 million, which was paid as of the final closing on July 2, 2000, and $363 million, paid in periodic instaliments
from January 2001 through September 2001 upon FleetBoston's performance of non-solicitation obligations specified under
the purchase agreement and satisfaction of certain other conditions. These payments related to the non-solicitation agreement
were recorded as expense ratably from the completion of each segment of the New England Acquisition in March, June and
July of 2000 through the completion of the payments. The New England Acquisition resulted in total goodwill of $826
million after taking into consideration fair value adjustments on acquired assets of $163 million, establishment of an initial
allowance for loan losses of $135 million, direct costs associated with the acquisition of $32 million, and the $352 million of
purchase price allocated to core deposit intangible.

FinanciaL CONDITION

Loan Portfolio. Sovereign's loan portfolio at December 31, 2002 was $23.1 billion, compared to $20.4 billion at
December 31, 2001, and was comprised of $10.3 billion of commercial loans, $8.5 billion of consumer loans and $4.3 billion
of residential loans. This compares to $8.6 billion of commercial loans, $6.8 billion of consumer loans, and $5.0 billion of
residential loans at December 31, 2001,

Commercial loans grew by 20% during 2002 to $10.3 billion principally due to loan origination activity as well as acquisition
of commercial loans as part of the Main Street transaction. Consumer loans grew by 25% in 2002 to $8.5 billion as a result
of loan origination activity as well as loan purchases.

Residential loans decreased to 19% of the total loan portfolio at December 31, 2002 as compared to 25% at December 31, 2001.
This reduction is due to an increase in loan prepayments and refinancing activity due to the decline in mortgage interest
rates, as well as the securitization of approximately $565 million of adjustable rate mortgages in December 2002 (see
additional discussion of this transaction in Note 24 to the Consoclidated Financial Statements). Loan sales or conversion into
mortgage-backed securities amounted to $0.9 billion during 2002, compared with sales or conversions of $4.1 billion during 2001.
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Table 3 presents the composition of Sovereign's loan portfolio by type of loan and by fixed and variable rates at the dates
indicated (in thousands):

TABLE 3: COMPOSITION OF LOAN PORTFOLIO

AT DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
BALANCE PERCENT BALANCE PERCENT BALANCE PERCENT BALANCE PERCENT BALANCE PERCENT
Commercial real estate foans ...... ... $ 3,883,421 16.8% $ 2987747 146% $ 2793616 127%  $1,516,953 106% $ 887938 7.7%
Commercial and industrial loans ... .. 5,007,045 21.6 4,506,198 22,1 4,397,009 20.1 1,690,744 1.8 717,440 6.2
Other  oovviiii 1,370,181 6.0 1,069,658 52 959,564 44 1,156,499 8.1 946,198 8.1
Total Commercial Loans ,......... 10,260,647 44.4 8,563,603 41.9 8,150,189 372 4364,196 30.5 2.551,576 220
Home equity loans . ............... 5,165,834 223 3,756,391 184 3256318 149 1,957,945 137 1,750,883 15.1
Auoloans . ... 3,038,976 13.1 2,733,106 13.4 2,172,403 99 1934377 135 1,510,676 130
Other ... 314,356 1.4 341,265 1.7 354,478 16 287,463 21 296,632 26
Total Consumer Loans ........ 8,519,166 36.8 6.830,762 335 5,783,199 264 4,179.785 293 3,558,191 307
Residential real estate foans .......... 4,347,512 18.8 5005219 246 7978857 364 5,744 484 40.2 5,473,003 47.3%
Totalloans ........oooevii. $23,127,325 100.0% $20,399.584 100.0% $ 21,912,245 100.0%  $14.288465 1000% $ 11,582,770 100.0%
Total Loans with:
Fixed rates ................. $13,599,898 58.8% $12.875742 63.1% $ 14,165,535 64.6%  $8769.876 614% $ 6095088 52.6%
Variable rates . .............. 9,527,427 41.2 7523842 369 7746710 35.4 5518589 386 5.487.682 474
Total Loans .........ooovnnn. $23,127,325 100.0% $20,399.584 100.0% $ 21912245 100.0%  $14,288.465 100.0% $ 11.582.770 100.0%

Table 4 presents the contractual maturity of Sovereign's commercial loans at December 31, 2002(in thousands):

TABLE 4: LOAN MATURITY SCHEDULE

AT DECEMBER 31,2002, MATURING

IN ONEYEAR ONETO AFTER
OR LESS FIVEYEARS FIVEYEARS TOTAL

Commercial real estate 10ans .. .. ... oo $ 893,123 $ 1,228,769 $ 1,761,529 $ 3883421
Commercial and industrial loans .. ... v 2227147 1,558,379 1,221,519 5,007,045
Other commercial ... ... 434,030 659,672 276,479 1,370,181

Lo $ 3554300 $ 3446820 $ 3259527 $ 10,260,647
Loans with:

FiXed Fates . .o $ 263,030 $ 1198758 $ 1,681,003 $ 3,142,791

Variable rates ... 3,291,270 2,248,062 1,578,524 7,117,856

TOta e $ 3554300 $ 3446820 $ 3259527 $ 10,260,647

Investment Securities. Sovereign's investment portfolio is concentrated in mortgage-backed securities and collateralized
mortgage obligations issued by federal agencies or private label issues. The portfolio is concentrated in |5-year contractual
life mortgage-backed securities backed by FINMA, FHLMC and other non agency issuers. Sovereign’s strategy is to purchase
liquid investments with intermediate maturities (average life of 4-5 years). This strategy helps ensure that the Bank’s overall
interest rate risk position stays within policy requirements. The effective duration of the total investment portfolio at
December 31, 2002 was 1.6 years, versus 3.6 years at December 31, 2001, The decline in duration resulted from increased
pre-payment activity in 2002, as well as, in part, our asset and liability management strategy to reduce the duration of our
investment portfolic during the current low interest rate environment. Sovereign also holds $257 million of corporate trust
preferred securities, all with maturities in excess of 10 years.
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In determining if and when a decline in market value below amortized cost is other-than-temporary, Sovereign evaluates the
market conditions, offering prices, trends of earnings, price multiples, and other key measures for investments in marketable
equity securities and debt instruments. When such a decline in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary, an impairment
loss is recognized in current period operating results to the extent of the decline.

During 2002 and 2001, the Company converted $776 million and $1.6 billion, respectively, of residential mortgage loans into
mortgage-backed securities. The book value of these loans was reclassified from loans to investment securities upon securitization.
Classification as available for sale or held to maturity was determined as discussed below.

Investment Securities Available for Sale. Securities expected to be held for an indefinite period of time are classified
as avalilable for sale and are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported as a separate component of
stockholders' equity, net of estimated income taxes. Substantially, all our securities have readily determinable market prices that
are derived from third party pricing services. Decisions to purchase or sell these securities are based on economic conditions,
including changes in interest rates, fiquidity, and asset/liability management strategies. For additional information with respect to
the amortized cost and estimated fair value of Sovereign's investment securities available for sale, see Note 6 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The actual maturities of mortgage-backed securities available for sale will differ from contractual maturities
because borrowers may have the right to prepay obligations without prepayment penalties. During 2002, the Company
recorded impairment charges of $4.8 million on retained interests in securitized assets that are classified as available for sale.

Investment Securities Held to Maturity. Securities that Sovereign has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are
classified as held to maturity and reported at amortized cost. This portfolio is primarily comprised of U.S. Treasury and
government agency securities; corporate debt securities; mortgage-backed securities issued by FHLMC, FNMA, the
Government National Mortgage Association (“GNMA"), and private issuers; and collateralized mortgage obligations.

On January |, 2001, Sovereign reclassified $800 million of held to maturity investments to available for sale investments as
allowed upon adoption of SFAS No. 133.

The actual maturities of the mortgage-backed securities heid to maturity will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers
may have the right to call or repay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. No impairment associated with
held-to-maturity securities was recorded in 2002 or 2001.

Table 5 presents the book value of investment securities by obligation and Table 6 presents the securities of single issuers
{other than obligations of the United States and its political subdivisions, agencies and corporations) having an aggregate
book value in excess of 10% of Sovereign's stockholders' equity that were held by Sovereign at December 31, 2002 (dollars in
thousands):

TABLE 5: INVESTMENT SECURITIES BY OBLIGOR

AT DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 2000

Investment securities available for sale:

US. Treasury and government agency SBCUMLIES . ..........oo.iieniet i $ 6,196,844 $ 6649220 $ 765,880

State and municipal SECUMLIES ... ..o 23,554 24392 38,769

e SBCUNLES . ottt 4513,166 2,908,067 4510935
Total investment securities available forsale ......... ... .. . $ 10,733,564 $ 9581679 $ 5315584
investment securities held to maturity:

US. Treasury and government agency SECUMtIBS . .............viviitvineieinien i, $ 626,498 $ 874,059 $ 1568907

State and mUNICIPal SECUMIES . ..o\ttt e 2,069 4,128 739

OHREr SECUMLES « . ettt e e et e e e e e 3,946 5,250 408,622
Total investment securities held to maturity ... $ 632513 $ 883,437 $ 1978268
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TABLE 6: INVESTMENT SECURITIES OF SINGLE ISSUERS

AT DECEMBER 31, 2002

AMORTIZED FAIR
COsT YALUE
Conseco (0 $ 561,670 $ 552,604
Salomon SMith Barmey TrUSE . . ..o e e e 501,319 509,798
Wells Fargo . oo 364,252 373,705
SAS D L e 276,192 283,510
TOta) L oot $ 1,703,433 $ 1,789,617

(1) The Conseco bonds are all Aaa rated asset-backed securities. They are backed by manufactured housing loans and as of December 31,2002 and credit enhancement in the investments exceed 30%. The
securities we hold were issued in 2002 and have performed according to our expectations. In the event that Conseco cannot perform its duties to service the loans. a hot servicer backup would perform

these responsibilities.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets. Goodwill and other intangible assets increased to $1.37 billion at December 31,
2002, from $1.34 billion in 2001. Goodwill and other intangibles represented 3% of total assets and 50% of stockholders'
equity at December 31, 2002, and is comprised of goodwill of $1.0 billion and core deposit intangible assets of $0.3 billion.
The increase in goodwill and other intangible assets was due to the goodwill and intangible assets recorded in connection
with the Main Street acquisition offset by core deposit intangible asset amortization of $80 million. Through December 31,
2001, Sovereign was amortizing goodwill over periods up to 25 years. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 142, Sovereign ceased
amortization of goodwill.

Sovereign established core deposit intangibles (CDI) in instances where low-cost deposits were acquired in purchase
business combinations. Sovereign determined the value of its CDI based on the present value of the difference in expected
future cash flows between the cost to replace such deposits (based on applicable equivalent time deposit rates) versus the
then-current yield on core deposits acquired. The aggregate future cash flows were based on the average expected life of
the deposits acquired for each product less cost to service the deposits. This intangible is amortized on an accelerated or
straight line basis over the expected life of the underlying deposit, which is generally 10 years.

Premises and Equipment, Accrued interest, BOLI and Other Assets. Premises and equipment increased
from 2001 due to $37 million of capital expenditures, the transfer of $26 million of in process items to fixed assets upon
completion of projects, as well as the assets acquired in the Main Street acquisition totaling $26 million, offset by depreciation
of $49.5 million as well as fixed asset sales of approximately $9 million. Accrued interest receivable decreased $8.6 million
due to the decreased yield on loans. BOLI increased from the prior year by $41.3 million due to the acquisition of Main
Street Bancorp. No purchases of BOLI occurred in 2002. Other assets at December 31, 2002 were $1.8 billion compared
to $1.5 billion at December 31, 2001. Included in other assets at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001 were
$467 million and $546 million of loans in process, $362 million and $212 million of assets associated with our precious
metals business, and deferred taxes of $125 million and $111 million, respectively.

Deposits and Other Customer Accounts. Sovereign attracts deposits within its primary market area by offering a
variety of deposit instruments, including demand and NOW accounts, money market accounts, savings accounts, certificates of
deposit and retirement savings plans. Total deposits at December 31, 2002 were $26.8 billion, compared to $23.3 billion at
December 31, 2001. The increase in deposits is attributable to Sovereign's continued emphasis on strategies to grow core
deposits and limit higher priced time deposits, as well as the deposit relationships acquired as part of the Main Street transaction.
Core depasits increased in 2002 by $3.7 billion while time deposits declined by $0.2 billion. Same store core deposits grew
by $3.2 billion, or 20%, in 2002. Comparative detail of average balances and rates by deposit type is included in Table I: Net
Interest Margin in a prior section of this MD&A.

28 | Sovereign Bancorp




Borrowings. Sovereign utilizes short-term borrowings as a source of funds for its asset growth and its asset/liability
management. Collateralized advances are available from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (“FHLB") provided
certain standards related to creditworthiness have been met. Other sources of funds available to Sovereign include federal
funds, and reverse repurchase agreements. Reverse repurchase agreements are short-term obligations collateralized by
investment securities. Total borrowings at December 31, 2002 were $3.0 billion, compared to $2.7 billion at December 31,
2001. The increase in short-term borrowings was due to more attractive funding costs, in these funding scurces versus retail
and jumbo time deposits.

Table 7 summarizes information regarding short-term securities sold under repurchase agreements and short-term FHLB
advances (in thousands):

TABLE 7: DETAILS OF BORROWINGS

DECEMBER 31,
Securities sold under repurchase agreements: 2002 2001
Balance e $ 1383300 $ 297741
Weighted average iNTEreStIate ... .. ..o\ttt et e ettt e e e 0.38% 1.45%
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end duringthe year ........ ... . i $ 1,383,300 $ 398850
Average amount outstanding during the Year .. .. ... ... i $ 517,309 $ 83,046
Weighted average interest rate during the year . ... ... ... 0.97% 1.45%
Federal Funds Purchased:
Balance . - 452,002
Weighted average intereSt rate ... ... ... ..t ~% 1.75%
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the year ............... i $ 335,000 $ 850,000
Average amount outstanding during the year . ... ... $ 118313 $ 186,199
Weighted average interest rate during the Year .. ... ... e 1.70% 3.29%
FHLB advances:
BalanCE . $ 1,602,500 $ 1,929,021
Weighted average IntereSt rale ........... . ... oottt e e 1.56% 3.08%
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end duringtheyear .......... ... ... i $ 2,845,000 $ 3,555,000
Average amount outstanding dUring the YEAr .. ...ttt et e e $ 2041125 $ 2,119,833
Weighted average interest rate during the YEar ... ...ttt e e 204% 4.18%

Refer to Note |2 in the Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements for more information related to Sovereign's borrowings.

Long-Term Debt. Total long-term debt includes obligations with original maturities at issuance of more than one
year. At December 31, 2002, long-term debt was $5.8 billion, compared to $6.3 billion at December 31, 2001. The decrease in
long-term debt was due to scheduled repayments, as well as a shift to short-term reverse repurchase agreements and FHLB
advances to achieve a lower overall cost of funds. See Note |3 in the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information
related to Sovereign's long-term debt.

During 2001, Sovereign was party to various long-term financing transactions. On November 20, 2001, a consolidated special
purpose entity issued $82! million of asset-backed floating rate notes. On March 1, 2001, Sovereign refinanced the $500 million
senior secured credit facility with a $400 million variable rate senior secured credit facility consisting of a $350 million revolving
line and a $50 million term note. On February 20, 2001, Sovereign issued $175 million of senior unsecured notes at 8.625%
that will mature on March 15, 2004. The proceeds of this issuance, along with the proceeds of $150 million from the 20 million
shares of common stock issued on February 9, 2001, were used to repay $240 mitlion of 6.625% senior notes that matured
on March 15, 2001 and strengthened Sovereign's liquidity.
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In March 2003, Sovereign completed a tender offer for its outstanding 8.625% Senior Notes due March 2004 ("8.625%
Notes") and its outstanding 10.25% Senior Notes due May 2004 ("10.25% Notes"). This offer, was priced at $1,062.50 for
each $1,000 principal amount of the 8.625% Notes and $1,091.25 for each $1,000 principal amount of the 10.25% Notes.
As of the close of the tender offer on March 4, 2003, $139.2 million of the 8.625% Notes and $162.4 million of the 10.25%
Notes had been tendered and not withdrawn. In accordance with the terms of the tender offer, Sovereign has accepted for
payment all 8.625% and 10.25% Notes that have been validly tendered prior to the expiration of the tender offer. The
Company will record a debt extinguishment loss on this transaction in the first quarter of 2003.

In March 2003, Sovereign Bank completed the issuance of $500 million of subordinated notes. The notes will have a coupon
of 5.165% and will mature as of March 15, 2013. The subordinated debt qualifies as Tier 2 regulatory capital for Sovereign
Bank and Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.

Trust Preferred Securities. Sovereign has outstanding $3%6 million ($50! million redemption value) of mandatorily
redeemable trust preferred obligations that have stated maturities ranging from 2027 through 2031, and have stated dividends
of 7.50% to 9.875% of par value. On December 10, 2001, Sovereign issued $100 million of Trust Preferred Securities with
an annual dividend rate of 8.75%. In 2002 and 2001, Sovereign repurchased a portion of its Trust Preferred Securities. The
difference between carrying amount and redemption value of the Trust Preferred Securities is being accreted into expense
over the life of the securities using the level yield method. See Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a more
detailed discussion on Sovereign's Trust Preferred Securities.

Securitization Transactions. Securitization transactions contribute to Sovereign's overall funding and regulatory capital
management. These transactions involve periodic transfer of loans or other financial assets to special purpose entities (SPE’s)
and are either recorded on Sovereign's Consolidated Balance Sheet or off-balance sheet depending on whether the transaction
qualifies as a sale of assets in accordance with SFAS No. 140, “Transfers of Financial Assets and Liabilities”.

In certain transactions, Sovereign has transferred assets to a special purpose entity qualifying for non-consolidation (QSPE), and
has accounted for the transaction as a sale in accordance with SFAS No. 140. Sovereign also has retained interests and servicing
assets in the QSPEs. At December 31, 2002, off-balance sheet QSPEs had $1.4 billion of debt related to assets that Sovereign
sold to the QSPEs that are not included in Sovereign's Consolidated Balance Sheet. Sovereign's retained interests and servicing
assets in such QSPEs was $124 million at December 31, 2002, and this amount represents our maximum exposure to credit
losses related to unconsolidated securitizations. This amount is classified in investments available for sale on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. Sovereign does not provide contractual legal recourse to third party investors that purchase debt or equity
securities issued by the QSPEs beyond the credit enhancement inherent in Sovereign's subordinated interests in the QSPEs.
See the discussion in our “Critical Accounting Policies” section of this MD&A, and Note 24 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for a discussion of Sovereign's policies concerning valuation and impairment for such interests, as well as a discussion
of the assumptions used and sensitivity to changes in those assumptions.

In a transaction consummated in November 2001, the “November 2001 transaction,” Sovereign accessed the liquidity of
international markets and transferred $957 million of indirect automobile loans to SPEs. The transaction is considered a
financing transaction under SFAS No. 140 and, therefore, the SPEs are consolidated in Sovereign’s financial statements. At
December 31, 2002, Sovereign had $821 million of debt and $64 million of minority interest reflected on its consolidated
balance sheet related to consolidated SPEs.

Additionally, Sovereign will periodically sell qualifying mortgage loans to FHLMC, GNMA, and FNMA in return for
mortgage-backed securities issued by those agencies. Sovereign reclassifies the net book balance of the loans sold to such
agencies from loans to investment securities held to maturity and available for sale. For those loans sold to the agencies in
which Sovereign retains servicing rights, Sovereign allocates the net book balance transferred between servicing rights and
investment securities available for sale based on their relative fair values.
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Minority Interests. Minority interests represent the equity and earnings attributable to that portion of consolidated
subsidiaries that are owned by parties independent of Sovereign. Earnings attributable to minority interests are reflected in
trust preferred securities and other minority interest expense on the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

As part of the November 2001 transaction, Sovereign received $64 million from the sale to outside investors of controlling
ownership interests in SPEs formed to issue debt and equity interests as parts of a financing transaction that raised a total of
$885 million for Sovereign.

On August 21, 2000, Sovereign received approximately $140 million of net proceeds from the issuance of $161.8 million of
12% Series A Noncumulative Preferred Interests in Sovereign Real Estate Investment Trust (“SREIT™), a subsidiary of
Sovereign Bank that holds primarily residential real estate loans. The preferred stock was issued at a discount, which is being
amortized over the life of the preferred shares using the effective yield method. The preferred shares may be redeemed at
any time on or after May 16, 2020, at the option of Sovereign subject to the approval of the OTS. Under certain circumstances,
the preferred shares are automatically exchangeable into preferred stock of Sovereign Bank.

CREDIT Risk MANAGEMENT

Extending credit exposes Sovereign to credit risk, which is the risk that the principal balance of a loan and any related interest
will not be collected due to the inability of the borrower to repay the loan. Sovereign manages credit risk in the loan portfolio
through adherence to consistent standards, guidelines and limitations established by the Credit Policy Committee and
approved by the Board of Directors. Written loan policies establish underwriting standards, fending limits and other standards
or limits as deemed necessary and prudent. Various approval levels, based on the amount of the loan and other key credit
attributes, have also been established. In addition to being subject to the judgment and dual approval of experienced loan
officers and their managers, loans over a certain dollar size also require the co-approval of credit officers independent of the
loan officer to ensure consistency and quality in accordance with Sovereign's credit standards. The largest loans require
approval by the Credit Policy Committee.

The Retail Loan Review Group and the Commercial Asset Review Group conduct ongoing, independent reviews of the
lending process to ensure accurate risk ratings and adherence to established policies and procedures, monitor compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, provide objective measurement of the risk inherent in the loan portfolio, and ensure
that proper documentation exists. The results of these pericdic reviews are reported to the Asset Review Committee, and
to the Board of Directors of both Sovereign and Sovereign Bank. Sovereign also maintains a watch list for certain loans identified
as requiring a higher level of monitoring by management because of one or more factors, such as economic conditions,
industry trends, nature of collateral, collateral margin, payment history, or other factors. Commercial loan credit quality is
strong but is under a high level of scrutiny by line management, credit officers and the independent Commercial Asset
Review Group, due to current economic conditions.

At December 31, 2002, Sovereign's loan portfolio was 19% residential, 37% consumer and 44% commercial. At December
31, 2001, Sovereign's loan portfolio was 25% residential, 33% consumer and 42% commercial. This shift in portfolic composition
reflects increased emphasis in commercial and consumer lending. Management believes this shift in loan composition brings
higher yields and higher inherent credit risk.

The following discussion summarizes the underwriting policies and procedures for the major categories within the loan portfolio
and addresses Sovereign's strategies for managing the related credit risk.

Commeercial Loans. Credit risk associated with commercial loans is primarily influenced by prevailing and expected
economic conditions and the level of underwriting risk Sovereign is willing to assume. To manage credit risk when extending
commercial credit, Sovereign focuses on both assessing the borrower's capacity and willingness to repay and on obtaining
sufficient collateral. Commercial and industrial loans are generally secured by the borrower's assets and by personal guarantees.
Commercial real estate loans are originated primarily within the Pennsylvania, New Jersey, and New England market areas
and are secured by developed real estate at conservative loan-to-values and often by a guarantee of the borrower.
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Management closely monitors the composition and quality of the total commercial loan portfolio to ensure that significant
credit concentrations by borrowers or industries do not exist.

Consumer Loans. Credit risk in the direct and indirect consumer loan portfolio is controlled by strict adherence to
underwriting standards that consider debt-to-income levels and the creditworthiness of the borrower and, if secured,
collateral values. In the home equity loan portfolio, combined loan-to-value ratios are generally limited to 85%, or credit
insurance is purchased to limit exposure. The auto loan portfolio is characterized by high credit scoring borrowers and
strong payment performance. The portion of the consumer portfolio at December 31, 2002, which is secured by real
estate, vehicles, deposit accounts or government guarantees, comprises 98.0% of the entire consumer portfolio.

Residential Loans. Sovereign originates fixed rate and adjustable rate residential mortgage loans that are secured by
the underlying 1-4 family residential property. Credit risk exposure in this area of lending is minimized by the evaluation of
the creditworthiness of the borrower, including debt-to-equity ratios, credit scores, and adherence to underwriting policies
that emphasize conservative loan-to-value ratios of generally no more than 80%. Residential mortgage loans granted in
excess of the 80% loan-to-value ratio criterion are generally insured by private mortgage insurance, unless otherwise guaranteed
or insured by the Federal, state or local government. Sovereign also utilizes underwriting standards which comply with those
of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("FHLMC”) or the Federal National Mortgage Association (“FNMA™).
Credit risk is further reduced since a portion of Sovereign's fixed rate mortgage loan production is sold to investors in the
secondary market without recourse.

Collections. Sovereign closely monitors delinquencies as another means of maintaining high asset quality. Collection
efforts begin within |5 days after a loan payment is missed by attempting to contact all borrowers and to offer a variety of loss
mitigation alternatives. If these attempts fail, Sovereign will proceed to gain control of any and all collateral in a timely manner
in order to minimize losses. While liquidation and recovery efforts continue, officers continue to work with the borrowers, if
appropriate, to recover all monies owed to Sovereign. Sovereign monitors delinquency trends at 30, 60, and 90 days past
due. These trends are discussed at monthly Asset Review Committee and Board of Directors meetings.

Non-performing Assets. At December 31, 2002, Sovereign's non-performing assets were $257 million, compared to
$245 million at December 31, 2001. Non-performing commercial and consumer loans increased in 2002 by $21.5 million
and $4.8 million, respectively. These increases were consistent with the overall growth in the commercial and consumer
loan portfolios. Offsetting these increases was a reduction in residential non-performing loans of approximately $40 million
that was due principally to the sales of non-performing residential loans in 2002 and, to a lesser degree, the overall decline in
our residential loan portfolio. Non-performing assets as a percentage of total assets were .65% at December 31, 2002,
compared to .69% at December 31, 2001.

Sovereign generally places all commercial loans and residential loans with loan-to-values greater than 50% on non-performing
status at 90 days delinquent or sooner, if management believes the loan has become impaired (unless return to current status
is expected imminently). All other loans continue to accrue until they are 120 days delinquent, at which point they are either
charged-off or placed on non-accrual status and anticipated losses are fully reserved, unless they are residential real estate
loans evaluated to be well secured based on appraisals and are in the process of collection. At 180 days delinquent, anticipated
losses on residential real estate loans are fully reserved or charged off.
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Table 8 presents the composition of non-performing assets at the dates indicated (in thousands):

TABLE 8: NON-PERFORMING ASSETS

AT DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Non-accrual loans (:

Residential ... $ 36,849 $ 76,737 $ 61,422 $ 33,397 $ 60,779

Commercial real estate ........................... 38,302 18,776 12,403 4,286 6,913

Commerdial . ... 122,504 100,993 68,277 14,875 14,691

CONSUMET .0ttt e 32,844 28,032 38,422 27,104 25,964
Total non-accrualloans ...................oo il 230,499 224,538 180,524 79,662 108,347
Restructuredloans ............c..oc i 893 1,280 3,755 3,755 141
TJotal non-performing loans .............. ... ... 231,392 225818 184,279 83417 108,488
Other real estate owned and other repossessed assets

Realestateowned ............oooiiiiiiiiiiin 19,007 12,076 4,425 3,567 12,812

Other repossessed assets ................ccooo...n 6,663 6,852 3,758 1,762 2772
Total other real estate owned and

other repossessed assets . .......oveiii i 25,670 18,928 8,183 5,329 15,584
Total non-performing assets .. ..............c..ii... $ 257,062 $ 244746 3 192,462 $ 88,746 $ 124,072
Past due 90 days or more as to interest or principal

and accruing interest @ $ 40,500 $ 54,599 $ 16,733 $ 10,238 $ 9,975
Non-performing assets as a percentage of total assets ... .. 65% 69% 58% 33% S57%
Non-performing loans as a percentage of total loans ...... 1.00 II1 84 59 96
Non-performing assets as a percentage of

total foans and other real estate owned .............. 111 1.20 88 62 110
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage

of total non-performing assets ..................... 116.2 108.1 133.2 149.9 107.8
Allowance for loan fosses as a percentage

of total non-performing loans ...................... 129.4 1172 139.1 159.4 1233

(1) In prior years in presenting non-performing toans, the balance was reduced by reserves provided for those specific loans. As of December 31,2002, the balance of non-performing loans was not reduced by
specific reserves refated to those loans. The prior year balances and ratios have been adjusted to conform with the 2002 presentation.

(2) During the first half of 2001 the Company changed its methodology for the treatment of delinquent loans and nonaccrual of certain loans from 90 to 120 days past due to ensure consistency with the treatment
of all other consumer loans. During 2001, Sovereign began to keep residential and consumer loans secured by real estate that are well-secured (loan to value of 50% or less) and in the process of collection

an accrual status, in accordance with regulatory guidelines. There were $139 million and $12.8 million of such loans at December 31, 2002 and December 31,2001, respectively.

Loans that are past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest decreased from $54.6 million at December 31, 2001 to
$40.5 million at December 31, 2002. Ninety-day delinquencies fell in all three categories, namely residential by $7.7 million,
consumer by $3.2 million, and commercial by $3.2 million.

Potential Problem Loans. Potential problem loans are loans, not currently classified as non-performing loans, for
which management has doubts as to the borrowers' ability to comply with present repayment terms, principally commercial
loans delinguent more than 30 days but less than 90 days. Potential problem loans amounted to approximately $70.3 million
and $120 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The decline is due to a decrease in delinquencies as
discussed below.

Delinquencies. Sovereign's loan definquencies (all performing loans 30 or more days delinquent) at December 31, 2002
were $374 million, a decrease from $449 million at December 31, 2001. As a percentage of total loans, performing delinquencies
were |.61% at December 31, 2002, a decrease from 2.20% at December 31, 2001. Residential performing loan delinquencies
decreased from $188 million to $172 million during the same time periods, but increased as a percentage of total residential
loans from 3.75% to 3.95% as a result of the decrease in the size of the overall residential portfolio. Consumer performing
loan delinquencies decreased from $137 million to $131 million and also decreased as a percentage of total consumer loans
from 2.01% to 1.53%, as a result of the increase in the size of the overall consumer portfolio. Commercial performing loan
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delinquencies decreased from $124 million to $71 million, and also decreased as a percentage of total commercial loans from
[.45% to 0.69%. The reason for the decline is due to the seasoning of the acquired portfolios.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The adequacy of Sovereign's allowance for loan losses is regularly evaluated.
Management's evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance to absorb loan losses takes into consideration the risks inherent
in the loan portfolio, past loan loss experience, specific loans which have loss potential, geographic and industry concentrations,
delinguency trends, economic conditions, the level of originations and other relevant factors. Management also considers loan
quality, changes in the size and character of the loan portfolio, amount of non-performing loans, and industry trends.

Sovereign maintains an allowance for loan losses that management believes is sufficient to absorb inherent losses in the loan
portfolio. At December 31, 2002, Sovereign's total allowance was $298.8 million. Because historical charge-offs are not
necessarily indicative of future charge-off levels, Sovereign also gives consideration to other risk indicators when determining the
appropriate allowance level.

The allowance for loan losses consists of two elements: (i) an allocated allowance, which for non-homogeneous loans is comprised
of allowances established on specific classified loans, and class allowances for both homogeneous and non-homogeneous loans
based on risk ratings, and historical loss experience and current trends, and (i) unallocated allowances based on both general
economic conditions and other risk factors in Sovereign's individual markets and portfolios, and to account for a leve! of
imprecision in management's estimation process.

The allowance recorded for consumer and residential portfolios is based on an analysis of product mix, risk composition of
the portfolio, fraud losses and bankruptcy experiences, economic conditions and historical and expected delinquency and
charge-off statistics for each homogeneous category or group of loans. Based on this information and analysis, an allowance
is established in an amount sufficient to cover estimated inherent losses in these portfolios.

The allowance recorded for commercial loans is based on an analysis of the individual credits and relationships and is separated
into two parts, the specific allowance and the class allowance. The specific allowance element of the commercial loan
allowance is based on a regular analysis of classified commercial loans where certain inherent weaknesses exist. This analysis
is performed by the Managed Asset Division, where loans with recognized deficiencies are administered. This analysis is
periodically reviewed by third parties, including the Commercial Asset Review Department.The specific allowance established
for these criticized loans is based on a careful analysis of related collateral value, cash flow considerations, if applicable, guarantor
capacity and other sources of repayment. Specific reserves are also evaluated by commercial asset review and credit risk
management.

The class allowance element of the commercial loan allowance is determined by an internal loan grading process in conjunction
with associated allowance factors. These class allowance factors are updated quarterly and are based primarily on actual
historical loss experience, consultation with regulatory authorities, and peer groups loss experience. Management revises the
class allowance factors whenever necessary in order to address improving or deteriorating credit quality trends or specific risks
associated with a given loan pool classification.

Regardless of the extent of management analysis of customer performance, portfolio evaluations, trends or risk management
processes established, certain inherent but undetected losses are probable within the lcan portfolio. This is due to several factors,
including inherent delays in obtaining information regarding a customer's financial condition or changes in their unique business
conditions; the judgmental nature of individual loan evaluations, collateral assessments and the interpretation of economic
trends; volatility of economic or customer-specific conditions affecting the identification and estimation of losses for larger
non-homogenous credits; and the sensitivity of assumptions utilized to establish allocated allowances for homogeneous groups
of loans among other factors. Sovereign maintains an unallocated allowance to recognize the existence of these exposures.
These other risk factors are continuously reviewed and revised by management where conditions indicate that the estimates
initially applied are different from actual results.
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A comprehensive analysis of the allowance for loan losses is performed by management on a quarterly basis. In addition, a
review of allowance levels based on nationally published statistics is also conducted on a periodic basis. The Chief Credit
Officer, and the Chief Risk Management Officer have the responsibility to affirm allowance methodology and to assess the
general and specific allowance factors in relation to estimated and actual net charge-off trends.

Although management determines the amount of each element of the allowance separately and this process is an important
credit management tool, the entire allowance for credit losses is available for the entire loan portfolio. The actual amount of
losses incurred can vary significantly from the estimated amounts. Management's methodology includes several factors
intended to minimize the differences between estimated and actual losses. These factors allow management to adjust its estimate
of losses based on the most recent information available.

Table 9 summarizes Sovereign's allowance for loan losses for allocated and unallocated allowances by loan type, and the
percentage of each loan type of total portfolio loans (in thousands):

TABLE 9: ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

AT DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
% OF % OF % OF % OF % OF
LOANS TO LOANSTO LOANS TO LOANSTO LOANSTO
TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

AMOUNT LOANS AMOUNT LOANS AMOUNT LOANS AMOUNT LOANS AMOUNT LOANS

Allocated allowances:

Commercialloans .. .......... $ 193,528 44% $ 161,075 40% 3 149828 36% $ 58784 29% % 38354 20%
Residential real estate
mortgage loans ... ... 16,539 19 20,724 25 34,629 36 19,535 40 22477 47
Consumerioans ............. 72,366 37 61,200 35 48,053 28 43,455 31 48,083 33
Unallocated allowance .............. 16,317 nfa 21,668 n/a 23,846 n/a i1,212 n/a 24938 n/a
Total allowance
forloanlosses ............... $ 298,750 100% § 264,667 100% % 256356 100% % 132,986 100% § 133802 100%

Commercial Portfelio. The allowance for loan losses for the commercial portfolio increased from $161.1 million at
December 31, 2001 to $193.5 million at December 31, 2002. As a percentage of the total commercial portfolio, the
allowance increased from 1.88% to 1.89%. This increase was due primarily to higher levels of substandard assets that carry
higher reserve allowance percentages. During 2002, net charge-offs in this portfolio totaled $79.8 million, as compared to
$43.0 million in 2001; and, charge-offs increased from .52% to .84% of the respective average portfolio, due to one large
commercial loan totaling $17.7 million which required a $15.5 million charge-off. The remaining increase was due to primarily
to the overall increase in non-performing commercial loans.

Consumer Portfolio. The allowance for the consumer loan portfolic increased from $61.2 million at December 31, 2001
to $72.4 million at December 31, 2002. This increase was due primarily to the overall growth in the portfolio. As a percentage
of the entire consumer portfolio, the reserve decreased from .90% to .85%. During 2002, net charge-offs in this portfolio
totaled $39.8 million, as compared to $40.7 million in the previous year, a decrease of 2%; and, charge-offs as a percentage
of average outstanding loans decreased by .| 1% from .62% to .51%.

Residential Portfolic. The allowance for the residential mortgage portfolio decreased from $20.7 million at
December 31, 2001 to $16.5 million at December 31, 2002. The decrease was due primarily to the overall reduction in the
residential portfolio from $5.0 billion at December 31, 2001 to $4.3 billion at December 31, 2002. As a percentage of the
total residential portfolio, the allowance decreased from .41% to .38%. Despite decreases in delinquencies as a percent of
loans outstanding and non-performing loans in this portfolio, residential net charge-offs have increased in 2002 from $5.0 million
in 2001 to0 $7.7 million in 2002 because of accelerated dispositions of non-performing loans. As a percentage of average loans,
residential net charge-offs increased from .08% in 2001 to .16% in 2002.

Unallocated Allowance. The unallocated allowance decreased from $21.7 million at December 31, 2001 to $16.3
mitlion at December 31, 2002. As a percentage of the total reserve, the unallocated portion decreased from 8.2% to 5.5%.
This decrease reflects Sovereign's increased familiarity and seasoning of acquired loan portfolios.
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Bank REGULATORY CAPITAL

Federal law requires institutions regulated by the Office of Thrift Supervision to have a minimum leverage capital ratio equal
to 3% of tangible assets and 4% of risk-adjusted assets, and a risk-based capital ratio equal to 8%. Federal law also requires
OTS regulated institutions to have a minimum tangible capital equal to 2% of total tangible assets. For a detailed discussion
on regulatory capital requirements, see Note |7 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Table 10 presents thrift regulatory capital requirements and the capital ratios of Sovereign Bank at December 31, 2002.
TABLE [0: REGULATORY CAPITAL RATIOS

OTS - REGULATIONS ()

SOVEREIGN
BANK WELL
DECEMBER 3I, MINIMUM  CAPITALIZED
2002 REQUIREMENT REQUIREMENT

Tangible capital to tangible aSsets .. ... ... i 7.55% 2.00% None
Tier | leverage capital to tangible assets ... ... ..o i i 7.55 3.00 5.00%
Tier | risk-based capital to risk adjusted assets. .. ............. . i 9.70 4.00 6.00
Total risk-based capital to risk adjusted assets . ........ ... 10.69 8.00 10.00

(1) An OTS Order discussed in Note 17 to the Financial Statements imposed certain additional capital requirements in excess of the OTS regulated well-capitalized requirements.The OTS order expired on

January 1, 2003.
LiouibiTy Anp CAarPiTAL RESOURCES

Liquidity represents the ability of Sovereign to obtain cost effective funding to meet the needs of customers, as well as
Sovereign’s financial obligations. Factors that impact the liquidity position of Sovereign include loan origination volumes, loan
prepayment rates, maturity structure of existing loans, core deposit growth levels, CD maturity structure and retention,
Sovereign’'s credit ratings, investment portfolio cash flows, maturity structure of wholesale funding, etc. These risks are
monitored and centrally managed. This process includes reviewing all available wholesale liquidity sources. As of December
31, 2002, Sovereign had $5.2 billion in available overnight liquidity in the form of unused federal funds purchased lines,
unused FHLB borrowing capacity and unencumbered investment portfolio securities. Sovereign also forecasts future liquidity
needs and develops strategies to ensure adequate liquidity is available at all times.

Sovereign Bank has several sources of funding to meet its liquidity requirements, including the liquid investment securities
portfolio, the core deposit base, the ability to acquire large deposits and issue public debt and equity securities in the focal
and national markets, FHLB borrowings, federal funds purchased, reverse repurchase agreements, wholesale deposit
purchases and the capability to securitize or package loans for sale.

Sovereign’s holding company has the following major sources of funding to meet its liquidity requirements: dividends and
returns of investment from its subsidiaries and a revolving credit agreement and access to the capital markets. Sovereign
Bank may pay dividends to its parent subject to approval of the OTS. Sovereign Bank declared and paid dividends to the
parent company of $210 million in 2002, $130 million in 2001 and $100 million in 2000. Sovereign also has approximately
$900 million of availability under a shelf registration statement on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission
permitting ready access to the public debt and equity markets.

As discussed previously, Sovereign restructured its debt portfolio by tendering $301.6 million of its Senior Notes, and issuing
$500 million of subordinated debt at Sovereign Bank.
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As discussed in other sections of this document, including Item |, Business, and in Note |7 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, subsidiary banks are subject to regulation and, among other things, may be limited in their ability to pay
dividends or transfer funds to the parent company. Accordingly, consolidated cash flows as presented in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows may not represent cash immediately available for the payment of cash dividends to stockholders.

Cash and cash equivalents increased $65.3 million for 2002. Net cash provided by operating activities was $31.5 million for
2002. Net cash used by investing activities for 2002 was $2.0 billion and consisted primarily of the purchase of $9.7 billion
in available for sale investment securities offset by the proceeds from the sale of investment securities and the sale and
securitization of loans of $6.9 billion and $2.8 billion, respectively. We also purchased $2.8 billion of loans in 2002. Net
cash provided by financing activities for 2002 was $2.0 billion, which was primarily due to a net increase in deposits of $2.2
billion related to marketing initiatives to increase the level of core deposits. See the consolidated statement of cash flows
for further details on our sources and uses of cash.

Sovereign’s debt agreements impose customary limitations on dividends, other payments and transactions. These limits are
not expected to affect dividend payments at current levels, or reasonably anticipated increases

CoONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

Sovereign enters into contractual obligations in the normal course of business as a source of funds for its asset growth and

its asset/liability management, to fund acquisitions, and to meet required capital needs. These obligations require Sovereign
to make cash payments over time as detailed in the table below. (For further information regarding Sovereign's contractual

obligations, refer to Footnotes |1 through |4 of our Consolidated Financial Statements, herein.):

Contractual Obligations

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

LESS THAN AFTER
TOTAL ! YEAR -3 YEARS - 4-5 YEARS 5 YEARS

{Doliars in thousands}
BOrrowings . ..ot $ 2985800 $ 2985800 $ - $ - $ -
Long-term debt:

Securities sold under

repurchase agreements .. ...............ooe..... 155,000 - - 155,000 -

FHBadvances ... 3792616 - 313,450 302 3478864

Other long-termdebt ... 1,895,873 50,269 494,950 529,654 821,000
Trust Preferred Securities . .. ... 501,090 - - - 501,090
Certificates of deposit ........coovvei 7,020,021 5,081,908 1,675,715 175,128 87,270
Operating [8ases .. ....c.ovvvii i 761,902 105,280 287,040 93,122 276460
Total contractual cash

ObligAtIoNs ...t $ 17,112,302 $ 8223257 $ 2,771,155 $ 953,206 $ 5164684
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Certain contractual obligations require Sovereign to maintain certain financial ratios and to maintain a “well-capitalized”
regulatory status. Sovereign has complied with these covenants as of December 31, 2002, and expects to be in compliance
with these covenants for the foreseeable future. However, if in the future Sovereign is not in compliance with these ratios or
is deemed to be other than well capitalized by the OTS, and is unable to obtain a waiver from its lenders, the debt would be
in default and callable by Sovereign's lenders. Due to cross default provisions in certain Sovereign debt agreements, if more
than $25 million of Sovereign’s debt is in default, $875 million of senior notes and the full amount of the senior secured
credit facility then outstanding will become due in full.

Sovereign is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing
needs of its customers and to manage its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. These financial instruments may
include commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit, loans soid with recourse, forward contracts and interest
rate swaps, caps and floors. These financial instruments may involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate
risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet. The contract or notional amounts of these
financial instruments reflect the extent of involvement Sovereign has in particular classes of financial instruments.

Sovereign’s exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to the financial instrument for
commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and loans sold with recourse is represented by the contractual
amount of those instruments. Sovereign uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as
it does for on-balance sheet instruments. For interest rate swaps, caps and floors and forward contracts, the contract or
notional amounts do not represent exposure to credit loss. Sovereign controls the credit risk of its interest rate swaps, caps
and floors and forward contracts through credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. Unless noted otherwise,
Sovereign does not require, and is not required to pledge collateral or other security to support financial instruments with

credit risk.
AMOUNT OF COMMITMENT EXPIRATION PER PERIOD

OTHER COMMITMENTS TOTAL

AMOUNTS LESS THAN OVER
(Dollars in thousands) COMMITTED 1 YEAR -3 YEARS 4-5 YEARS S YEARS
Commitments toextend credit ........ ... $ 7534899 $ 4,547,002 $  1,062730 $ 389,797 $ 15353700
Standby Jettersof credit .. ... 980,755 318,739 249,676 380,761 31,579
Loans soldwithrecourse .. ... 16,870 - - - 16,870
Forwardcontracts ........c.. 1,578,783 1,558,783 20,000 - -
Total other commitments . .. ...t $ 10.111,307 $ 6424524 $ 1332406 $ 770,558 $ 1583819

(1) Of this amount, $1.4 billion represents unused home equity lines of credit.

For further information regarding Sovereign's commitments, refer to Note 21 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

AsseET AND LiaBILITY MANAGEMENT

Interest rate risk arises primarily through Sovereign’s traditional business activities of extending loans and accepting deposits,
as well as by incurring debt and purchasing investment securities. Many factors, including economic and financial conditions,
movements in market interest rates and consumer preferences, affect the spread between interest earned on assets and
interest paid on liabilities. In managing its interest rate risk, Sovereign seeks to minimize the variability of net interest income
across various likely scenarios, while at the same time maximize its net interest income and net interest margin. To achieve
these objectives, Sovereign works closely with each business line in the Company and guides new business flows. Sovereign
also uses various other tools to manage interest rate risk, including wholesale funding maturity targeting, investment portfolio
purchase strategies, asset securitization/sale, and financial derivatives.
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Interest rate risk is managed centrally by the Treasury Group with oversight by the Asset and Liability Committee.
Management reviews various forms of analysis to monitor interest rate risk, including net interest income sensitivity, market
value sensitivity, repricing frequency of assets versus liabilities and scenario analysis. Numerous assumptions are made to
produce these analyses, including, but not limited to, assumptions on new business volumes, loan and investment
prepayment rates, deposit flows, interest rate curves, economic conditions, and competitor pricing.

Sovereign simulates the impact of changing interest rates on its expected future interest income and interest expense (net
interest income sensitivity). This simulation is run monthly and may include up to |2 different stress scenarios. These
scenarios shift interest rates up and down. Certain other scenarios shift short-term rates up while holding longer-term rates
constant and vice versa. This scenario analysis helps management to better understand its risk, and is used to develop
proactive strategies to ensure Sovereign is not overly sensitive to the future direction of interest rates. At December 31,
2002, the general level of interest rates represented a unique economic environment in which several of Sovereign’s
declining interest rate simulation scenarios would not apply. At December 31, 2002, if interest rates dropped in paralle! 100
basis points, Sovereign estimates that net interest income would fall 3.2%. Alternatively, if interest rates rose in parallel 200
basis points, estimated net interest income would increase 6.3%.

Sovereign also monitors the relative repricing sensitivities of its assets versus its liabilities. Management attempts to keep
assets and liabilities in balance so when interest rates do change, the net interest income of Sovereign will not experience any
significant short-term volatility as a result of assets repricing more quickly than liabilities or vice versa. As of December 31,
2002, the one year cumulative gap was 6%, compared to 9% at December 31, 2001, indicating Sovereign could benefit from
rising rates.

Finally, Sovereign Bank calculates the market value of its balance sheet, including all assets, liabilities and hedges. This market
value analysis is very useful because it measures the present value of all estimated future interest income and interest
expense cash flows of the Company. Management will calculate a Net Portfolio Value (NPV), which is the market value of
assets minus the market value of liabilities. As of December 31, 2002, the NPV as a percentage of the present value of
assets was 9.59%. Management will also review the sensitivity of NPV to changes in interest rates. Management attempts to
keep the NPV Ratio relatively constant across various interest rate scenarios. As of December 31, 2002, a 200 basis point
rise in interest rates would increase the NPV ratio by 1.28%, and a 100 basis point decline in interest rates would decrease
the NPV by 1.22%. At December 31, 2001, a 200 basis point rise or decline in interest rates would decrease the NPV by
|.18% and .45%, respectively.

Because the assumptions used are inherently uncertain, the model cannot precisely predict the effect of higher or lower
interest rates on net interest income. Actual results will differ from simulated results due to the timing, magnitude and
frequency of interest rate changes, the difference between actual experience and the assumed volume and characteristics of
new business and behavior of existing positions, and changes in market conditions and management strategies, among other
factors.

In 2002 and 2001, the Federal Funds rate declined 50 basis points and 475 basis points, respectively, which is an unusually
rapid move for a two-year time frame. Even though Sovereign’s risk position has been mildly asset sensitive (sensitive to
falling rates), management was able to develop strategies to overcome this move in rates and widen the net interest margin
during the past two years. Sovereign aggressively repriced certain liabilities and improved the loan portfolio mix away from
residential mortgages and into consumer and commercial loans. The deposit mix also improved with more core deposits
and less certificate of deposits. Lastly, the Company effectively used the wholesale bank (investments funded with wholesale
funding) to hedge interest rate risk created by the relationship business.
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Pursuant to its interest rate risk management strategy, Sovereign enters into hedging transactions that involve interest rate
exchange agreements (swaps, caps, and floors) for interest rate risk management purposes. Sovereign’s objective in
managing its interest rate risk is to provide sustainable levels of net interest income while limiting the impact that changes in
interest rates have on net interest income.

Interest rate swaps are generally used to convert fixed rate assets and liabilities to variable rate assets and liabilities and vice
versa. Sovereign utilizes interest rate swaps that have a high degree of correlation to the related financial instrument.

As part of its mortgage banking strategy, Sovereign originates fixed rate residential mortgages. It sells the majority of these
loans to FHLMC, FNMA, and private investors. The loans are exchanged for cash or marketable fixed rate mortgage-backed
securities that are generally sold. This helps insulate Sovereign from the interest rate risk associated with these fixed rate
assets. Sovereign uses forward sales, cash sales and options on mortgage-backed securities as a means of hedging loans in
the mortgage pipeline that are originated for sale.

To accommodate customer needs, Sovereign enters into customer-related financial derivative transactions primarily
consisting of interest rate swaps, caps, and floors and foreign exchange contracts. Risk exposure from customer positions is
managed through transactions with other dealers.

Through the Company’s capital markets, mortgage-banking and precious metals activities, it is subject to trading risk. The
Company employs various tools to measure and manage price risk in its trading portfolios. In addition, the Board of
Directors has established certain limits relative to trading positions and activities. The level of price risk exposure at any
given point in time depends on the market environment and expectations of future price and market movements, and will
vary from period to period
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Table | | presents the amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities that are assumed to mature or reprice
during the periods indicated at December 31, 2002, and their related average yields and costs. Adjustable and floating rate
loans and securities are included in the period in which interest rates are next scheduled to adjust rather than the period in
which they mature (in thousands):

Table 11: Gap Analysis

AT DECEMBER 31,2002 REPRICING

YEAR ONE YEARTWO YEARTHREE YEAR FOUR YEAR FIVE THEREAFTER TOTAL
Interest earning assets:
Investment securities™ ... ... $ 4627774 $ 2172173 $ 1198991 $ 713,544 $ 733467 1920,128 11,366,077
.................................. 5.69% 6.21% 6.22% 6.18% 6.06% 5.06% 5.79%
Loans® ... 15,111,596 3,729,835 2,116,191 818,641 789579 561,483 23,127,325
................................ 6.05% 7.53% 751% 7.45% 6.04% 7.20% 6.50%
Total interest arning assets .. ................... $ 19739370 $ 5902008 $ 3315182 $ 1532185 $ 1523046 2,481,611 34,493,402
5.96% 7.05% 7.04% 6.86% 6.05% 5.54% 6.27%
8131 87918 87,133 86,557 84,734 4,602,538 5,030,791
Total assets ... $ 19821281 $ 5989926 $ 3402315 3 1,618,742 $ 1,607,780 7,084,149 39,524,193
................................. 5.94% 6.94% 6.86% 6.49% 5.73% 1.94% 5.47%
Interest bearing liabilities:
Deposits ... $ 13877736 $ 4215086 $ 2954651 $ 2735853 $ 283432 167.288 26,784,980
................................. 1.74% 1.96% 1.32% 1.03% 1.06% 202% 1.59%
Borrowings ... .o 4307252 76013 313,022 4,102,738 272 29992 8,829,289
...................... 2.16% 9.43% 547% 5.90% - - 4.07%
Total interest bearing liabilities § 18184988 $ 429109 $ 3267713 $ 683859l $ 2834598 197,280 35,614,269
........................ e 1.84% 2.09% 1.72% 3.95% 1.06% 1.71% 2.20%
Non-interest bearing fiabifities - - - - - 548,649 548,649
Trust Preferred Securities and Minority Interest ... - - - - - 596957 596957
Stockholders’ equity ...l - - - - - 2,764,318 2764318
Total fiabilities and stackholders' equity .. ... % 18184988 $ 4291099 326773 $ 6838591 $ 283459 4,107,204 39,524,193
.................................. 1.84% 2.09% 1.72% 3.95% 1.08% 0.08% 1.98%
Excess assets {liabiliies) before effect of
hedging transactions ... ...... ... $ 1636293 $ 1698827 $ 134,602 $ (5219849 $ (1226818) 2,976,945
Tototalassers . ... 4.14% 4.30% 0.34% (13.21)% (3.100% -
Cumufative excess assets (liabilities) before
effect of hedging transactions . ................ $ 1636293 $ 3335120 § 3469722 $  (1,750127) $ (2976.945) -
TO MO BSS8LS . ..ot 4.14% 8.44% 8.78% (4.43)% (7.53)% -
Effect of hedging transactions on assets
and liabilities ...... ... 845,000 $  (200.000) $  (190,000) $ 400,000 $  (395,000) (460.000)
Excess assets (fiabilities) after effect of
hedging transactions ... ..., 2,481,293 $ 1498827 $  (55.398) $  (4819849) $ (1,621818) 2516945
Totoml assers . ... 6.28% 379% (0.14)% 1219% (4.10)% 6.37%

Cumulaiive excess assets (liabiliries) after effect of

hedging transactions $ 2481293 $ 3980,120 $ 391472 $ (895,127) $ (2515645 -

Tototalassets . ... 6.28% 10.07% 9.93% (2.26)% (637)% -

(1) Include interest-earning deposits.
(2) Investment securities include market rate payment and repayment assumptions.

(3) Loan balances include annual prepayment and repayment assumptions of 0% to 12% for commercial loans, 5% to 60% for consumer loans, and 12% to 55% for residential loans. Loan balances are
presented net of deferred loan fees and include loans held for sale.
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MANAGEMENT’S DisCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Table 12 presents selected quarterly consolidated financial data (in thousands, except per share data):

TABLE 12: SELECTED QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

THREE MONTHS ENDED
DEC.31, SEPT. 30, JUNE 30, MAR.31, DEC.3I, SEPT. 30, JUNE 30, MAR. 31,
2002 2002 2002 2002 2001 2001 2001 2001

Total interestincome .......... .. ... ... .. $ 514,594 ¢ 524343 % 525,776 § 494827 $ 521,68l $ 563,341 $ 557607 $ 579846
Total interest eXpense .................... 211,462 226,793 228,771 222,898 244,022 292,52) 299,284 332,366
Netinterestincome . ............ ........ 293,132 297,550 297,005 271,929 277,659 270,820 258,323 247 480
Provision for loan losses .. ................. 36,000 38,000 28,000 44,500 32,000 22,000 23,100 20,000
Net interest income after provision .......... 257,132 259,550 269,005 227,429 245,659 248,820 235,223 227,480
Gain/(loss) on sale of loans and

investment securities .. ............... .. 14,356 12,668 3,841 20,566 (1,8%7) 4412 5,752 7.344
Otherincome ... 104,190 97,489 92,446 86,970 90,399 94,763 115,781 97,950
Other expenses . ..........c..oiieio... 248,688 242,641 242,056 245,702 243,781 337,524 319.574 320,762
Income before income taxes ............... 126,990 127,066 123,236 89,263 90.280 10,471 37,182 12,012
Income 1ax provision .. ........o.en e, 33,905 33,927 32,892 23,845 16,820 1,855 7.000 900
Income before extraordinary item ........... 93,085 93,139 90,344 65,418 73,460 8616 30,182 1,112
Extraordinary ftem ........ ... ... .0 - - - - - - - (6,549)
Net income to common stock ... ... L. $ 93,085 % 93,139 % 90,344 % 65418 3 73460 3 8616 3% 30,182 % 4,563
Earnings per share:
Basic

Income before extraordinary item . ....... $ 036 % 036 % 035 § 027 % 030 % 003 % 012 % 0.05

Extraordinaryitem.......... .. ... .. - - - - - - - (0.03)

Netincome ............ ... ... ... $ 036 % 036 § 035 % 027 % 030 3 003 3% 012 % 0.02
Diluted

Income before extraordinary item ........ $ 033 § 033 $ 032 § 025 % 028 % 0.03 $ 0.12 % 0.05

Extraordinary item ........... .o oo - - - - - - - (0.03)

Netincome ™ ... ... ... ... ... ...... $ 033 § 033 § 032 $ 025 % 028 % 003 % 012 % 0.02
Market prices

High o $ 1472100 § IS57100 § 1512125 § 14720 % 123/7  $ 1311/50 % 13 % 94/25

Low i 11317100 12 191100 14 1117720 846/63 843/50 747/50 733/50
Dividends declared per common share .. ..... 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025

(1) Net income includes certain special after-tax charges of $14.2 million for the three-month period ended March 3t, 2002, and $64.2 milion, $46.9 milion, and $55.0 million for the three-month period ended
September 30, June 30 and March 31, 2001, respectively. See Results of Operations section of Management's Discussion and Analysis. Through December 31, 2001, Savereign was amortizing goodwill. Upon
adoption of SFAS No, 142, Sovereign ceased periodic amortization of goodwill.

(2) Expense provisions of SFAS Na. 123 were adopted in the quarter ended September 30. 2002 for options granted in 2002, Previously reported amounts for the quarters ended june 30, 2002 and March 31.
2002 have been adjusted to reflect the adoption of this change in accounting principle in accordance with the transition provisions of SFAS No. 123. 2001 periods do not reflect compensation expense for stock
options under SFAS No. 123, The adoption of SFAS No. 123 lowered net income and diluted earnings per share by $2.1 million and $0.01 per share and $1.5 million and $0.01 per share for the quarters ended
June 30, 2002 and March 31, 2002, respectively

FOURTH QUARTER REVIEW

Net income for the fourth quarter of 2002 was $93.1 million, or $0.33 per diluted share, which was consistent with the third
quarter and increased from the fourth quarter 2001 reported amount of $73.5 million, or $0.28 per diluted share. Returns
on average equity and average assets were 13.49% and 0.93%, respectively, for the fourth quarter of 2002, compared to
[4.18% and 0.96%, respectively, for the third quarter of 2002, and 13.32% and 0.83%, respectively, for the fourth quarter

of 2001. The improvement in year-over-year quarter results was driven primarily by higher net interest income and
non-interest revenues.

Net interest margin for the fourth quarter of 2002 was 3.49%, compared to 3.62% from the third quarter of 2002, and
3.69% in the fourth quarter of 2001. The primary reason for the decline in margin is due to the mild asset sensitivity of the
Company'’s balance sheet and by reinvestment yields continuing to be materially lower than the yields on maturing assets.

The provision for loan losses was $36.0 million for the fourth quarter of 2002, compared to $38.0 million for the third
quarter and $32.0 million for the fourth quarter of 2001. See the Credit Risk Management section of this document for
further discussion about the allowance for loan losses and the related provision.
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Non-interest income for the fourth quarter of 2002 totaled $118.5 million, compared to $!10.2 million for the third quarter
of 2002 and $88.4 million for the fourth quarter of last year. The fourth quarter increase over the third quarter of 2002 was
due primarily to higher levels of securities gains and mortgage banking income. The increase over the prior year was due to
increases of consumer banking fees of $7.9 million related to the expansion of our core deposit base, commercial banking
fees of $5.6 million generated from the growth of our loan portfolio and deposits, and higher level of net investment gains of
$16.3 million due to asset/liability strategies, offset by declines in mortgage banking revenues of $4.9 million due to higher
impairment charges related to our mortgage servicing right assets.

General and administrative expenses for the fourth quarter of 2002 was $213.] million, compared to $207.3 million in the
third quarter and $196.3 million in the fourth quarter of 2001. The reason for the increase in the fourth quarter of 2002
was related to compensation and marketing costs, as well as $2.6 million of fixed asset charges associated with certain
equipment that was replaced by more current technology. The 2002 results include expenses related to stock options under
SFAS No. 123, which the Company adopted in 2002, as well as expenses related to the Main Street acquisition, which was
completed in the first quarter of 2002.

The effective income tax rate for the fourth quarter of 2002 and the third quarter of 2002 was 26.7%, compared to the
fourth quarter of 2001 rate of 18.6%. The reason for the increase was due to the rise in taxable income from non-exempt
sources. We expect our effective tax rate to increase in 2003, as our tax exempt income sources, will comprise a lower
portion of our pretax income.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
See Note 2 in the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion on this topic.
item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

Incorporated by reference from Part I, Item 7, "Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of
Operations — Asset and Liability Management” hereof.

{tem 8, Financial Statements and Suppiementary Data.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

To OurR STOCKHOLDERS:
Financial Statements

Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. (“Sovereign”) is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation of its published
financial statements as of December 31, 2002, and the year then ended. The consolidated financial statements of Sovereign
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and, as such, include some amounts that are
based on judgments and estimates of management.

internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. The system
contains monitoring mechanisms and actions are taken to correct deficiencies identified.

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any internal control, including the possibility of human error and the
circumvention or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even effective internal control can provide only reasonable assurance
with respect to financial statement preparation. Further, because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internal
control may vary over time.

Management assessed Sovereign’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2002. This assessment was
based on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in “Internal Control—Integrated Framework”
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment,
management believes that Sovereign maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2002,

fors i

Jay S. Sidhu James D. Hogan
Chairman, President and Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President

@’milh%, : 4/7/(\/&%

Lawrence E. McAlee, Jr. Larry K. Davis
Chief Accounting Officer Corporate Controlier
and Senior Vice President and Senior Vice President
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

THE BoARD OF DiRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS
SOVEREIGN BANCORP, INC.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2002 and
2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2002. These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of Sovereign.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the consolidated results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Note | to the financial statements, in 2002 Sovereign changed its methods of accounting for goodwill and
stock options.

St ¥ LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

January 21, 2003, except for Note 30,
as to which the date is March 10, 2003
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share data)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001

Assets

Cash and amounts due from depository INSHIWLONS .« . ..o et $ 972,614 § 907279
Investment securities available forsale . ... ... . . 10,733,564 9,581,679
Investment securities held to maturity (fair value approximates $650,050 in 2002 and $883,208in 2001) . ... ... 632,513 883,437
Loans (including loans held for sale of $382,055 in 2002 and $308,950in2001) ... ..., 23,127,325 20,399,584
Allowance for loan losses . .. ... .o (298,750) (264,667)
N OANS .ttt e 22,828,575 20,134917
Premises and 8QUIPIMENT . ..ottt e et e e e e 281,427 251,587
Accrued interest receivable ... 175,291 183913
GOOaWIll o 1,025,292 954,688
Core deposit intangibles, net of accumulated amortization ... .o 343,305 389,216
Bank owned life INSUraNCe .. . o 765,534 724,242
OHREr A558LS . . oottt et 1,766,078 1,463,880
TOMAI ASSETS .+ et et ettt $ 39,524,193 $ 35474838
Liabilities
Deposits and other CUSTOMEr ACCOUNLS . . . .o\ttt t ettt et et et ettt e e $ 26,784,980 $ 23297574
BT OWINGS oo 2,985,800 2,678,764
Long-term debt ... oo e 5,843,489 6,261,006
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and iNSUranCe . ... ... i e 17,158 20,943
Other TabIlItES . .o 531,491 409,542
Total Liabillties .. ... e 36,162,918 32,667,829
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trusts holding
junior subordinated debentures of Sovereign (“Trust Preferred Securities™ .......... . ... oo, 396,331 404,136
Minority interest-preferred securities of subsidiaries .......... ... ... ... 200,626 200,392

Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock; no par value; $50 liquidation preference; 7,500,000 shares authorized;

O shares issued and OULSTANAING . ... it e - -
Common stock; no par value; 400,000,000 shares authorized: issued 265,548,293 in 2002
and 252,386,163 2001 . .. 1,580,282 1,416,267
Warrants and Stock OPUONS . ... ..o 101,892 91,500
Unallocated common stock held by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan
(3,342,521 shares in 2002 and 4,247,873 shares in 2001 atcost) ............coviiiii it (21,313) (30,945)
Treasury stock (582,262 shares in 2002 and 668,583 shares in 2001 atcost) . ........ovvivi i e viat (6,060) (6,787)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I0S5) ... ... .. 28,009 (33,135)
RETAINEG BAMMINGS . . oo ottt et ettt e e e e e e e 1,081,508 765,581
Total Stockholders” EQUITY ... ...t 2,764,318 2,202,481
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ............ .. .. ... $ 39,524,193 $ 35474838

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share data) AT DECEMBER 3 |,
2002 2001 2000
Interest income:
Interest-earning dBPOSIES . . ...\ v\ttt et e e $ 4,620 $ 2,522 $ 22,158
Investment securities:
Available forsale ... .. oo 614,781 538318 487,448
Held t0 MaTUMTY .« ..ot 46,967 68,607 132,442
INEErest ONT0ANS . oo 1,393,192 1,613,028 1,627,687
Total INEEreSTINCOME . .\ ettt ettt e e ettt e e e 2,059,540 2222475 2,269,735
Interest Expense:
Interest on deposits and Other CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS . . .+ v v v et e et et it et e e 458,287 705,886 735,087
Interest on borrowings and long-termdebt ... .. 441,637 462,307 679,837
TOtal INEEreSt BXPEMSE . . ..t e ettt et e e e e 899,924 1,168,193 1414924
Nt NS INCOME .o ettt et e e e e 1,159,616 1,054,282 854,811
Provision for 10an 1osses . .. .. . o 146,500 97.100 56,500
Net interest income after provision forfoanlosses . ....... .o i 1,013,116 957,182 798,311
Non-interest Income:
Consumer banking f8es .. .. ... .t 179,402 157,502 97,08
Commercial banking fees . .. ... ... o 95,083 75,825 36913
Mortgage banking revenue ... ... 28,571 69,509 25,207
Capital markets FBVENUE ... ...t 14,995 11,185 11,090
Bank-owned life INSUranCe ... ... o 43,456 42,671 34,324
Miscellaneous INCOME .. ... o 19,588 42200 10,440
Total fees and Other INCOME . . . .. .o\t 381,095 398,892 215,055
Net gain (loss) on investment securities and derivatives transactions . . ..................coooies 51,431 15511 (111,715)
Total MON-INLErESTINCOME . . . o oottt e ettt e e e e e 432,526 414,403 103,340
General and Administrative Expenses:
Compensationand benefits ... ... ... 362,813 318,686 270,799
Occupancy and @QUIPIMIENT L. . ...ttt e e e et e s 210,044 208,648 153,408
Technology eXPENSE ...\ vttt 69,424 71,654 46,396
OULSIAR SBIVICES . o\ ottt 49,235 53,109 119,792
Other adminiSTrative .. ... .t e e e 128,591 125,188 135,695
Total general and administrative eXpenses . ... .. ..ot ittt 820,107 777,285 726,090
Other Expenses:
Amortization of intangibles, including goodwill in 2001 and 2000 . ........... ... ... L 80,274 133,551 98,940
Trust Preferred Securities and other minority interest expense .................ooeeiiiiaia., 62,835 59,063 44293
Merger related and restructuring charges ... ....... ... 15,871 8,500 18,500
NON-SOITIALION BXPENSE . .+ .o ettt et e e e e - 24324} 120,060
Total other eXpenses ... ... .. .. 158,980 444,355 281,793
Income (loss) before income taxes and extraordinary item . ... i 466,555 149,945 (106,232)
Income tax provision (BENEI) ... ...\ oo 124,570 26,575 (65.215)
Income (loss) before extraordinaryitem ... .o 341,985 123,370 (41,017)
Extraordinary item (net of tax of $3,526in 2001 and $5,225in2000) ............. ... ... ..., - (6.549) 10,775
NET INCOME (L0 ettt e e e e $ 341,985 $ 116,821 $ (30,242)
Earnings (loss) per share:
Income {|oss) before extraordinary ftem . ... ... $ 1.32 $ 0.51 $ (0.18)
EXEraordinary M ... - (0.03) 0.05
INEUINCOME (J0SS) et e e e e e e e $ 1.32 $ 048 $ (0.13)
Diluted
Income (loss) before extraordinary item .. ... ..o $ 1.23 $ 0.48 $ (0.18)
Extraordinary tem .. ... - (0.03) 0.05
NELINCOME (I0SS) . ..ottt e e $ 1.23 $ 0.45 $ (0.13)
Dividends Declared Per Common Share . ... ... .. i $ 0 $ 10 $ 10

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(in thousands) COMMON WARRANTS
SHARES COMMON AND STOCK RETAINED
GUTSTANDING STOCK OPTIONS EARNINGS
Balance, fanuary 1,2000 ... ... 225,408 $ 1,254,037 $ 91,500 $ 726,780

Comprehensive income:
Netloss .. ... - - (30,242)
Change in unrecognized gain/(loss) on investment
securities available for sale, netof tax ............... oo - - - -
Total comprehensive income

Exercise of stock options, net of shares repurchased ........................ 134 678 - -
Cash in lieu of fractional shares ... ... ... - 3) - (79)
Sale of stock under Dividend Reinvestment and

Employee Stock Purchase Plan ...................... 621 4,569 - -
Dividends paid on common Stock . .........oivii i - - - (22,420)
Stock issued for Directors’ compensation ..ot 48 - - -
Allocation of shares under Employee

Stock Ownership Plans .. ... 290 93 - (489)
Balance, December 31,2000 ........ ... .o 226,501 1,259,374 91,500 673,550

Comprehensive income:
NELINCOME L . et e - - 116,821
Effect of change in accounting principle for derivatives .................... - - - -
Change in unrecognized gain/ (loss), net of tax:
Investments available forsale ......... ... ... - - - -
Derivative financial instruments ............oooiiiiiiii i - - - -
Total comprehensive income

Issuance of commonstock ....... .. 20,000 149,000 - -
Exercise of stock options, net of shares repurchased ........................ 426 3,046 - -
Cash in lieu of fractional shares ................ ... - (8) - (137)
Sale of stock under Dividend Reinvestment and

Employee Stock Purchase Plan ... 432 3911 - -
Dividends paid on common Stock . ... ii i - - - (24,653)
Stock issued for Directors’ compensation .. ...........ooiii i 88 (20) - -
Restricted stock repurchased ........... ... i (295) - - -
Allocation of shares under Employee Stock Ownership Plans ................. 318 964 - -
Balance, December 31,2001 .. ... ... . 247 470 [,416,267 91,500 765,581

Comprehensive income:
N INCOME . o - - - 34],985
Change in unrecognized gain/(loss), net of tax:
Investments available forsale .......... ... - - - -
Derivative financial instruments . ............o i - - - -
Total comprehensive income

Acquisition of Main Street Bancorp .. ... ..o 11,367 148,578 - -
Purchase payout Network Leasing .............cooviiii i, 166 7 - -
Exercise of stock options, net of shares repurchased ........................ 1,143 8,547 - -
Stock OPHON €XPENSE .. ..ottt et e - - 10,392 -
Sale of stock under Dividend Reinvestment and

Employee Stock Purchase Plan ......... ... i 322 4,159 - -
Dividends paid on commOn StOCK . ...t vvvv e - - - {26,058)
Stock issued for Directors’ compensation ..., 69 122 - -
Vesting and allocation of shares of restricted stock plan.................. ... 183 - - -
Allocation of shares under Employee Stock Ownership Plans ................. 283 2,038 - -
Termination of acquired entity’s Employee Stock Ownership Plan . ............. 621 564 - -
Balance, December 31,2002 ...... ... ..o 261,624 $ 1580282 $ 101,892 $ 1,081,508

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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ACCUMULATED

UNALLOCATED OTHER TOTAL
TREASURY STOCK HELD COMPREHENSIVE STOCKHOLDERS’
STOCK BY ESOP INCOME (LOSS) EQUITY
Bafance, January 1,2000 ... .. ..o $ (359 % (36295) % (210932) $ 1,821,495
Comprehensive income:
NELIOSS 1t - - - (30,242)
Change in unrecognized gain/(loss) on investment
securities available for sale, nerof tax ........... i - - 172,41 172,411
Total comprehensive INCOME .. .. ..o 142,169
Exercise of stock options, net of shares repurchased ....................... (473) - - 205
Cashiin lieu of fractional shares . ........ ..o - - - 82)
Sale of stock under Dividend Reinvestment and
Employee Stock Purchase Plan ... - - - 4,569
Dividends paid on common Stock . ... ..o vvi e - - - (22,420)
Stock issued for Directors’ compensation . ... 279 - - 279
Allocation of shares under Employee
Stock Ownership Plans .. ... - 3,065 - 2,669
Balance, December 31,2000 ... i (3,789) {33,230) (38,521) 1,948,884
Comprehensive income:
NELINCOME . ot - - - 116,821
Effect of change in accounting principle for derivatives .................... - - (9.951) {9.951)
Change in unrecognized gain/(loss), net of tax:
Investments available forsale ........... o o - - 46,039 46,039
Derivative financial instruments .. ... - - (30,702) {30,702
Total comprehensive INCOME . .. ...t ve i e e 122,207
Issuance of common Stock . ... ..o - - - 149,000
Exercise of stock options, net of shares repurchased ........................ (701) - - 2,345
Cash in lieu of fractional shares ... ...... ... i - - - (145)
Sale of stock under Dividend Reinvestment and
Employee Stock Purchase Plan .. ... - - - 3911
Dividends paid on common stock ... ... oovii i - - - (24,653)
Stock issued for Directors’ COMPENSation . ... . ...ooveveeniicin i, 786 - - 766
Restricted stock repurchased ... .. ... i (3,083) - - (3,083)
Allocation of shares under Employee Stock Ownership Plans ................. - 2,285 - 3,249
Balance, December 31,2001 ... . . (6,787) (30,945) (33,135) 2,202,48]
Comprehensive income:
NELINCOME . .ottt e - - - 341,985
Change in unrecognized gain/(loss), net of tax:
Investments available forsale .............. ..o - - 149,192 149,192
Derivative financial instruments ................ooooiii o - - (88.048) (88,048)
Total comprehensive iNCOME . . ... v ettt 403,129
Acquisition of Main Street Bancorp . ... oo (3,116) - - 145,462
Purchase payout Network Leasing . ... 1,993 - - 2,000
Exercise of stock options, net of shares repurchased ....................... (922) - - 7,625
StOCK OPHON BXPENSE. . ..o\ttt e e e - - - 10,392
Sale of stock under Dividend Reinvestment and
Ernployee Stock Purchase Plan ... ..o - - - 4,159
Dividends paid on cOMMON STOCK . ... v et e - - - (26,058)
Stock issued for Directors’ compensation .. ... 799 - - 921
Vesting and allocation of shares of restricted stock plan ...................... 1,973 - - 1,973
Allocation of shares under Employee Stock Ownership Plans .. ............... - 1,864 - 3902
Termination of acquired entity’s Employee Stock Ownership Plan . ............. - 7,768 - 8,332
Balance, December 31,2002 ... ... .o $ (6.060) $ (21313) % 28,009 $ 2764318

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAsH FLOWS
{in thousands) AT DECEMBER 31 N

2002 2001 2000

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
NELINCOME/ (OS] -« . ettt e e e $ 341,985 $ 116,821 $ (30242
Adjustments to reconcile net income/ (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:

Provision for 10an l0sses . ... v 146,500 97,100 56,500
Deferrad taxes . ... ... oot (35,709) (15,599) (49,833)
Depreciation and amortization .. ........oiiut i 143,417 175316 128,587
Amortization/accretion of investment securities and loan discounts . ...l 23,843 23,584 (34.747)
(Gain) foss on sale of investments and related derivatives ............. ... o (51,431) (15511) 11,715
(Gain) loss onreal estate owned ... oo 62 170 180
(Gain) loss on sale Of fixed aSSELS . ... ..o\ttt 938 (1,376} (165)
{Gain) loss on extinguishment of debt ........ ... i - 10,075 (16,000)
SEOCK OPUON EXPEMSE . . . vt e et ettt et et e e 10,392 - -
Restricted stock allocation ... ... it 2,044 - -
Allocation of Employee Stock OwnershipPlan ... {,864 2,285 3,065
Net change in:
Loansheldforsale ... ..o oo (73,105} {248,957) 8811
Accrued interest receivable ... 13,677 46,601 (11,829)
Other assets and bank owned life insurance ............ ..o i (591,210) (586,435) (651,297)
Other TabiltEs . ..ottt e e 98,251 [18,806 296,326
Net cash provided by (used in) Operating activities ... ... oottt e 31,518 (277,120 (188,929)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sales of investment SECUMILIES ... .. ... vttt 6,916,212 6,081,704 8,248,463
Proceeds from repayments and maturities of investment securities:
Available for sale . .. e 3,083,427 [,744,100 836,465
Held 1o MaturiTy ..o 235,030 289,463 4,255,897
Purchases of investment securities:
Avallable forsale .. ..o (9,682,574) (10,586.894) (6,157,701)
Held 10 MAtUrty .. oo e (834) (1,224) (2,704,498)
Proceeds from sales and securitizations of 10ans ... ... 2,806,995 3,724,085 2,385,619
Purchase of 10anS .. ... oot (2,773,784) (1,989,269) (2,572,063)
Net change in loans other than purchasesandsales .......... ... il (2,779,002) (826,284) 463,389
Proceeds from sales of premises and eqUIPMENt ... ...ooiv it e 7,953 32,059 46,490
Purchases of premises and equipment ... ... ... i (36,675) (19,673) (178,106)
Proceeds from sales of real estate owned ... .. ... e 15,014 8275 3,624
Net cash received from business combinations . ........ .. .cooiiiiieiii i 207,704 - £.916,345
Net cash provided by (Used in} iINVeStING ACTIVILIES . . ... ..ottt e (1,980,534) (1,543,658 6,543,924
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Net increase/(decrease) in deposits and other CUStOMEr aCCOUNES ..ot niiven o 2,230,510 (1,201,343) 210,550
Net increase/ (decrease) in BOrTOWINGS .. ... oottt 307,038 1,346,976 (5,449,523)
Net increase/{decrease) inlong-termdebt .. ... i i {379,521) 1,941418 813,068
Repayments of long-term nOtES .. .. ... . i e (125,000) (590,000 (569,982)
Sale of FHLB advances .. ... ... i - - (911,037)
Net decrease in advance payments by borrowers
OF LaXes AN INSUMANCE . ...ttt e et e e e e (3,785) (3,066) {4213)
Proceeds from minority IMTErEstS . . ..ot e - 64,187 140,396
Proceeds from issuance of trust preferred securities . .. ...... ... o - 96,166 -
Repurchase of trust preferred SeCUNtES ...\ v uvii i e e (12,836) (15,029) -
Proceeds from issuance of Common StOck ...ttt 15,437 156,893 5337
Termination of ESOP . .. 7,768 - -
(Purchase)/issuance of treasury Stock ........... . ot 80¢ (2,998) (194)
Cash dividends paid to stockholders ... ... . ... (26,058) (24,790) (22,988)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . ............. oo 2,004,351 1,768,414 (5,788,586)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents ....... ... ... o i i i 65,335 (52,364) 566,409
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .......... ... ... o 907,279 959,643 393,234
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ... ... ... . o i $ 972,614 $ 907,279 $ 959,643

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Supplemental Disclosures:

(in thousands) AT DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 2000
[NCOME LAXES PAIA . . . . .ttt et et $ 170,443 $ 33,620 $ 6,197
INTEreSt Paid ... ..o e 885,831 1,168,32} 1,407,637

Non-cash Transactions: On March 8, 2002, Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. issued | 1,367,000 shares as partial consideration for the
acquisition of Main Street Bancorp, Inc. (see footnote 3). Additionally, non-cash activity consisted of acquisitions which
included $9.1 billion of loans and assumption of $12.3 billion of deposits in 2000. Other non-cash activity consisted of
mortgage loan securitizations of $776 million in 2002, $587 million in 2001, and $1.2 billion in 2000.

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note [ - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries ("Sovereign” or “the Company”) is a Pennsylvania business corporation and is the
holding company of Sovereign Bank FSB (“Sovereign Bank” or “the Bank”). Sovereign is headquartered in Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania and Sovereign Bank is headquartered in Wyomissing, Pennsylvania. Sovereign’s primary business consists of
attracting deposits from its network of community banking offices, located throughout eastern Pennsylvania, New lersey,
New Hampshire, Massachusetts, Connecticut and Rhode Island, and originating commercial, consumer and residential
mortgage loans in those communities. Additionally, Sovereign has acquired residential mortgage loans and other consumer
loans throughout the United States.

The following is a description of the significant accounting policies of Sovereign. Such accounting policies are in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

a. Principles of Consolidation - The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of the parent company,
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc., and its subsidiaries, including the following wholly-owned subsidiaries: Sovereign Bank, Sovereign
Delaware Investment Corporation, Sovereign Capital Trust |, Sovereign Capital Trust |I, Sovereign Capital Trust lll, MBNK
Capital Trust | and ML Capital Trust 1. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

b. Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

c. Per Share Information - Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing income before extraordinary items and
net income by the weighted average actual common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential
dilution that would occur under the treasury stock method if securities or other contracts to issue common stock
(principally, stock options, unvested restricted stock and warrants) were exercised. See Note 25 for computation of
earnings per share.

d. Investment Securities - Investment securities that the Company has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are
classified as held to maturity and reported at amortized cost. Securities expected to be held for an indefinite period of time
are classified as available for sale and are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses reported as a component of
comprehensive income within stockholders’ equity, net of estimated income taxes. Gains or losses on the sales of securities
are recognized at the trade date utilizing the specific identification method. In determining if and when a decline in market
value below amortized cost is other-than-temporary, Sovereign evaluates the market conditions, offering prices, trends of
earnings, price multiples, and other key measures for its investments in marketable equity securities and debt instruments.
When such a decline in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary, the Company recognizes an impairment loss in the
current period operating results to the extent of the decline.

e. Loans Held for Sale - Loans held for sale are recorded at the lower of cost or estimated fair value at the time a
decision is made to sell the loan with any decline in value below its carrying amount charged to the allowance for loan losses.
Any subsequent decline in the estimated fair value of loans held for sale are included as expense in the consolidated
statements of operations.

f. Mortgage Servicing Rights — When Sovereign purchases rights to service assets or sells loans with servicing
retained, the Company recognizes, as separate assets, the rights to service mortgage loans. The initial recognition of
mortgage servicing assets is predicated upon an allocation of the total cost of the related loans between the loans and the
loan servicing rights based on their relative estimated fair values. Purchased mortgage servicing assets are recorded at cost.
Mortgage servicing rights are carried at the lower of amortized cost or fair value and are amortized against mortgage banking
revenues on an accelerated basis in proportion to, and over the period of, the estimated net future loan servicing fee
income. Periods initially do not exceed eight years. An impairment reserve is recorded in the period in which the impairment
occurs. The reserve for impairment is adjusted periodically based on changes in the expected prepayment speeds of the
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Note | - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

underlying loans that include, but are not limited to, residential real estate 30-year and | 5-year fixed rate mortgage mortgage
loans, adjustable rate mortgage loans and balloon loans. See Note 8 for details of mortgage banking activity.

g.Allowance for Loan Losses - An allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that management considers
adequate to provide for losses based upon an evaluation of known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio. Management's
evaluation takes into consideration the risks inherent in the loan portfolio, past loan loss experience, specific loans that have
losses, geographic and industry concentrations, delinquency trends, economic conditions, the level of originations and other
relevant factors. While management uses the best information available to make such evaluations, future adjustments to the
allowance may be necessary if conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the evaluations.

The allowance for loan losses consists of two elements: (i) an allocated allowance, which is comprised of allowances
established on specific loans, and class allowances based on historical loan loss experience adjusted for current trends, and
(il) an unallocated allowances based on both general economic conditions and other risk factors in the Company's individual
markets and portfolios, and to account for a level of imprecision in management’s estimation process.

The specific allowance element is based on a regular analysis of criticized commercial loans where internal credit ratings are
below a predetermined quality level. This analysis is performed by the Managed Assets Division, and periodically reviewed

by third parties, including the Commercial Asset Review Department. The specific allowance established for these criticized
loans is based on a careful analysis of related collateral value, cash flow considerations and, if applicable, guarantor capacity.

The class allowance element is determined by an internal loan grading process in conjunction with associated allowance
factors. These class allowance factors are updated at least quarterly and are based primarily on actual historical loss
experience, projected loss experience based on current conditions, consultation with regulatory authorities, and peer group
loss experience. While this analysis is conducted at least quarterly, the Company has the ability to revise the class allowance
factors whenever necessary in order to address improving or deteriorating credit quality trends or specific risks associated
with a given loan pool classification.

Regardiess of the extent of the Company’s analysis of customer performance, portfolio evaluations, trends or risk
management processes established, certain inherent, but undetected, losses are probable within the loan portfolio. This is
due to several factors, including inherent delays in obtaining information regarding a customer’s financial condition or changes
in their unique business conditions, the judgmental nature of individual loan evaluations, collateral assessments and the
interpretation of economic trends, and the sensitivity of assumptions utilized to establish allocated allowances for
homogeneous groups of loans among other factors. The Company maintains an unallocated allowance to recognize the
existence of these exposures.

These other risk factors are continuously reviewed and revised by management where conditions indicate that the estimates
initially applied are different from actual results.

A comprehensive analysis of the allowance for loan losses is performed by the Company on a quarterly basis. In addition, a
review of allowance levels based on nationally published statistics is conducted on an annual basis. Management has the
responsibility to affirm allowance methodology and to assess the general and specific allowance factors in relation to
estimated and actual net charge-off trends.

h. Loans - Loans are reported net of loan origination fees, direct origination costs and discounts and premiums
associated with purchased loans and unearned income. Interest on loans is credited to income as it is earned. Loan
origination fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and recognized as adjustments to interest income in the
consolidated statement of operations over the contractuat life of the loan utilizing the level yield method. Interest income is
not recognized on loans when the foan payment is 90 days or more delinquent (except auto loans, government-guaranteed
loans, residential and consumer loans with foan to values less than 50% that are placed on non-accrual after 120 days, or
loans secured by deposit accounts) or sooner if management believes the loan has become impaired.
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NoTES TOo CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note | - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A non-accrual loan is a loan in which it is probable that scheduled payments of principal and interest will not be paid when
due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, all accrued yet
uncollected interest is reversed from income. Payments received on non-accrual loans are generally applied to the
outstanding principal balance. In order for a non-accrual loan to revert to accruing status, all delinguent interest must be
paid and Sovereign must approve a repayment plan.

Consumer loans and residential real estate mortgage loans are generally charged-off when deemed to be uncollectible or
delinquent {80 days or more (120 days for auto loans), whichever comes first, unless it can be clearly demonstrated that
repayment will occur regardiess of the definquency status. Examples of this would include: a loan that is secured by
collateral and is in the process of coliection; a loan supported by a valid guarantee or insurance; or a loan supported by a
valid claim against a solvent estate. Charge-offs of commercial loans are made on the basis of management’s ongoing
evaluation of non-performing loans.

For purposes of measuring impairment as set forth by the provisions of SFAS No. | [4, “Accounting by Creditors for
Impairment of a Loan,” and SFAS No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan - Income Recognition and
Disclosure,” Sovereign defines impaired loans as non-accrual, non-homogeneous loans and certain other loans that are still
accruing, that management has specifically identified as being impaired.

i. Premises and Equipment - Premises and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is calculated utilizing the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Office buildings . ... ... ... 10to 30 years
Leasehold improvements .. ... ... i Remaining lease term
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . ... ... ... .. 3 to 10 years
Automobiles . 5 years

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

i. Other Real Estate Owned - Other real estate owned ("OREQ") consists of properties acquired by, or in lieu of,
foreclosure in partial or total satisfaction of non-performing loans. OREO obtained in satisfaction of a loan is recorded at
the lower of cost or estimated fair value minus estimated costs to sell based upon the property’s appraisal value at the date
of transfer. The excess of the carrying value of the loan over the fair value of the property minus estimated costs to sell are
charged to the allowance for loan losses. Any decline in the estimated fair value of OREO that occurs after the initial
transfer from the loan portfolio and costs of holding the property are recorded as operating expenses, except for significant
property improvements that are capitalized to the extent that carrying value does not exceed estimated fair value, OREO is
classified within other assets on the consolidated balance sheet.

k. Incomne Taxes - The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109. Under this
pronouncement, deferred taxes are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates that will apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates
is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment date.

I. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity - Sovereign enters into certain derivative transactions principally
to protect against the risk of adverse price or interest rate movements on the value of certain assets and liabilities and on
expected future cash flows. The Company is also required to recognize certain contracts as derivatives when the
characteristics of those contracts meet the definition of a derivative.

Effective January [, 2001, Sovereign adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
as amended, which requires all derivative instruments to be carried at fair value on the balance sheet. Prior to the adoption
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NOTE | - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

of SFAS No. 133, unrealized gains and losses on derivatives used for hedging purposes were generally not required to be
recorded in the financial statements. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 133, the Company recorded an after-tax gain of $0.7

million in the consolidated statement of income and an after-tax charge of $6.7 million in accumulated other comprehensive
income for the cumulative effects of the change in accounting for derivatives. Additionally, as allowed by SFAS No. 133,
Sovereign reclassified $800 million of held to maturity securities to available for sale on January 1, 2001. These securities
had an unrealized loss of ($3.2) million, net of tax of $1.7 million, at January |, 2001.

Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset,
liability, or firm commitment attributable to a particular risk, such as interest rate risk, are considered fair value hedges under
SFAS No. 133. Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to variability in expected
future cash flows, or other types of forecasted transactions, are considered cash flow hedges. The Company formally
documents the relationships of certain qualifying hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk-management
objective and strategy for undertaking each hedge transaction.

Fair value hedges are accounted for by recording the fair value of the derivative instrument and the fair value of the related
hedged asset, liability or firm commitment on the balance sheet with the corresponding income or expense recorded in the
consolidated statement of operaticns. The adjustment to the hedged asset or liability is included in the basis of the hedged
item, while the fair value of the derivative is recorded as an asset or liability. Actual cash receipts or payments and related
amounts accrued during the period on derivatives included in a fair value hedge relationship are recorded as adjustments to
the interest income or expense recorded on the hedged asset or liability.

Cash flow hedges are accounted for by recording the fair value of the derivative instrument on the balance sheet as an asset or
fiability, with a corresponding charge or credit, net of tax recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income within
stockholders’ equity, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Amounts are reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income to the statement of operations in the period or periods the hedged transaction affects earnings. Gains and
losses on derivative instruments not considered highly effective in hedging the change in fair value or expected cash flows of the
hedged item, or derivatives not designated in hedging relationships, are recognized immediately in the statement of operations.

m. Forward Exchange - Sovereign enters into forward exchange contracts to provide for the needs of its customers.
Forward exchange contracts are recorded at fair value based on current exchange rates. All gains or losses on forward
exchange contracts are included in capital markets revenue.

n. Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows - For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash and amounts due from depository institutions, interest-earning deposits and securities purchased under resale
agreements with an original maturity of three months or less.

o. Reclassifications - Certain amounts in the financial statements of prior periods have been reclassified to conform
with the 2002 presentation.

p. Goodwiil and Other intangibles - Core deposit intangibles are a measure of the value of checking and savings
deposits acquired in business combinations accounted for under the purchase method. Core deposit intangibles are
amortized on an accelerated or straight line basis over the estimated lives of the existing deposit relationships acquired, but
not exceeding 10 years. Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the assets and liabilities of
companies acquired through business combinations accounted for under the purchase method.

Through December 31, 2001, goodwill was amortized using the straight line method over various periods not exceeding 25
years. Effective January |, 2002, Sovereign adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” under which
goodwill is no longer amortized, but is subject to an annual impairment test. Separable intangible assets that are not deemed
to have an indefinite life continue to be amortized over their useful lives. The Company completed its initial and annual
testing for impairment of goodwill with no impairment charges required to be recorded in 2002. If an impairment loss is
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Note | - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies {(Continued)

determined in the future, the loss will be reflected as an expense in the statement of operations in the period in which the
impairment was determined. At December 31, 2002, Sovereign had $1.0 billion and $343 million of goodwill and core
deposit intangibles, respectively.

q. Asset Securitizations - Sovereign has securitized mortgage loans, home equity and other consumer loans, as well
as automotive floor plan receivables that it originated and/or purchased from certain other financial institutions. After
receivables or loans are securitized, the Company continues to maintain account relationships with its customers. Sovereign
may provide administrative, liquidity facilities and/or other services to the resulting securitization entities, and may continue
to service the financial assets sold to the securitization entity.

If the securitization transaction meets the accounting requirements for deconsolidation and sale treatment under SFAS No.
140, the securitized receivables or loans are removed from the balance sheet and a net gain or loss is recognized in income
at the time of initial sale and each subsequent sale. Net gains or losses resulting from securitizations are recorded in
noninterest income.

Retained interests in the subordinated traunches and interest-only strips are recorded at their estimated fair value and
included in the available for sale securities portfolio with subsequent adjustments to fair value recorded through other
comprehensive income within stockholders’ equity. Any decline in the estimated fair value below the carrying amount that is
determined to be other-than-temporary is charged to earnings in the statement of operations. The Company uses
assumptions and estimates in determining the fair value allocated to the retained interests at the time of sale and each
subsequent accounting period in accordance with SFAS No. 140. These assumptions and estimates include projections
concerning rates charged to customers, the expected life of the receivables, credit loss experience, loan repayment rates, the
cost of funds, and discount rates commensurate with the risks involved. :

On a quarterly basis, management reviews the historical performance of each retained interest and the assumptions used to
project future cash flows. Refer to Note 24 for further analysis of the assumptions used in the determination of fair value.

r. Stock Based Compensation — Sovereign adopted the expense recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock Based Compensation,” for stock based employee compensation awards issued on or after January |,
2002. Management elected to adopt this new method since it believes it is the preferable method of accounting in this area.
Sovereign continues to account for all options granted prior to January |, 2002, in accordance with the intrinsic value model
of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” Sovereign estimates the fair value of option grants
issued subsequent to January |, 2002, using a Black-Scholes option pricing model and expenses this value over the vesting
periods as required in SFAS No. 123. Reductions in compensation expense associated with forfeited options are estimated
at the date of grant, and this estimated forfeiture rate is adjusted periodically based on actual forfeiture experience.
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For purposes of calculating the estimated fair value of stock options under SFAS No. 123 in 2002 and for providing the pro-
forma disclosures required under SFAS No. 148, the fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using a
Black-Scholes option pricing model with the foliowing assumptions:

Grant date year

2002 2001 2000
Expected volatility . . ... ..o .346-.383 352 325
Expected lifeinyears .. ... o 6.00 6.00 6.00
Stock price ondate of Brant. ... i $12.77-$15.10  $825-%i232 $ 6.69-%78I
EXBTCIS PrICE « vttt e $12.77-815.10 $825-%12.32 $ 6.69- %78l
Weighted average exercise Price ...........oooiiii e $ 12.86 $ 8.55 $ 6.90
Weighted average fairvalue .. ..o % 8.27 $ 339 $ 273
Expected dividend yield ... ... ... 66% - .78% 82% 1.21%
Risk-free INTEreSLIFAtE . ...\ttt 3.01% - 5.05% 478% - 5.01% 6.67% - 6.85%
Vesting Period i YEars ... ... .. I-5 I-5 I-5
The following table reconcites the required disclosure under SFAS No. 148, which summarizes the amount of stock-based
compensation expense, net of related tax effects, included in the determination of net income if the expense recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123 had been applied to all stock option awards.
2002 2004 2000

Net income (105s), 85 rBPOMEd . ..ottt e e $ 341,985 $ 116,821 $ (30242
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense

included in reported net income, net of related tax effects . ......... ... ... 9,249 - -
Deduct: Total stock-based employee expense

determined under the fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax benefits .. ........ (15,049) {3.500) {3,500
Pro-forma NetincomE ... .o e $ 334,185 $ 113,321 $ (33,742
Basic earnings per share after extraordinary items of ($.03) in 2001 and $.05in2000 .............. $ 1.32 $ 0.48 $ (0.13)
Diluted earnings per share after extraordinary items of ($.03)in 2001 and $.05in 2000 ............. $ 1.23 $ 0.45 $ (©.13)
Pro-forma basic earnings per share after extraordinary items of ($.03) in 200} and $.05in 2000 . ... .. $ 1.30 $ 0.46 $ (0.15)
Pro-forma diluted earnings per share after extraordinary iters of ($.03) in 2001 and $.05in 2000 .. .. $ 1.21 $ 0.44 $ (0.15)
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NoTE 2 -~ RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46™),
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” This interpretation provides guidance on how to identify a variable interest
entity ("VIE”) and determine when the assets, liabilities, noncontrolling interests, and results of operations of a VIE need to
be included in a company’s consolidated financial statements. A company that holds a variable interest in an entity will need
to consolidate the entity if the company’s interest in the VIE is such that the company will absorb a majority of the VIE's
expected losses and/or receive a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, if they occur. FIN 46 also requires
additional disclosures by primary beneficiaries and other significant variable interest holders for all financial statements issued
after January 31, 2003. The new accounting provisions of this interpretation became effective upon issuance for all new
variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003, and to variable interest entities in which an enterprise obtains an
interest after that date. It applies to the first fiscal year or interim period beginning after June |5, 2003, to variable interest
entities in which an enterprise holds a variable interest that it acquired before February |, 2003. The Company is currently
assessing the impact, if any, the interpretation will have on our accounting for special purpose entities and Sovereign’s results
of operations and financial position.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No, 45 (“FIN 45™), “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Reguirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” This interpretation expands the
disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees and requires
the guarantor to recognize a liability for the fair value of an obligation assumed under certain specified guarantees. FIN 45
clarifies the requirements of SFAS No. 5 relating to guarantees. In general, FIN 45 applies to contracts or indemnification
agreements that contingently require the guarantor to make payments to the guaranteed party based on changes in an
underlying that is related to an asset, liability, or equity security of the guaranteed party. Certain guarantee contracts are
excluded from both the disclosure and recognition requirements of this interpretation, including, among others, guarantees
related to commercial letters of credit, loan commitments, and subordinated interests in an SPE. Other guarantees are
subject to the disclosure requirements of FIN 45 but not to the recognition provisions and include, among others, a
guarantee accounted for as a derivative instrument under SFAS No. 133, a parent’s guarantee of debt owed to a third party
by its subsidiary or vice versa, and a guarantee that is based on performance not price. The disclosure requirements of FIN
45 are effective for Sovereign as of December 31, 2002, and require disclosure of the nature of the guarantee, the maximum
potential amount of future payments that the guarantor could be required to make under the guarantee, and the current
amount of the liability, if any, for the guarantor’s obligations under the guarantee (see Note 21). The accounting recognition
requirements of FIN 45 are to be applied prospectively to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002.
Adoption of FIN 45 will not have a material impact on our results of operations or financial position.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and
Disclosure,” which provides guidance for entities that voluntarily change from the intrinsic value method of accounting for
stock based compensation under ABP 25 to the fair value method of accounting under SFAS No. 123. Sovereign elected to
adopt the fair value method of accounting under SFAS No. 123 during 2002. As permitted by SFAS No. 123 and SFAS No.
148, the fair value method of accounting for stock options was applied prospectively to options granted subsequent to
January |, 2002. Additional disclosures are required under SFAS No. 148 on both an annual and interim basis. See Note |
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the disclosures required under this statement.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, No. 44 and No. 64, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. |3, and Technical Corrections.” This statement rescinds SFAS No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from
Extinguishments of Debt,” and SFAS No. 64, “Extinguishments of Debt Made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements.” The
statement requires gains and losses from debt extinguishments to be classified as income from operations rather than as
extraordinary items. The Company will adopt this statement on January [, 2003.
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NOTE 2 - RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 46, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” This
statement addresses the accounting for costs associated with disposal activities covered by SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” and with exit and restructuring activities previously covered by Emerging
Issues Task Force (“EITF") Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs
to Exit an Activity.” This statement supercedes EITF No. 94-3 in its entirety and requires that a liability for alf costs be
recognized when the liability is incurred. This Statement also establishes a fair value objective for initial measurement of the
liability. The statement will be applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002.

In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147, “Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions, an amendment of SFAS No.
72 and SFAS No. 144 and FASB Interpretation No. 9.” This statement addresses the financial accounting and reporting for
the acquisition of all or part of a financial institution that does not qualify as a business combination. The acquisition of all or
part of a financial institution that meets the definition of a business combination shall be accounted for by the purchase
method in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations.” Since Sovereign has accounted for all its previous bank
acquisitions as business combinations, identifying core deposit intangibles separate from goodwill, the adoption of the
pronouncement has no impact on our financial position or results of operations.

NoTE 3 - BUusiNEss COMBINATIONS

On March 8, 2002, Sovereign completed the purchase of Main Street Bancorp, Inc., a commercial bank holding company
headquartered in Reading, Pennsylvania. The results of Main Street’s operations are included in the accompanying financial
statements subsequent to the purchase date. Collectively, Main Street shareholders elected to receive approximately 85% of
the purchase price in Sovereign common stock and 15% in cash. Sovereign issued | 1.4 million shares of common stock, net
of Sovereign's shares held by Main Street valued at $145.5 million, and made cash payments of $31.5 million to acquire all
outstanding Main Street shares and pay associated fees. The number of Sovereign shares issued was determined based on
the average price of Sovereign's stock over the |0 day period preceding closing as provided in the purchase agreement. The
acquisition enhanced Sovereign’'s market share throughout its existing service area in eastern Pennsylvania.

The purchase price was allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired of Main Street based on fair value as of March 8, 2002
(dollars in millions):

Assets Liabilities

Investments ... $ 3059 Deposits:

Loans: Core oo $ 700.6
Commercial .......covviii 5270 TiMe 554.6
Consumer ..o 152.7 Total deposits ... ..o ,255.2
Residential ............... oo 165.6 Borrowings and long-termdebt .................. 869

Totalloans ... 8453 Other liabilies ...............oo oot 237

Less allowance for loanlosses ................... (14.9) Trust preferred securities ................. ... 10.0

Totalloans,net ................... L 8304

Federal fundsandcash ......................... 2393 Total liabilities . ..................o i $ 13758

Premises and equipment, net ........... . 260 -

Other real estateowned ....................... 08

Prepaid expenses and other assets . ............... 14.9

Core depositintangble .. .............. ..o 344

Goodwill ... 69.6

Total assets ... vivi e $ 15213

In connection with the Main Street acquisition, Sovereign recorded charges in its 2002 Consolidated Statement of
Operations. See additional discussion in Note 29.
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NoTe 3 - BusiNess COMBINATIONS {CONTINUED)

On February 28, 2000, Sovereign entered into an amended purchase and assumption agreement with FleetBoston Financial
to acquire branch banking offices located in Connecticut, Massachusetts, New Hampshire and Rhode Island, and related
deposit liabilities, loans and other assets associated with the business of those branches (the “New England Acquisition”).
In total, the Bank purchased 281 community banking offices (exclusive of four locations that were resold to a third party).
The New England Acquisition, which resulted in the creation of Sovereign Bank New England division of Sovereign Bank
("SBNE™), included the former Fleet Bank community banking franchise in eastern Massachusetts, Rhode Island, and select
community banking offices of Fleet Bank in Southern New Hampshire and BankBoston in Connecticut. In addition,
Sovereign acquired a substantial portion of the middle market and small business-lending group from Fleet Bank in
Massachusetts and New Hampshire, and from BankBoston in Rhode Island and Connecticut. The New England Acquisition
included the purchase of fully functioning business units, with the necessary management, relationship officers, support staff
and other infrastructure for the acquired loans and deposits to be fully serviced.

Sovereign acquired the assets from FleetBoston in three phases in March, June and July of 2000. Sovereign’s results included
the operations of these acquired branches, assets and liabilities from their respective acquisition dates. Total liabilities
assumed through the acquisition were $12.3 billion. Additionally, tangible assets purchased by Sovereign included loan
balances of $9.1 billion, which included $3.1 billion of commercial loans and leases, $1.7 billion of consumer oans and $4.3
billion of residential mortgages (inclusive of $1.1 billion of residential mortgages which were not relationship assets that were
subsequently sold), and $546 million of other assets. Cash received, net of the premium paid, was $1.9 billion.

Total consideration for the New England Acquisition was 2% of acquired deposits, less agreed upon reductions. The
premium was comprised of: a) $848 million, which was paid as of the final closing on July 21, 2000, and b) $363 million, paid
in periodic instaliments from January 2001 through September 200! upon FleetBoston's compliance with non-solicitation
obligations specified under the purchase agreement and satisfaction of certain other conditions. These payments were
recorded as expense ratably from the completion of the New England Acquisition on July 21, 2000 through the non-
solicitation period. After taking into consideration fair value adjustments on acquired assets of $163 million, recognition of a
$352 million core deposit intangible, establishment of an initial allowance for loan losses of $135 million, and direct costs
associated with the acquisition of $32 miflion, total goodwill of $826 million was recorded in the transaction.

In November 2000, the Company announced the results of a restructuring initiative, In addition to realigning the Office of
the Chief Executive Officer and the Company around customer segments, Sovereign analyzed front and back office
operaticns and computer operating platforms and eliminated approximately 500 positions. In total, Sovereign recorded $27
million in restructuring costs, $8.5 million of which was recorded in 2001 related tc the closure of 14 “in-store” offices and a
redirection of e-commerce efforts, and $18.5 million recorded during 2000 that was comprised of $14 million of severance
and outplacement costs, and a $4.5 million write-off of a redundant computer-operating platform.

NoTte 4 = Goobwitl AND CoRE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 and discontinued amortizing goodwill effective January I, 2002. See Note | for a
discussion of the Company’s accounting policies with regards to goodwill and core deposit intangible assets.

The estimated aggregate amortization expense related to core deposit intangibles for each of the five succeeding calendar
years ending December 31 is:

YEAR : AMOUNT
2003 L $ 73835
2004 66,856
200 e 57,945
2006 51,047
2007 44,104




NoTe 4 - GoopwiLL AND CoRE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE ASSETS {CONTINUED)

The following table reflects the pro forma results of operations as if SFAS No. 142 had been adopted as of January |, 2000,
(in thousands, except per share amounts):

2002 2001 2000
Reported income (loss) before extraordinary item ... ooi i $ 341,985 $ 123,370 $ 41.017)
Add: Goodwill amortization, Net Of TaX .. .. ...\ o et - 31,032 20,624
Pro forma income (loss) before extraordinary item ... ... 341,985 154,402 (20,393)
Pro forma netincome (JOss) . . ... 341,985 147,853 (9.618)
Reported diluted EPS before extraordinary item ... oo 1.23 0.48 (0.18)
Add: Goodwill amortization, net of tax ... ... - 0.12 0.09
Pro forma diluted EPS before extraordinary item .........o i 1.23 0.60 (0.09)
Pro formadiluted BPS ... oo e 1.23 0.57 (0.04)

NoTe § - ResTricTiOoNS ON CAsH AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM DEPOSITORY INSTITUTIONS

Sovereign Bank is required to maintain certain average reserve balances as established by the Federal Reserve Board. The
amounts of those reserve balances for the reserve computation periods at December 31, 2002 and 2001 were $345 million
and $277 million, respectively.

NOTE 6 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities are as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001
AMORTIZED  UNREALIZED  UNREALIZED FAIR AMORTIZED  UNREALIZED  UNREALIZED FAIR
COST APPRECIATION DEPRECIATION YALUE COST APPRECIATION DEPRECIATION VALUE
Investment Securities
Available for sale:
Investment Securities:
U.S. Treasury and
government agency
SECUMUES « . oo v e v e e $ 3,274 $ 96 3 - § 31,370 % 23,109 3 93 $ 23 $ 23179

Corporate debt and

asset-backed

SECUMUES . ..\ v et 958,094 20,553 10,625 968,022 322813 5,357 14,310 313,860
FHLB stock and Preferred

stock of FNMA and

FreddieMac. .............. ... .. ..... 1,035,431 5,043 193 1,040,281 790,391 2,63! 160 792,862
State and municipal

SECUMILIBS . .o ot r ettt 23,497 57 - 23,554 22452 1942 2 24,392

Mortgage-backed

Securities:
U.S. government

BEENCIES .\t 5,990,521 174,991 38 6,165,474 6.625.498 34371 33828 6,626,041
Non-agencies 2,456,522 48,349 8 2,504,863 1,783,485 23,062 5,202 1,801,345

Total investment
securities available
forsale ... $ 10495339 § 249,089 § 10,864 $ 10,733,564 $ 9567748 $ 67,456 % 53,525 § 9,581,679

Held to maturity:
tnvesument Securities:
U.S. Treasury and
government agency

SBCUMALES .. oot $ 1,705  § 6 3 - % 1,765 § 1905 % 55 % - 3 1.960
State and municipal
SECURHES .ot s 2,069 33 3 2,099 4,128 35 2 4,161
Mortgage-backed
Securities:
US. government agencies ................ 624,793 17,613 130 642,276 872,154 9,851 10.144 871.861
Non-agencies ... 3,946 19 55 3,910 5250 47 74 5,226

Total investment
securities held
TOMAUMLY o v i $ 632513 § 17,725 § 188 $ 650,050 § 883437 $ 9988 % 10217 $ 883,208
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NOTE 6 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES {CONTINUED)

Proceeds from sales of investment securities classified as available for sale and the realized gross gains and losses from those
sales are as follows (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001 2000
Proceeds from sales . . ... i $ 6,916,202 $ 6,081,704 $ 8248463
Gross realized gains . ... ..o e 62,696 36,283 3,039
Gross realized 10SSES ... . .. (2,656) (6,048) (123916)
Net realized gains/(JOSSES) . . .o\t e et et e e $ 60,040 $ 30,235 $  (120877)

Not included in the 2002 amount above were impairment writedowns of $4.8 million and $4.0 million related to our
retained interests in securitizations and our venture capital and equity method investments.

Contractual maturities and yields of Sovereign’s investment securities available for sale at December 31, 2002 are as foliows:

INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE AT DECEMBER 31,2002

DUE AFTER WEIGHTED
DUEWITHIN DUEAFTER| DUEAFTER5 I0YEARS/NO AVERAGE
ONEYEAR  WITHIN 5YRS WITHIN 10YRS MATURITY TOTAL YIELD ®

US. Treasury and government agency ......... $ 30736 % 634 § - $ - 3 31,370 252%
Corporate debt and asset backed securities . . . .. 213,937 489,702 149,612 114,771 968,022 7.33%
FHLB stock and Preferred stock of FNMA

andFHLMC ..o - - - 1,040,28/ 1,040,281 6.38%
State and Municipal securities ................ 33 4,160 12,534 6,827 23554 6.62%
Mortgage-backed Securities ®:

U.S. government agencies ................ 2,171,526 2,891,944 756,103 345,901 6,165,474 4.35%

Non-agencies ............. ... ..., 1,845,639 616,984 32331 9,509 2,504,863 331%
Total FairValue ...l $ 4261871 § 4003424 $ 950580 § 517689 $ 10733564 457%
Weighted averageyield .................. ... 3.90% 461% 4.85% 6.20% 4.57%
Total Amortized Cost ...l $ 417788 § 3884066 $ 928361 & 1505054 § 10495339
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Maturities and yields of Sovereign's investment securities classified as held to maturity at December 31, 2002 are as follows:

INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY AT DECEMBER 31, 2002¢

NOTE 6 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

DUEAFTER WEIGHTED
DUEWITHIN DUEAFTER1 DUEAFTERS I|0YEARS/NO AVERAGE
ONEYEAR WITHIN 5YRS WITHIN I0YRS MATURITY TOTAL YIELD®

US. Treasury and government agency ......... $ 100 $ 1605 % - 3 - % 1,705 6.84%
State and Municipal securities .. .............. 1,574 78 272 145 2,069 5.68%
Mortgage-backed Securities®:

US. government agencies ................ 274,085 271228 52,236 27,244 624,793 5.44%

Non-agencies .......................... 1,278 2,132 485 5] 3,946 4.45%
Total Amortized Cost . ... v iiei e $ 277037 % 275043 $ 52993 % 27440 632513 5.43%
Weighted-averageyield® ................... 5.39% 5.36% 5.73% 6.00% 5.43%
Total Fair Value .................. ... $ 28488 % 281889 % 54487 % 28788 $§ 650,050

(1) The maturities above do not represent the effective duration of Sovereign’s portfolio since the amounts above are based on contractual maturities and do not contemplate anticipated prepayments. with the

excepiion of the securities in note 2 below.

(2) Mortgage-backed securities are assigned to maiurity categories based on their estimated average lives.

(3) Weighted-average yields are based on amortized cost. Yields on tax exempt securities are calculated on a tax equivalent basis and are based on an effective tax rate of 35%.

Income not subject to tax included in interest and dividends on investment securities was $15.4 million, $29.1 million and
$27.1 million for years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Tax expense/(benefit) related to net
realized gains and losses from sales of investment securities for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were
$17.9 million, $10.6 million and $(42.3) million, respectively.

Investment securities with an estimated fair value of $3.1 billion and $3.8 billion were pledged as collateral for borrowings,
interest rate agreements and public deposits at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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NoTes To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7 - LoaNs

A summary of loans included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001

Commercial real 5tate l0ans ... ...\ it $ 3,883,421 $ 2987747
Commercial and industrial [0aNS . .. .. .. .. 5,007,045 4,506,198
OHREr O 1,370,181 1,069,658

Total Commercial Loans ... ... .. 10,260,647 8,563,603
HOME 8QUILY 08NS . . oottt 5,165,834 3,756,391
A0 L0aNS o o e 3,038,976 2,733,106
OB o e e e 314,356 341,265

Total ConsumEr LOans .. ..o e 8,519,166 6,830,762
Residential real estate l0ans . . ... .o 4,347,512 5,005,219
TOtal LOANS .ot e $ 23,127,325 $ 20,399,584
Total Loans with:

FIXEA FalE o $ 13,599,898 $ 12875742

Varable Fate . e 9,527,427 7,523,842

Ot LOaNS . i e e $ 23,127,325 $ 20,399,584

(1) Other commercial loans consist of autamotive dealer floor plan loans, muftifamily loans and loans to auto lessors.

Loans are recorded net of loan origination fees, direct origination costs and discounts and premiums associated with

purchased loans. Components of recorded balances are as follows at the dates indicated (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,

2001

2002
Principal Value ..o e $ 23,026,026
Direct origination costs, net
of deferred l0an fees . ... o 41,858
Purchase premiums, net of disSCOUNTS ... ... 59,441
Total LOAMS . . e $ 23,127,325

$ 20,341,303

35,584
22,697

$ 20,399,584

Loans to related parties include loans made to certain officers, directors and their affiliated interests. At December 31, 2002
and 2001, loans made by Sovereign Bank to these parties totaled $3 1.2 million and $20.1 million, respectively. Loans made
by Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. to executives totaled $8.2 million at December 31, 2001. No loans were outstanding to

executives from Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. at December 31, 2002.
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NoTE 7 - LoAans (CONTINUED)

The activity in the allowance for loan losses is as follows (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001 2000

Balance, beginning of period .. ... ... $ 264,667 $ 256,356 $ 132,986
Allowance acquired/established in acquisitions . .......... . e 14,877 - 134,706
Provision for 0an l0sSes . .. . ... oo i 146,500 97,100 56,500
Charge-offs:

ResIdEntal B L B,186 7,506 8,293
COMMBTCIAl Lot e 85,931 46,214 41,071
CONSUMET . e ettt e 68,528 67,220 43,528
Total charge-offs .. ... oo 162,645 120,940 92,892
Recoveries:

Residential O . 525 2,500 1,433
Commercial .. 6,082 3177 8,729
COMSUMIET ot e e 28,744 26,474 14,894
Tt FBCOVBIES .ottt e e 35,351 32,151 25,056
Charge-offs, net of recoveries ... ... 127,294 88,789 67,836
Balance, end of period ... ... $ 298,750 $ 264,667 $ 256,356

(1) The 2002 residentiaf charge-offs include $4.6 million of charge-offs incurred as part of accelerated dispositions of non-performing residential loans sold during the first and fourth quarter of 2002.

Impaired, non-performing, and past due loans are summarized as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001
Impaired loans with a related allowance .. ... ... . $ 381,492 $ 352,562
Impaired foans without a related allowance . ... ... . - -
Totalimpaired [0ans .. ... ... $ 381,492 $ 352562
Allowance for impaired I0ans ... ... . . 3 88,112 $ 73,741
Total Non-performing loans .. .. ... o $ 231,392 $ 225818
Total loans past due 90 days as to interest or principal and accruing interest . ......... ... i $ 40,500 $ 54,599

If Sovereign’s non-accruing and restructured foans had been current in accordance with their original terms and had been
outstanding throughout the period, gross interest income for the years ended December 31, 2002, 200! and 2000 would
have increased by approximately $7.6 million, $9.1 million and $7.0 million, respectively. Interest income recorded on these
loans for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $9.5 million, $6.6 million and $3.8 million, respectively.
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NOoTE 8 - MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS

At December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, Sovereign serviced loans for the benefit of others totaling $6.1 billion, $5.1 billion,
and $4.2 billion, respectively. The following table presents a summary of the activity of the asset established for Sovereign’s
mortgage servicing rights for the years indicated (in thousands). See discussion of Sovereign’s accounting policy for mortgage
servicing rights in footnote 1.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11,
2002 2001 2000
Gross balance, beginning of year ......... ... o $ 60,998 $ 41,541 $ 77349
Servicing assets sold .. ... L - - (34.842)
Net servicing assets recognized ... ....ooie it 35,747 29,083 7971
AMOMIZAtON . . oottt et et {17,295) (9,626) (8,937)
Gross balance, end of year .. ... ... 79,450 60,998 41 54|
Valuation allowanCe ... ..o (23,952) (10,280) {2,183)
Balance, end of year .. ... . i $ §5,498 $ 50,718 $ 39,358

A valuation allowance is established for the excess of the cost of each mortgage servicing asset stratum over its estimated
fair value. At December 31, 2002, the estimated fair value was determined using a weighted average discount rate of 9.1%
and assumed prepayment speeds consistent with published secondary market rates applicable to the areas of the serviced
foans. Sovereign also takes into consideration any inherent risks, as well as other relevant factors associated with each portfolio.
Prices are obtained in the secondary market and are based upon current market prices of similarly traded loans and/or
comparable secondary market instruments.

Activity in the valuation allowance for mortgage servicing rights for the years indicated consisted of the following (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 2000
Balance, beginning of period .. ... . $ 10,280 $ 2,183 $ 4,858
Increase/(decrease} in valuation
aflowance for mortgage servicing rights ... o i 13,672 8,097 {2,675)
Balance, end Of YEar ... o\t e $ 23,952 $ 10,280 $ 2,183

NoTE 9 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of premises and equipment, less accumulated depreciation and amortization, follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001

T $ 13,502 $ 11,581
Office buildings .............. e 92,442 74,865
Furniture, fixtures, and eQUIPMENT . ..o ottt e e 245,912 215313
Leasehold IMPrOVEMENtS . . . .o e e 82,924 65,044
AUTOMOBIlES . . o e 324 441
435,104 367,244
Less accumulated EPrecialion .. ... ... it {153,677) (115,657)
Total premises and @QUIPMENT . .. ..o\ttt ettt et e e e $ 281,427 $ 251,587
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Included in occupancy and equipment expense for 2002, 2001 and 2000 were depreciation expenses of $49.5 million, $43. 1

million, and $36.6 million, respectively. Sovereign also recorded rental expenses of $88.6 million, $72.9 million and $46.8
million, net of $14.0 million, $11.2 million, and $5.2 million of sublease income in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

NoTE [0 - AccrRUED ENTEREST RECEIVABLE

Accrued interest receivable is summarized as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001

Accrued interest receivable on:

VS IMIBNT SECURILIES © .\ o oottt e e et e e e e e $ 54,156 3 65,357

oY1 A A 121,135 118,556

Total INTerest reCaivabIE . . o $ 175,291 $ 183,913
NoTe [ - DEPOSITS
Deposits are summarized as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001
BALANCE PERCENT RATE BALANCE PERCENT RATE

Demand deposit accounts . .................. $ 4,067,784 15% -% $ 3719829 16% --%
NOW accounts .......ovvveeriinennnnn.n. 6,967,973 26 1.37 4414123 19 0.87
Savings aCCoUNT ..o v 2,971,779 It 0.9¢ 2,930,987 13 | 44
Money market accounts .. .................. 5,757,423 22 1.32 5,010,548 21 .73
Certificates of deposit . ... .................. 7,020,02i 26 317 7,222,087 31 410

Total deposits ... $ 26,784,980 100% 1.58% $ 23,297,574 100% 1.99%
Interest expense on deposits is summarized as follows (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001 2000

Demand deposit and NOW accounts ... ..o e $ 68,038 3 71,350 $ 81,877
SAVINGS ACCOUNES . . oottt ettt et e e e e e e 38,413 57716 67,845
Money Market @CCOUNMES . . . .o v vttt et ettt et et e e 99,161 144,168 132,130
Certficates of deposit . ... 252,675 432,652 453,235

Total interest expense ON dePOSITS . . . ...\ .ot i it $ 458,287 $ 705,886 $ 735,087

The foliowing table sets forth the maturity of Sovereign’s certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more as scheduled to
mature contractually at December 31, 2002 (in thousands):

Three MONths OF eSS .. .. oL
Over three through six MONRthS ... ... L
Over six through twelve months .. ...

Over tWEIVE MONTNS . . e e e e e e

AT DECEMBER 31,

2002
$ 420,484
198,921
310,685
404,664

$ 1,334,754
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The following table sets forth the maturity of Sovereign’s certificates of deposit as scheduled to mature contractually at
December 31, 2002 (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,

2002
2003 e e $ 5,081,908
2004 e e 1,501,944
200 173,771
2006 94,580
2007 80,548
=T =T =1 D O 87,270
TOW oot $  7,020,02!

NoTe [2 - BORROWINGS

Borrowings represent financing arrangements under which the initial maturity is less than one year and are as follows
(in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2002 2008
Weighted- Weighted-

average average

Balance Rate Balance Rate
Federal funds purchased ......... ... .. ... $ - -% % 452,002 1.75%
Securities sold under repurchase agreements .............oiiiiieii s 1,383,300 .38% 297,74/ 1.45%
Federal Home Loan Bank advances ................coooiiiiiiiieniinns 1,602,500 1.56% 1,929,021 3.08%
Total borrowings ... ... $ 2,985,800 1.001% $ 2,678,764 267%

Included in 2002 borrowings are sales of securities under repurchase agreements. Repurchase agreements are treated as
financings with the obligations to repurchase securities sold reflected as a liability in the balance sheet. The dollar amount
of securities underlying the agreements remains recorded as an asset, although the securities underlying the agreements

are delivered to the brokers who arranged the transactions. In certain instances, the broker may have sold, loaned, or
disposed of the securities to other parties in the normal course of their operations, and have agreed to deliver to Sovereign
substantially similar securities at the maturity of the agreements. The broker/dealers who participate with Sovereign in these
agreements are primarily broker/dealers reporting to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York. Securities underlying sales of
securities under repurchase agreements consisted of investment securities that had an amortized cost of $1.38 billion and a
market value of $1.39 billion at December 31, 2002. At December 31, 2002, Sovereign has securities sold under
repurchase agreements with certain individual counterparties, namely Credit Suisse First Boston, Merrill Lynch, and Bank of
America, totalling $280 million, $425 million, and $398 million, respectively.

Short-term FHLB advances are collateralized by qualifying mortgage-related assets as defined by the FHLB.
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NoTE [3 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt representing borrowings with original maturities of more than one year and consisted of the following (in
thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001

Securities sold under repurchase agreements, maturing 2003 through 2006 ................. ... L $ 155,000 $ 155,000
FHLB advances, maturing January 2003 to April 2012 ... .. 3,792,616 4,105,929
Senior secured credit facility, maturing May 31, 2005 to February 28,2007 ... ... ... ... oo 120,000 225,000
Asset-backed floating rate notes, due April, 2013 . L 821,000 821,000
8.625% senior notes, due March 15,2004 . .. o 174,919 174,856
10.25% senior notes, due May 15, 2004 . ... o e 200,000 200,000
10.50% senior notes, due November 15,2006 . ... ... . e 529,654 500,000
8.50% subordinated debentures, due 2002 ... - 19,996
8.00% subordinated debentures, due 2003 . .. 49,995 49,978
Oher . 305 9,247

$ 5,843,489 $ 6261,006

Long-term debt includes sales of securities under repurchase agreements with weighted average interest rates of 4.71% at
December 31, 2002. Securities underlying these repurchase agreements consist of investment securities that had a book
value of $159.8 million, and a market value of $163.8 million at December 31, 2002.

Long-term FHLB advances are collateralized by qualifying mortgage-related assets as defined by the FHLB. Long-term FHLB
advances had weighted average interest rates of 5.34% and 5.28% at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In March 2001, Sovereign completed a $400 million senior secured credit facility with the Bank of Scotland. Proceeds from
the issuance were partially used to prepay an existing $350 million senior secured credit facility. In connection with this
transaction, Sovereign wrote off $6.5 million net of tax ($10.! million pre-tax) of deferred issuance costs remaining from the
existing line of credit. The write-off of these costs were reflected net of tax as an extraordinary item.

The senior secured credit facility with Bank of Scotland consists of a $350 million revolving line and a $50 million term note.
The revolving line provides $350 million of capacity through August of 2005 with the maximum amount available reduced as
follows: $300 million - August 31, 2005; $250 million - November 30, 2005; $200 million - February 28, 2006; $150 million -
May 30, 2006; $100 million - August 30, 2006; $50 million - November 30, 2006. The revolving facility matures on February
28, 2007 with no mandatory prepayments. The term loan matures on May 31, 2005. Interest is calculated, at the option of
Sovereign, at LIBOR or ABR, defined as the greater of (i) the lender’s prime rate and (i) the Federal Funds Rate plus .50%, plus
applicable margin. The applicable margin is adjusted based on the rate option selected by the borrower and Sovereign’s
Senior Unsecured Long-Term Debt Credit Rating (S&P/Mocdy’s). The senior secured credit facility subjects Sovereign to a
number of affirmative and negative covenants. At December 31, 2002, the rate Sovereign was paying equaled 3.91%.

In November 2001, Sovereign Bank accessed the liquidity of international markets and transferred $957 million of indirect
automobile loans to special purpose entities (SPEs) in return for proceeds from the issuance to outside investors of $82|
million of asset-backed floating rate notes and $64 million of equity interests. The $821 million of floating rate notes mature
in 2013 and carry an interest rate of LIBOR plus .38%. The securitization transaction is accounted for as a financing in
accordance with SFAS No. 140, “Transfers of Financial Assets and Liabilities,” and, as such, the indirect automobile loans and
asset-backed floating rate notes are all reflected in Sovereign’s consolidated balance sheet as debt and minority interest.
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The 8.625%, 10.25%, and 10.50% senior notes are redeemable by Sovereign, at a significant premium, at any time prior to
maturity. The 8.00% subordinated debentures are not redeemable prior to maturity. In March 2003, the Company
redeemed $301!.6 million of these Senior Notes. See Note 30 for additional discussion.

All of the outstanding capital stock of the Bank is pledged to secure the Company's line of credit facility with the Bank of
Scotland. As a result of a covenant contained in the indenture under which Sovereign’s outstanding senior notes were issued,
such stock has also been ratably pledged for the benefit of the holders of the senior notes to secure the Company'’s
obligations thereunder. The ability of the Bank of Scotland or the holders of the senior notes to exercise rights with respect
to such shares of the Bank’s stock is subject to significant restrictions. If and when the Bank of Scotiand releases such pledge,
the pledge in favor of the holders of the senior notes will automatically terminate.

The following table sets forth the contractual maturities of Sovereign’s long-term debt at December 31, 2002 (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2002
003 $ 50,269
2004 L e 375,650
200D 432,750
2006 e 684,654
2007 302
AT =T =1 4,299,864
Total o $ 5,843,489

Note 14 - TRuST PREFERRED SECURITIES

Sovereign's Trust Preferred Securities consist of the following (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001
Sovereign Capital Trust | {redemption amount of $76,590 at December 31,2002) .......... ... ... .. ... .. .. $ 74,980 $ 82,782
Sovereign Capital Trust Il (redemption amount of $287,500 at December 31,2002) ...........ooviiiiiiin.., 187,949 193,688
Sovereign Capital Trust lll {redemption amount of $100,000 at December 31,2002) ............ ... .. ... .... 96,940 96,166
ML Capital Trust | (redemption amount of $27,000 at December 31,2002) ...................... ... ... 17,000 31,500
MBNK Capital Trust | (redemption amount of $10,000 at December 31,2002) ...t 9,462 -
Total Trust Preferred SecUMties . . ... i i e e e . $ 396,330 $ 404,136

On December 13, 2CC1, Sovereign issued $100 million of preferred capital securities through Sovereign Capital Trust I,

a special-purpose statutory trust created expressly for the issuance of these securities. Distributions on the securities are
payable at an annual rate of 8.75% on a quarterly basis beginning March 31, 2002. The proceeds were invested in Junior
Subordinated Debentures of Sovereign, at terms identical to the preferred capital securities. Cash distributions on the securities
are made to the extent interest on the debentures is received by Sovereign Capital Trust lll. In the event of certain changes
or amendments to regulatory requirements or federal tax rules, the securities are redeemable in whole. Otherwise the
securities are generally redeemable at the Company’s election in whole or in part on or after January |, 2007, at a price
equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. The securities must be redeemed
on December 31, 2031.
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On November |5, 1999, Sovereign issued 5,750,000 units of Trust Preferred Income Equity Redeemable Securities (“PIERS™)
generating net proceeds to Sovereign of $278.3 million with a stated maturity of January 15, 2030. Each PIERS unit consists of:

° A preferred capital security (Trust Preferred Il) issued by Sovereign Capital Trust Il (Trust Il), valued at $32.50,
having a face amount of $50, representing an undivided beneficial ownership interest in Trust If, which assets consist
solely of debentures issued by Sovereign. Distributions are payable quarterly beginning February 15, 2000 at an
annual rate of 7.5% of the stated liquidation value.

» A warrant to purchase, subject to antidilution adjustments, 5.3355 shares of Sovereign common stock at any time
prior to November 20, 2029. The warrants were valued at $17.50 per unit at the date of issuance.

The proceeds received were allocated to the Trust Preferred ll securities and the warrants. The estimated fair value of the
warrants upon issuance of $91.5 million was credited to stockholders’ equity. The balance of the proceeds received was
allocated to the Trust Preferred Il securities. The difference between the initial carrying amount of the Trust Preferred Il
securities and their redemption amount is treated as original issue discount and is being accreted into income as Trust
Preferred Securities expense resulting in an effective yield of 11.74%.

The Trust Preferred Il securities were issued by a special-purpose statutory trust created expressly for the issuance of these
securities. Distributions on Trust Il will be payable at an annual rate of 7.5% of the stated liquidation amount of $50 per capital
security, payable quarterly. After original issue discount and issuance costs, proceeds of $186.8 million were invested in junior
Subordinated Debentures of Sovereign, at terms identical to the Trust Preferred Il offering. Cash distributions on Trust
Preferred Il will be made to the extent interest on the debentures is received by Trust Il. Sovereign may defer interest payments
on the debentures for a period not exceeding 20 consecutive quarters or beyond the original maturity date. Holders may
require Sovereign to repurchase the Trust Preferred Il securities at accreted value following exercise of the warrants.

In the event of certain changes or amendments to regulatory requirements or federal tax rules, Sovereign may elect to
redeem the Trust Preferred Il securities at 100% of accreted value and to redeem the warrants at their value (combined
value $50). Sovereign may elect to redeem the Trust Preferred Il securities and the warrants at $50, if the value of
Sovereign’s common stock on 20 trading days out of the preceding 30 consecutive trading days and on the day the election
is made exceeds $14.99 after November 20, 2002; $13.12 after November 15, 2003; or $11.25 after November 15, 2004.

Sovereign has outstanding $74.9 million of preferred capital securities through Sovereign Capital Trust |, a special-purpose
statutory trust created expressly for the issuance of these securities. Distributions on the securities will be payable at an
annual rate of 9% of the stated liquidation amount of $1,000 per capital security, payable semi-annually. The trusts sole
assets consist of investments in Junior Subordinated Debentures of Sovereign, at terms identical to the preferred capital
securities. Cash distributions on the securities are made to the extent interest on the debentures is received by Sovereign
Capital Trust I In the event of certain changes or amendments to regulatory requirements or federal tax rules, the securities
are redeemable in whole. Otherwise, the securities are generally redeemable in whole or in part on or after April |, 2007,
at a declining redemption price ranging from 103.875% to 100% of the liquidation amount. On or after April |, 2017, the
securities may be redeemed at 100% of the liquidation amount. These securities must be redeemed no later than April |, 2027.

Sovereign has outstanding $27.0 million of preferred capital securities through ML Capital Trust |, which was acquired by
Sovereign as part of the purchase of ML Bancorp, Inc. The securities bear an interest rate of 9.875%, with a scheduled maturity
of March 1, 2027. Proceeds from the issuance were invested in Junior Subordinated Debentures issued by ML Bancorp, Inc.
Sovereign assumed ML Bancorp’s obligations under this offering and has the option, subject to required regulatory approval,
to prepay the securities beginning March |, 2007.

Sovereign also has outstanding $10.0 million of preferred capital securities through MBNK Capital Trust |, which was
acquired by Sovereign as part of the purchase of Main Street Bancorp, Inc. The securities bear an interest rate of 9.625% and
are redeemable by the Company on or after December 31, 2004. The preferred securities must be redeemed upon
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NoTe 14 - TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES {CONTINUED)

maturity of the debentures on December 31, 2029. The proceeds from the issuance were invested in Junior Subordinated
Debentures issued by Main Street Bancorp, Inc. Sovereign assumed Main Street Bancorp’s obligations under this offering.

The Trusts are wholly owned subsidiaries of Sovereign, whose sole assets consist of investments in trusts related to the junior
subordinated debentures issued by Sovereign. Sovereign has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the Trusts’ payments on
the trust preferred securities. The Trust Preferred Securities are similar to a minority interest and are presented as
“Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trusts holding junior subordinated debentures
of Sovereign.”

NoTE 5 - MiNCRITY INTERESTS

Minority interests represent the net assets and earnings attributable to the equity of consolidated subsidiaries that are owned by
parties independent of Sovereign. Earnings attributable to minority interests are reflected in trust-preferred securities and
other minority interest expense on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In the financing transaction consummated in November 2001, Sovereign received $64 million from the sale of ownership
interests in consolidated SPEs to outside investors. The SPEs were formed to issue debt and equity interests as parts of a
securitization transaction that raised $885 million for Sovereign. See additional discussion in Note |3.

On August 21, 2000, Sovereign received approximately $140 million of net proceeds from the issuance of $161.8 million
of 12% Series A Noncumulative Preferred Interests in Sovereign Real Estate Investment Trust (“SREIT”), a subsidiary of
Sovereign Bank, that holds primarily residential real estate loans. The preferred stock was issued at a discount, and is being
amortized over the life of the preferred shares using the effective yield method. The preferred shares may be redeemed at
any time on or after May 16, 2020, at the option of Sovereign subject to the approval of the OTS. Under

certain circumstances, the preferred shares are automatically exchangeable into preferred stock of Sovereign Bank. The
offering was made exclusively to institutional investors. The proceeds of this offering were principally used to repay
corporate debt.

NoTe 16 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EqQuiTYy

Sovereign maintains a Stockholder Rights Plan (the “Rights Plan”). Under the Rights Plan, each outstanding share of
Sovereign common stock has attached to it one right to purchase one-hundredth of a share of junior participating

preferred stock at an initial exercise price of $40. The rights are not currently exercisable or transferable, and no separate
certificates evidencing such rights will be distributed, unless certain events occur. A holder can exercise the rights to purchase
shares of the junior participating preferred stock if a person, group, or other entity acquires or commences a tender offer or
an exchange offer for 9.9% or more of total voting power. A holder can also exercise if Sovereign's board declares a person
or group who has become a beneficial owner of at least 4.9% of Sovereign common stock or total voting power an “adverse
person,” as defined in the Rights Plan.

After the rights become exercisable, the rights (other than rights held by a $.9% beneficial owner or an “adverse person”)
generally will entitle the holders to purchase either Sovereign common stock or the common stock of the potential acquirer,
in lieu of the junior participating preferred stock, at a substantially reduced price.

Sovereign can generally redeem the rights at $.001 per right by a majority vote of “continuing directors” (defined as any
member of the board of directors of Sovereign on June 21, 2001 and successors approved by such persons) at any time
prior to the earlier of the |0th business day following public announcement that a 9.9% position has been acquired or June
30, 2007. At any time prior to the date the rights become nonredeemable, the Sovereign board of directors can extend the
redemption period by a vote of “continuing directors.” Rights are redeemable following an “adverse person” determination.
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Sovereign maintains a Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan that permits holders of record of Sovereign common
stock to purchase additional shares of common stock directly from Sovereign via reinvestment of cash dividends and optional
cash purchases. At December 31, 2002, purchases of common stock with reinvested dividends are made at a 5% discount
from the current market price as defined and optional cash purchases are limited to a maximum of $5,000 per quarter.
Sovereign also maintains an Employee Stock Purchase Plan allowing employees with at least six months of employment and
who average over 20 hours per week to purchase shares through a payroll deduction at a discount from fair market value of
7.5% subject to a maximum of the lesser of 15% of pay or $25,000. Compensation expense of $0.2 million was recorded in
connection with this plan in 2002. All dividends are reinvested according to Sovereign’s Dividend Reinvestment and Stock
Purchase Plan.

On November 2, 2001, the Company registered $1.0 billion of debt and equity instruments for future issuance under a shelf
registration of debt securities; preferred stock; depository shares; common stock; warrants; stock purchase contracts; and
stock purchase units. The Company may offer and sell these securities from time to time and the securities will be offered at
prices and on terms to be determined by market conditions at the time of offering. Sovereign has approximately $900 million
of availability under the shelf registration at December 31, 2002.

Retained earnings at December 31, 2002 included $82.1 million in bad debt reserves, for which no deferred taxes have been
provided due to the indefinite nature of the recapture provisions. Sovereign’s debt agreements impose certain limitations on
dividends, other payments and transactions. These limits are not expected to affect dividend payments at current levels and
reasonably anticipated increases.

NoTE {7 - REGULATORY MATTERS

The Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act (“FIRREA”) requires institutions regulated by the Office of
Thrift Supervision ("OTS"} to have a minimum leverage capital ratio equal to 3% of tangible assets, and 4% of risk-adjusted
assets, and a risk-based capital ratio equal to 8% as defined. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act
(“FDICIA™) requires OTS regulated institutions to have a minimum tangible capital equal to 2% of total tangible assets.
Management believes, as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, that Sovereign Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to
which they are subject in order to be well-capitalized.

The FDICIA established five capital tiers: well-capitalized, adequately-capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized
and critically undercapitalized. A depository institution’s capital tier depends upon its capital levels in relation to various relevant
capital measures, which include leverage and risk-based capital measures and certain other factors. Depository institutions
that are not classified as well-capitalized or adequately-capitalized are subject to various restrictions regarding capital distributions,
payment of management fees, acceptance of brokered deposits and other operating activities.

An OTS order, issued in connection with the New England Acquisition (the “OTS Order”), as amended, required Sovereign
Bank to be “Well-Capitalized,” and also to meet certain additional capital ratio requirements above the regulatory minimums,
and other conditions. Various agreements with Sovereign's lenders also require Sovereign Bank to be “Well-Capitalized” at
all times and in compliance with all regulatory requirements. To be “well-capitalized”, a thrift institution must maintain a Tier
| Leverage ratio of at least 5%, a Tier | risk-based capital ratio of 6% and total risk-based capital of 10%. Although OTS
capital regulations do not apply to savings and loan holding companies, the OTS Order required Sovereign to maintain
certain Tier | capital levels.

At December 31, 2002, Sovereign had met all quantitative thresholds necessary to be classified as well-capitalized under
regulatory guidelines and the OTS Order. The OTS Order expired on January |, 2003.

Federal banking laws, regulations and policies also limit Sovereign Bank’s ability to pay dividends and make other distributions
to Sovereign. Sovereign Bank must obtain prior OTS approval to declare a dividend or make any other capital distribution if,
after such dividend or distribution; (1) Sovereign Bank’s total distributions to Sovereign within that calendar year would
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NoTe 17 - REGULATORY MATTERS (CONTINUED)

exceed |00% of its net income during the year plus retained net income for the prior two years; (2) Sovereign Bank
would not meet capital levels imposed by the OTS in connection with any order, or (3) if Sovereign Bank is not adequately
capitalized at the time. In addition, OTS prior approval would be required if Sovereign Bank’s examination or CRA ratings
fall below certain levels or Sovereign Bank is notified by the OTS that it is a problem association or an association in
troubled condition.

The following schedule summarizes the actual capital balances of Sovereign Bank at December 31, 2002 and 2001:

REGULATORY CAPITAL
(in thousands)
TIER | TIER | TOTAL
TANGIBLE LEVERAGE RISK-BASED RISK-BASED
CAPITALTO CAPITALTO CAPITALTC CAPITALTO
TANGIBLE TANGIBLE RISK ADJUSTED RISKADJUSTED
ASSETS ASSETS ASSETS ASSETS
Sovereign Bank at December 31,2002:
Regulatory capital ...... ... . i $ 2880088 $ 2,880,290 $ 2799425 $ 3084999
Minimum capital requirement (0 .. 763,068 2,670,750 154,431 3,030,382
EXCESS o § 2117020 $ 209,540 § 164499 $ 54,617
Capital FatIO -« .ot 7.55% 7.55% 9.70% 10.69%
Sovereign Bank at December 31, 2001:
Regulatory capital . ....... ... .. . § 2464222 $ 2,470,620 $ 2368893 $ 2,616,871
Minimum capital requirement ) L 685,456 2,399,545 979.792 2,571,955
EXCESS o $ 1778766 $ 71,075 $ 1,389,101 3 44916
Capital ratio . ... e 7.19% T2U% 9.67% 10.68%

(1) As defined by OTS Regulations, or the OTS Order as applicable. The OTS order expired on January 1, 2003,

NoTte 18 - Stock-Basep COMPENSATION

Sovereign has stock option plans that grant stock options for a fixed number of shares to key officers, certain employees and
directors with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant. Sovereign’s stock options
expire not mare than 10 years and one month after the date of grant and become fully vested and exercisable within a one
to five year period after the date of grant and, in certain cases, based on the attainment of certain targets. Prior to 2002,
Sovereign had accounted for stock option grants in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees.” In 2002, Sovereign adopted the expense recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based
Compensation,” for stock based compensation awards. See further discussion in Note | regarding our accounting policies
for stock options. There are 6.3 million shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the plans.
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The following table provides a summary of Sovereign’s stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2002, 200!
and 2000 and stock options exercisable at the end of each of those years.

PRICE
SHARES PER SHARES
Options outstanding December 31, 1999 (4,154,213 shares exercisable) .............. ... .. ..o oo oL, 6,448,393 $1.30- 2025
Granted . 2,207,778 6.69 - 781
EXEICISE . (195,873) 130 - 653
FOMEItEd ...\ (449,744) 491 - 1635
Options outstanding December 31, 2000 (6,031,898 shares exercisable) .................. ... ... o, 8,010,554 1.94- 2025
Granted .. o 2,835,084 8.25- 1232
BXEICISEU . . .o (489,949) 194- 894
Forfelted ... {268,599) 6.24- 16.35
Options outstanding December 31, 2001 (7,301,406 shares exercisable) ............. ..., 10,087,090 225- 2025
Acquired in conjunction with the Main Street Acquisition .. .......... .. . 121,254 461 - 1557
Granted . .. o e 2,665,060 12.77 - 15.10
EXCICISEA - . oo (1,213,153) 225- 1374
Forfeited ... (153,388) 6.69- 16.35
Options outstanding December 31, 2002 (7,907,110 shares exercisable) ............ .. ... ... . ... .. 11,506,863 $2.25 -20.25
The following table summarizes Sovereign's stock options outstanding at December 31, 2002:
OPTIONS QUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
WEIGHTED
WEIGHTED AVERAGE WEIGHTED
AVERAGE REMAINING AVERAGE

EXERCISE CONTRACTUAL EXERCISE

EXERCISE PRICES SHARES PRICE LIFE SHARES PRICE
$384-F781 L. 3223706 $ 582 459 2,636,125 $ 6.02
$794-%1190 .. 382239 9.25 732 3,656,734 9.46
$1200-92025 .. 4,460,761 13.29 7.70 1,614,251 12.68
Total Lo 1,506,863 $ 9.85 6.70 7,907,110 $ 8.97

Companies have a choice either to expense the fair value of employee stock options over the vesting period (recognition
method) or to continue the previous practice but disclose the pro forma effects on net income and earnings per share had
the fair value method been used (disclosure only method). Sovereign followed the disclosure only method prior to 2002.

In 2001, Sovereign issued 532,000 shares of restricted stock that vest ratably over a three-year period. Compensation
expense associated with this plan of $3.0 million and $2.9 million was recorded in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Note [9 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Substantially all employees of Sovereign are eligible to participate in the 401 (k) retirement plan following their completion
of six months service and attaining age 21. Sovereign recognized expense for contributions to this plan of $7.0 million, $6.5
million and $5.2 million during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Pursuant to this plan, employees can contribute up to
25% of their compensation to the plan subject to IRS limitations. Sovereign contributes 100% of the employee contribution
up to 3% of compensation and 50% of the employee contribution from 3% to 5% of compensation in the form of Sovereign
common stock. Sovereign amended the Plan in 2002 to permit participants to transfer the matching contribution to other
investment vehicles available under the Plan.

Sovereign maintains an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“Sovereign ESOP"), and substantially all employees of Sovereign are
eligible to participate following completion of one year of service and attaining age 21. On November 21, 1994, Sovereign’s

Board of Directors authorized an amendment to the Sovereign ESOP to add a leverage feature to purchase up to 6.7 million
shares of Sovereign’s outstanding common stock in the open market or in negotiated transactions. Sovereign assumed upon

acquisition in 1999 a leveraged ESOP of an acquiree whose shares were converted into Sovereign shares. In 2002, Sovereign
terminated the acquired entity’s plan and repaid debt owed to Sovereign with the proceeds of unallocated Sovereign shares,

which the plan sold. There were no remaining unallocated shares or proceeds after the debt was repaid.

The ESOPs are defined contribution plans, which provide retirement benefits for participants and beneficiaries in the form of
Sovereign common stock. The ESOPs were funded through direct loans from the sponsoring company, and proceeds from
these loans were used to purchase outstanding shares of the sponsoring company’s common stock. As the debt on these
loans is repaid, shares of Sovereign common stock are released and become eligible for allocation to employee accounts.
Compensation expense is recognized based on the fair value of the shares committed to be released to employees and the
shares then become outstanding for earnings per share computations.

Sovereign has committed to make contributions sufficient to provide for the debt requirements of the remaining Sovereign
ESOP. Sovereign recognized as expense $3.9 million, $3.3 million and $2.6 million for the Sovereign ESOP in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. At December 31, 2002, the Sovereign ESOP held 5.4 million shares of Sovereign stock, of which 2.0
million shares were allocated to participant accounts. The unallocated Sovereign ESOP shares are presented as a reduction
of stockholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements. At December 31, 2002, the unallocated Sovereign ESOP
shares had a fair market value of $47.9 million, and the Sovereign ESOP had $33.2 million of foans outstanding from Sovereign.

Sovereign maintains several bonus deferral plans for selected management and executive employees. These plans allow
employees to defer 25% or more of their bonus to purchase Sovereign stock. The deferred amount is placed in a grantor
trust and invested in Sovereign common stock. Matching contributions ranging from 25% to [00% are made by Sovereign
into the trust and are also invested in Sovereign stock. Dividends on Sovereign shares held in the trust are also invested in
Sovereign stock. Expense is recognized over the vesting periods of the plans. Benefits vest ratably over three years under
the management plan and after five years under the executive plan. Benefits also vest under the plans in the event of
termination by reason of death, disability, retirement, involuntary termination or the occurrence of a change of control as
defined by the plans. Voluntary termination or termination for cause (as defined) generally result in forfeiture of the unvested
balance including employee deferrals: Sovereign recognized as expense $1.9 million, $1.7 million, and $1.9 million for these
plans in 2002, 200! and 2000, respectively.

Sovereign sponsors a supplemental executive retirement plan (“SERP”) and certain post-employment benefit plans of
financial institutions acquired by Sovereign. Sovereign’s benefit obligation related to its SERP plan was $4.7 million and $3.9
million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Sovereign’s benefit obligation related to its post-employment plans
was $1.0 million and $1.1 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001. The SERP and the post-employment plans are unfunded
plans. Sovereign recognized as expense $0.8 million, $0.7 million and $0.8 million related to these plans in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. Increasing or decreasing the assumed healthcare cost trend rate would not have a significant impact on
the accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation at December 31, 2002, or the aggregate of the service and interest
components of net benefit expense for the year ended December 31, 2002,
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NoTE 20 - INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes, including the tax effect of extraordinary items, in the consolidated statement of operations is
comprised of the following components (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001 2000
Current:
Federal . ... o $ 159,807 $ 38,140 $ (10,157)
AL ot 472 508 -
160,279 38,648 (10,157)
Deferred:
Federal .. (35,709) (£5,599) (55,181)
71 S - - 5348
Total income tax expense (benefit) . ...... .. .o $ 124,570 $ 23,049 $ (59,990

The following is a reconciliation of the United States federal statutory rate of 35% to the Company's effective tax rate for
each of the years indicated:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001 2000

Federal income tax at SEAIUTONY FATE .. ...\ttt et et e e 35.0% 35.0% (35.00%
Increase/ (decrease) in taxes resulting from:

TaX-BXEMPLINCOME .« . et e ettt ettt et et (2.8) (6.8) {5.4)

Bank owned life INSUMANCE ... ..ot e (3.2) (10.5) (12.9)

State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit ........ ... o 0.1 02 00

Valuation allowanCe ... e 0.0 00 6.0

Amortization of non-deductible goodwill .. .. ... 0.0 23 3.5

Capital loss UIIZAtion ... .. ... 0.0 00 (26.0)

L 1 N (2.4) (3.8) 33
Effective tax rate .. ..o 26.7% 16.4% (66.5)%
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented

below (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for possible l0ar l0sses . ... . o $ 4{,937 40,144
Purchased mortgage servicing rights .. ... .. i i 8,195 4,362
Depreciation and amortizalion ... ...ttt e e 9,413 18,534
Unrealized 10ss ON QEMVALIVES L. .. oo e 73,375 21,890
State net operating loss carry forwards ... ... L 5,630 1,983
NON-SONCIEAtION PAYMENTS . . . .ttt e et e e et e e 101,673 108,997
L0 T 37,132 23617
Total gross deferred tax assets .............. .. 277,355 219,527
Deferred tax liabilities:
Purchase accounting adjUstments .. ... ...ttt e e 19,331 7,651
DEferred INCOME . . . e 22,270 62,997
Tax bad debt reserve reCaptire .. ... . 683 2,451
Originated mortgage servicing rights . .. ... . ot 15,425 15612
Unreatized gain on available for sale portfolio ... ... o 84,241 4,969
Employee benefits . .. ..o o e 2,314 1,857
OEr L o 8,470 12,537
Total gross deferred tax liabilities . .. ... oo 152,734 108,074
Net deferred (axX @558 . ..\ et et $ 124,621 [11,453

During 2000, Sovereign established a $5 million valuation allowance related to state tax net operating losses. For the balance
. of Sovereign’s deferred tax assets, no valuation allowance is provided as it is considered “more likely than not” that the
deferred tax assets will be realized, based on a history of growth in earnings, the prospects for continued growth, including
an analysis of potential uncertainties that may offset future operating results, and potential tax planning strategies that could
be employed in the future. Sovereign will continue to review the criteria related to the recognition of deferred tax assets on

a quarterly basis.

The Company has an unrecognized deferred tax liability of $5.9 million related to earnings that are considered permanently

reinvested in a consolidated foreign special purpose entity related to the indirect automobile loan securitization.

Note 21 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Financial Instruments. Sovereign is a party to financial instruments in the normal course of business, including
instruments with off-balance sheet exposure, to meet the financing needs of its customers and to manage its own
exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit, standby
letters of credit, loans sold with recourse, forward contracts and interest rate swaps, caps and floors. These financial

instruments may involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in
the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The contract or notional amounts of these financial instruments reflect the extent of

involvement Sovereign has in particular classes of financial instruments.
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NoTE 21 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES {CONTINUED)

The following schedule summarizes Sovereign’s off-balance sheet financial instruments (in thousands):

CONTRACT OR
NOTIONAL AMOUNT
AT DECEMBER 31,
2002 200
Financial instruments whose contract amounts

represent credit risk:
Commitments t0 eXIEND Credit .. ... Lt $ 7,534,898 § 6,765,595
Standby letters of credit .. ... e 980,756 674,397
Loans sold With reCOUISE . ... 16,870 54,610
FOrWard CONMIIACES . . .ottt e 1,578,783 670,888

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Sovereign evaluates each customer’s credit
worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral required is based on management’s credit evaluation of the
counterparty. Collateral usually consists of real estate but may include securities, accounts receivable, inventory and
property, plant and equipment.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by Sovereign to guarantee the performance of a customer to
a third party. The guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements. The weighted
average term of these commitments is 2.6 years. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same
as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. In the event of a draw by the beneficiary that complies with the
terms of the letter of credit, Sovereign would be required to honor the commitment. Sovereign has various forms of
collateral, such as real estate assets and customers business assets. The maximum undiscounted exposure related to
these commitments at December 31, 2002 was $981 million, and the approximate value of the underlying collateral upon
liquidation that would be expected to cover this maximum potential exposure was $785 million. We believe that the
utilization rate of these letters of credit will continue to be substantially less than the amount of these commitments, as
has been our experience to date.

Loans sold with recourse primarily represent single-family residential loans. These are seasoned loans with decreasing
balances, and historical loss experience has been minimal.

The forward contracts are used principally by Sovereign in its mortgage banking activities and provide for Sovereign to make
delivery of a specified instrument, at a specified future date, at a specified price or yield. Risks arise from the possible
inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their contracts and from movements in securities’ values and interest rates.
These contracts are also considered derivative instruments under SFAS No. 133 and changes in the fair value of contracts
are recorded on the balance sheet as either derivative assets or liabilities. Further discussion of derivative financial
instruments is included in Notes | and 23.

Sovereign has entered into risk participation agreements that provide for the assumption of credit and market risk by
Sovereign for the benefit of one party in a derivative transaction upon the occurrence of an event of default by the other
party to the transaction. Sovereign’s participation in risk participation agreements has been in conjunction with its
participation in an underlying credit agreement led by another financial institution. The term of the performance guarantee
will typically match the term of the underlying credit and derivative agreements, which is eight years for current transactions.
As of December 31, 2002, Sovereign estimates the maximum undiscounted exposure on these agreements at $2.3 million.
The total carrying value of liabilities associated with these commitments was $0.3 million at December 31, 2002.
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NoTe 2f - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES {CONTINUED)

Litigation. At December 31, 2002, Sovereign was party to a number of lawsuits, which arose during the normal
course of business. While any litigation has an element of uncertainty, management, after reviewing these actions with legal
counsel, is of the opinion that the liability, if any, resulting from these actions will not have a material adverse effect on
consolidated financial position or results of operations of Sovereign.

Leases. Sovereign is committed under various non-cancelable operating leases relating to branch facilities having initial
or remaining terms in excess of one year. Future minimum annual rentals under non-cancelable operating leases, net of
sublease income at December 31, 2002, are summarized as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,2002
FUTURE MINIMUM

LEASE SUBLEASE NET
PAYMENTS INCOME PAYMENTS
2003 $ 105,280 $ (191N $ 93,369
2004 97,339 (11,400 85,939
2005 189,701 (8.581) 181,120
2006 47,884 (8,052) 39,832
2007 45,238 (7.234) 38,004
ThEreafter . . oo e 276,460 (18357 258,103
TOtal o $ 761902 §  (65535) $ 696,367

In connection with the FleetBoston transaction, Sovereign entered into operating leases for commercial properties
that had an initial term of approximately 20 years. This included 104 commercial properties that were transferred by
FleetBoston and 23 commercial properties owned by Sovereign. A gain on the transfer of the 23 Sovereign properties
was deferred and is being amortized over the lease term of the properties sold and subsequently leased back.

NOTE 22 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table presents disclosures about the fair value of financial instruments as defined by SFAS No. 107, “Fair Value
of Financial Instruments.” These fair values for certain instruments are presented based upon subjective estimates of
relevant market conditions at a specific point in time and information about each financial instrument. In cases where quoted
market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. These
techniques involve uncertainties resulting in variability in estimates affected by changes in assumptions and risks of the
financial instruments at a certain point in time. Therefore, the derived fair value estimates presented below cannot be
substantiated by comparison to independent markets. [n addition, the fair values do not reflect any premium or discount
that could result from offering for sale at one time an entity’s entire holdings of a particular financial instrument nor does it
reflect potential taxes and the expenses that would be incurred in an actual sale or settlement.
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NoTe 22 - Fair YALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {(CONTINUED)

Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of Sovereign (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001
CARRYING CARRYING
VALUE FAIRVALUE VALUE FAIR VALUE
Financial Assets:
Cash and amounts due from depository institutions . . .. ...........ovrvn.... $ 972,614 $ 972,614 $ 907,279 $ 907,279
Investment securities:
avaifable forsale ... ... 10,733,564 10,733,564 9,581,679 9,581,679
held t0 MAtUMEY . ... 632,513 650,050 883,437 883,208
LOANS, NBL e s 22,828,575 23,461,615 20,134917 20,404,734
Mortgage servicing rights . ... oo 55,498 56,654 50,718 55,848
Mortgage banking forward commitments . .............. ... oo (9,731) (9,731) 3,376 3376
Mortgage interest rate lock commitments ............... oo 4,662 4,662 - -
Financial Liabilities:
DEPOSIES . e 26,784,980 26,879,525 23,297,574 23,361,755
Borrowings and long-termdebt ........ ... oo 8,925,316 9,396,837 8,939,770 9,138,438
Interest rate derivative INStruments .. ... (121,451) (121,451) {46,922) (46.922)
Trust preferred securities . ........ .o i i 396,331 418,695 404,136 446937
Unrecognized Financial Instruments:
Commitments toextend credit . . ... 54,636 54,536 50,531 50,665

(1) The amounts shown under “carrying value" represent accruals or deferred income arising from those unrecognized financial instruments.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

Cash and amounts due from depeository institutions and interest-earning deposits. For these short-term
instruments, the carrying amount equals the fair value.

investment securities available for sale. The fair value of investment securities available for sale are based on
quoted market prices as of the balance sheet date. In accordance with SFAS No. |15, "Accounting for Certain Investments in
Debt and Equity Securities,” changes in fair value are reflected in the carrying value of the asset and are shown as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity.

investment securities held to maturity. The fair value of investment securities held to maturity is estimated
based upon quoted market prices as of the balance sheet date.

Loans. Fair value is estimated by discounting cash flows using estimated market discount rates at which similar loans
would be made to borrowers and reflect similar credit ratings and interest rate risk for the same remaining maturities.

Mortgage servicing rights. The fair value of mortgage servicing rights are estimated using quoted rates based upon
secondary market sources. For additional discussion see Note 8.

Mortgage interest rate lock commitments. Fair value is estimated based on a net present value analysis of the
anticipated cash flows associated with the rate lock commitments. Included in the net present value analysis are anticipated
cash flows associated with the expected retained servicing of the loans.
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NoTE 22 - FaIR YALUE OF FINANCIAL [NSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deposits. The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as non-interest bearing demand deposits, NOW
accounts, savings acccunts and certain money market accounts, is equal to the amount payable on demand as of the balance
sheet date. The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is estimated by discounting cash flows using currently
offered rates for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Borrowings and Long Term Debt. Fair value is estimated by discounting cash flows using rates currently available
to Sovereign for other borrowings with similar terms and remaining maturities. Certain long-term debt instruments are
valued using available market quotes.

Trust Preferred Securities. Trust preferred securities are valued using available market quotes.

Commitiments to extend credit. The fair value of commitments to extend credit is estimated using the fees
currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the
present creditworthiness of the counter parties. For fixed rate loan commitments, fair value also considers the difference
between current levels of interest rates and the committed rates.

Interest rate derivative instruments. The fair value of interest rate swaps, caps and floors that represent the
estimated amount Sovereign would receive or pay to terminate the contracts or agreements, taking into account current
interest rates and when appropriate, the current creditworthiness of the counterparties are obtained from dealer quotes.

Note 23 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Sovereign uses derivative instruments as part of its interest rate risk management process to manage risk associated with its
mortgage banking activities, and to assist its commercial banking customers with their risk management strategies.

One of Sovereign’s primary market risks is interest rate risk. Management uses derivative instruments to mitigate the

impact of interest rate movements on the value of certain liabilities, assets and on probable future cash outflows. These
instruments primarily include interest rate swaps that have underlying interest rates based on key benchmark indices. Note |
provides a summary of our accounting policy for derivative instruments in the financial statements. The Company designates
derivative instruments used to manage interest rate risk into SFAS No. 133 hedge relationships with the specific assets,
liabilities, or cash flows being hedged.

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a derivative contract with which Sovereign has an unrealized gain fails to perform
according to the terms of the agreement. Credit risk is managed by limiting the aggregate amount of net unrealized gains in
agreements outstanding, monitoring the size and the maturity structure of the derivative portfolio, applying uniform credit
standards maintained for all activities with credit risk, and collateralizing gains.

Fair Yalue Hedges. Sovereign has entered into pay-variable receive-fixed interest rate swaps to hedge changes in fair
values of certain brokered CDs and senior notes, including $400 million notional amount of interest rate swaps entered into
in May 2002 to hedge fixed rate senior notes. Sovereign includes all components of each derivatives gain or loss in the
assessment of hedge effectiveness. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001, no hedge
ineffectiveness was recognized in earnings associated with fair value hedges.
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NoTE 23 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Cash Fiow Hedges. Sovereign hedges exposure to changes in cash flows associated with forecasted interest
payments on variable-rate liabilities through the use of pay-fixed, receive variable interest rate swaps. Sovereign includes all
components of each derivatives gain or |oss in the assessment of hedge effectiveness. For the years ended December 31,
2002 and 2001, no hedge ineffectiveness was recognized in earnings associated with cash flow hedges. During the year
ended December 31, 2002, the Company terminated $1.4 billion of pay-fixed interest rate swaps that were hedging the
future cash flows on $1.4 billion of borrowings, resulting in a net loss of $26.5 million. The foss will continue to be deferred in
accumulated other comprehensive income and will be reclassified into interest expense as the future cash flows occur, unless
it becomes probable that the forecasted interest payments will not occur. As of December 31, 2002, Sovereign expects
approximately $44 million of the deferred net after-tax loss on derivative instruments included in accumulated other
comprehensive income will be reclassified to earnings during the next |2 meonths. See Note 25 for further detail of the
amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive income. In 2001, Sovereign reclassified $14.7 million of deferred
losses out of accumulated other comprehensive income into earnings because it became probable that the original
forecasted transactions would not oceur.

Other Derivative Activities. Sovereign’s derivative portfolio also includes derivative instruments not designated in
SFAS 133 hedge relationships. Those derivatives include mortgage banking interest rate lock commitments and forward sale
commitments used for risk management purposes, and derivatives executed with commercial banking customers, primarily
interest rate swaps and foreign exchange futures, 1o facilitate their risk management strategies. In connection with the indirect

automobile loan securitization transaction discussed in Note |3, Sovereign was required to purchase, on behalf of its
securitization SPE, an interest rate cap with a $900 million notional value from a third party. Sovereign also sold an identical
interest rate cap with a notional value of $900 million to the same third party. Sovereign assigned the purchased interest rate
cap to the SPE. At December 31, 2002, the fair value of the purchased interest rate cap was an asset of $20.5 million, and the
fair value of the sold interest rate cap was a liability of $20.5 million.

Net gains generated from derivative instruments executed with customers are included as capital markets revenue on the
income statement and totaled $7.7 million and $5.9 million for 2002 and 2001, respectively.

All derivative contracts are valued using either cash flow projection models or observable market prices. Pricing models
used for valuing derivative instruments are regularly validated by testing through comparison with third parties.

Following is a summary of the derivatives designated as hedges under SFAS No. |33 at December 31, 2002 and 200|
(in thousands):
WEIGHTED AVERAGE
NOTIONAL RECE!IVE LIFE

December 31,2002 AMOUNT ASSET LIABILITY RATE PAY RATE (YEARS)
Fair value hedges:

Receive fixed - pay variable

INCErest rate SWaps .........ooovvivnen... $ 625,000 $ 40865 % - 8.25% 493% 29

Cash flow hedges:

Pay fixed - receive floating interest rate swaps .. 600,000 - 179,534 |.57% 607% 46
Total derivatives used in SFAS 133

hedging relationships ...................... $ 2225000 § 40865 § 179534 3.45% 5.75% 4.1
December 31,2001
Fair value hedges:

Receive fixed - pay variable interest rate swaps . § 397449 § 7568 % 1,282 5.98% 1.97% 15
Cash flow hedges:

Pay fixed - receive floating interest rate swaps . . 3,050,000 10.125 72,668 1.92% 6.09% 5.1
Total derivatives used in SFAS 133 ’

hedging relationships .. ... ol $ 3447449 $ 17693 % 73,950 2.39% 5.62% 47
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NoTEe 23 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Summary information regarding other derivative activities at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001 follows
(in thousands): '

AT DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001

NET ASSET NET ASSET
(LIABILITY) (LIABILITY)

Mortgage banking derivatives:

Forward commitments:

T BUY J0BNS e e $ - $ (297)
T Sl I0aNS o (9,731) 3,673
[nterest rate [0Ck COMMIIMENTS . ..\ttt et ettt e et e e et e e e e e e e e e 4,662 -
Total mortgage banking risk Management . ... ... .. i i e {5,069) 3,376
CUStOMEr TRt .t 17,218 9,335
Foreigh exchange . ... .o o 65 292
TOWRNACUVILY oot $ 12,214 $ 13,003

Net interest income resulting from interest rate exchange agreements included $21.5 million of income and $68.2 million
of expense for 2002, $1 1.6 million of income and $1 1.4 million of expense for 2001, and $6.4 million of income and $.51
million of expense for 2000.

MNOTE 24 - ASSET SECURITIZATIONS AND VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

In December 2002, the Company securitized approximately $565 million of residential mortgage loans, converting them into
investment certificates. Sovereign recognized a gain at the time of the sale of $0.4 million that was equal to the excess of
the fair value of the assets obtained, principally cash, over the allocated cost of the assets sold and transaction costs
associated with approximately | 1% of the certificates which were sold to third parties. Of the $503 million of certificates
retained, approximately $28.5 million are subordinated to the interest of other certificates. The remainder are AAA rated
securities. The value of these certificates is subject to credit risk and prepayment risk. In accordance with SFAS No. 134
and SFAS No. 140, these certificates are classified as retained interests in securitizations and are classified in investments
available for sale on our Consclidated Balance Sheet.

Sovereign retained servicing responsibilities related to this transaction, and receives an annual servicing fee of 0.375% as
compensation. The investors have no recourse to the Company's other assets to serve as additional collateral to protect
their interests in the securitization.

During 2000, the Company acquired the servicing responsibilities, and retained interest-only strips, related to home equity,
boat and recreational vehicle loans that were previously securitized by FleetBoston, as part of the New England Acquisition.
The Company receives annual servicing fees approximating 0.50% for home equity loans and for boat and recreational
vehicle loans. The investors and securitization trusts have no recourse to the Company’s other assets for failure of debtors
to pay when due. The Company’s retained interests are subordinate to investor interests. Their value is subject to credit,
prepayment and interest rate risks on the transferred financial assets. During the fourth quarter of 2002, an impairment
charge of $4.8 million was recorded on these retained interests and is reflected in the gain/loss on sale of investment
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NOTE 24 - ASSET SECURITIZATIONS AND YARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

securities and derivatives line on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. This charge was required because of negative

changes in the prepayment period assumptions and loss assumptions associated with these securitizations.

In 2000, the Company recognized a pretax gain of $2.5 million on the securitization of home equity loans and a pretax loss

of $(2.3) million on the securitization of automotive floor plan loans.

The types of assets underlying securitizations for which Sovereign owns a retained interest and the related balances and
delinquencies at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the net credit losses for the year ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,

are as follows (in thousands):

PRINCIPAL PRINCIPAL
TOTAL 90 DAYS NET CREDIT TOTAL 90 DAYS NET CREDIT
PRINCIPAL PAST DUE LOSSES PRINCIPAL PAST DUE LOSSES

Mortgage Loans . ..o $ 57,466 § - % - 3 - % - 3 -
Home Equity Loans ........................ 590,098 58,589 6,102 864,730 55,462 5213
Boatloans ... 71,218 283 336 105,798 721 817
Recreational Vehidle Loans .................. 140,89¢ 1,280 2,200 210,785 756 2,406
Automotive Floor PlanLoans ................ 579,000 - - 579,000 - -
Total Securitized ... ... 1,438,678 § 40,152 % 8,638 1760313 % 56939 % 8,436
Loans Held in Portfolios:
Mortgage Loans ... 4,347,512 5,005,219
Home Equity Loans .. ...................... 5,165,834 3,756,621
BoatLoans®™ .. ... ... .. 4,139 5536
Recreational Vehidle Loans .................. - -
Automotive Floor Plan Loans ................ 751,573 528,794
Total Heldin Portfolio ...................... 10,269,058 9,296,170
Total oo $ 11,707,736 $ 11,056,483

(1) Boat loans are included in other consumer loans.

The components of retained interests and key economic assumptions used in measuring the retained interests resulting from

securitizations completed during the year were as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,2002

MORTGAGE AUTOMOTIVE
LOANS FLOCR PLAN

Components of Retained Interest and Servicing Rights:
Subordinated Interest retained .. ... ... $ 28,475 $ 21,000
SOVICINg FIEDES <\ o e 3,644 -
Interest Only STADS . . . oo - 600
Cash TBSBIVE o et - 8,026
Total Retained Interests and Servicing RIGNTS . . ... oo $ 32,119 $ 29.626
Key Economic Assumptions:
Prepayment SPEEA L. .. 40% N/A
Weighted average life (inyears) ... ... .. . i e 1.7 14
Expected creditIoSSES . . .. o e e e 0.12% 0.25%
Residual cashflows dISCOURTFATE . . ..ottt e e et e e e 9.10% 6.20%
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INTEREST ENTIiTIES {CONTINUED)

The table below summarizes certain cash flows received from and paid to off-balance sheet securitization trusts (in thousands):

Proceeds from new securitizations
Proceeds from collections reinvested
in revolving-period securitizations
Servicing fees received
Other cash flows received on retained interests
Purchases of delinquent or foreclosed assets

FORTHE YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2002 DECEMBER 31, 200!

..... $ 62,709 5 _
..... 4,910,563 5,255,390
..... 10,965 13,081
..... 21,357 26,478
- 928

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, key economic assumptions and the sensitivity of the fair value of the retained interests to
immediate 10 percent and 20 percent adverse changes in those assumptions are as follows (in thousands):

MORTGAGE HOME EQUITY BOAT RY AUTO FLCOR
LOANS LOANS LOANS LOANS  PLAN LOANS TOTAL
Components of Retained interest
and Servicing Rights: '
Subordinated interest retained ............... $ 28,475 $ - % 519 % 51 $ 21000 % 50,505
Servicing Hghts ..o v e 3,644 2,545 141 61 ~ 6,391
Interest only strips . ..., - 35,823 13,073 9.982 600 59,478
Cashreserve ... oo - - - - 8,026 8,026
Total Retained Interests and Servicing Rights ... $ 32,119 % 38368 $ 13733 % 0554 § 29626 % 124,400
Weighted-average life (inyrs) ................ 1.7 24 t3 12 14
Prepayment speed assumption (annual rate)
As of the date of the securitization ......... 40% 22% 22% 20% -
As of December 31,2002 ................ 40% 27% 23% 20% ~
Impact on fair value of
10% adverse change .................. $ (155) % (228) % (18) % (19 3 (38)
Impact on fair value of
20% adversechange .................. $ (276) % (406) % 77 3 (48 % {76)
Expected credit losses (Cumulative rate for all except
for Auto Floor Plan Loans which is an annual rate)
As of the date of the securitization ......... 0.12% 0.75% 0.40% 0.40% 0.25%
As of December 31,2002 ................ 0.12% 1.28% 0.60% 1.15% 0.25%
Impact on fair value of
10% adverse change .................. 82 $ (1289) % (115) % (362) % (17
Impact on fair value
20% adversechange .................. (163) % (2554) % (198) 3 (776} % (39
Residual cash flows discount rate (annual)
As of the date of the securitization ......... 9.1% 12% 1% 1% 10%
As of December 31,2002 ................ 9.1% 12% 1% 11% 6.2%
Impact on fair value of
10% adversechange .................. (25 % (1000) % (221) % (142) $ {30)
Impact on fair value of
20% adverse change .................. (49 ¢ (1964 $ (437) % 281) $ (60)

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with caution.

As the figures indicate, changes in fair value based on a

|0 percent variation in assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in assumption to
the change in fair value may not be linear. Also in this table, the effect of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair
value of the retained interest is calculated without changing any other assumption. In reality, changes in one factor may result
in changes in another (for example, increases in market interest rates may result in lower prepayments and increased credit

losses), which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities.
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As discussed in Note 21, Sovereign in connection with the FleetBoston transaction, entered into operating leases, which
were financed through the use of variable interest entities, for commercial properties which had an initial term of
approximately 20 years. This structured real estate transaction included 104 commercial properties that were transferred by
FleetBoston and 23 commercial properties owned by Sovereign. The certificates which were issued through the variable
interest entities are payable out of the rental payments under the lease, the proceeds of the sale or refinancing of the
mortgage properties or payments under the insurance policies. The aggregrate principat balance of the certificates at
December 31, 2002 was $264.1 million.

NoTE 25 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table presents the computation of earnings per share based on the provisions of SFAS No. 128 for the years

indicated (in thousands, except per share data):

Calculation of income/(loss) for EPS:

Income /{loss) before extraordinary item for basic EPS ........... ...
Extraordinary item, after tax . .. ... .o
Netincome for basicand diluted EPS ... ..o o0 oo

Calculation of shares:
Weighted average basic shares
Dilutive effect of:
WV arrantS e
Stock-based COMPENSALION ... ...\ttt et

Weighted average fully diluted shares

Earnings/(loss) per share:

Basic
Income/ (loss) before extraordinaryitem ... ...
Extraordinary IBM .. ..o

Netincome/{oss) ... ..o

Diluted
Income/(loss) before extraordinary item ... oo
EXtraordinary [EM ... .ot

NETINCOME/(I0SS) oottt e e e e

NoTE 26 - COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2002 2001 2000
341985 3 13370 0§ (41019
- (6.549) 10,775
341,985 $ 11682 § (30242
258,461 244,643 2588
17,109 10,054 -
3,469 2198 -
279,039 256.895 225,881
132 % 05l % (0.18)
- (0.03) 0.05
132 3% 048 (0.13)
123 3 048 % ©.18)
- (0.03) 0.05
123 3 045 $ ©.13) |

The following table presents the components of comprehensive income, net of related tax, based on the provisions of SFAS

No. 130 for the years indicated (in thousands):

NEUINCOME/IOSS) .« . oot e e
Cumulative change in accounting principle:
Fair value of derivative instruments and hedgeditems .............. ... ... oo
Redlassification of held-to-maturity securities to available-for-sale ................ ... ... ...
Net unrealized gain/(loss) on derivative instruments for the period . ............................
Net unrealized gain/(loss) on investment securities available-for-sale for the period ................
Less reclassification adjustments:
Derivative iNSrUMENES . ... ..ottt
Investments available forsale ... o o
Net unrealized gain recognized in other comprehensive income ................... ... ...

Comprehensive INCOME .. .. .ot e ettt e e et e e

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2002 2001 2000
341,985 § 116821 5 (30242)
- (6736) -
- (3.215) -
(88,048) (47,650) -
182,498 65,650 93,841
- (16948) -
33,306 19611 (78.570)
61,144 15337 17241
403,129 5 12207 5 142,169
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NoTE 27 - PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Condensed financial information for Sovereign Bancorp is as follows (in thousands):

BALANCE SHEETS AT DECEMBER 31,
2002 2004

Assets
Cash and due from Danks .. ..o o 27,601 $ 51,080
Available for sale INVesStMENT SECUIILIES . . .. .. . e 5,879 2,005
Investment in subsidiaries:

Bank subSidiary . ... .o 4,129,467 3,642,987

Non-bank sUBSIQIATIES . . . ...t e 143,423 159,068
OUhEE @SSBS .« . e e e et e e e e e 70,443 90,740
Al SRS v\ vt ettt ettt e e 4376,813 $ 3,945,880
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Borrowings:

Long-term debt ... 1,074,368 $ 1,169,831

Borrowings from non-bank subsidiaries .. ... L 508,999 505,105
Other [abIlItIEs . . ... 28,9128 68,463
Total TABILES . . .. oo e 1,612,495 1,743,399
Stockholders’ EQUItY .. ... 2,764,318 2,202,481
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity . ... ... 4,376,813 $  3,945.880
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2002 2001 2000

Dividends from:

Bank subsidiany .. ... oo $ 210,000 $ 130,000 $ 100,000

Non-bank subsidiaries . ...... ... - - 16,828
O St INCOMIE . . ottt et e e e 1,610 3,053 35016
OtherinCOmME . . . oot e e 4é - (2,388)
TOMAI INCOME . - . e ettt et ettt e e et e e e e e 211,656 133,053 149,456
INEEFEST EXPENSE « . ettt et et et e e e e 144,821 156,540 180,76!
OhEr BXPENSE . . . o e ettt ettt et et e e 6,228 6,360 8,317
TOtAl BXPENSE . . . et e 151,049 162,900 189,078
Income/{loss) before income taxes and equity in earnings of

subsidiaries and extraordinary tem ... 60,607 (29.847) (39.622)
Income tax bENefit . ... .. o e e (62,725) (59,234 (58,450)
Income/ (loss) before equity in earnings of subsidiaries

and extraordinary feM ... ... s 123,332 29,387 18,828
Extraordinary item (net of tax of $3,526) . ... ... ... - 6,549 -
Income/{loss) before equity in earnings of subsidiaries . ............... ..o 123,332 22,838 18,828
Equity in undistributed earnings/(loss) of:

Bank sUbSIdiary ... 217,735 96,104 (45.504)

Non-bank subSIdIMES . . ... ..ot e 918 (2,121) (3,566)
NETINCOME/(I0SS) + .+ e et ettt et e e e $ 341,985 $ 116,821 $ (30,242
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NoTe 27 - PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2002 200! 2000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

NETINCOME/(0SS) - ..ot $ 341,985 $ 116,821 $ (30,242)
Adjustments to reconcile net income/{loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Undistributed (earnings)/loss of:

Bank subsidiary ... ..o (217,7135) (96,104) 45,504

Non-bank subsidiaries ........ ... ... .. (918) 2,121 3,566
Loss on retirement of fong-termdebt . ... . - 10,075 -
SEOCK OPLON EXPENSE . .« .ottt et ettt e 10,392 - -
Restricted stock allocation . . ... i 2,044 - -
Allocation of Employee Stock Ownership Plan ... 1,864 - -
OREr, ML . e e e 11,482 (8.728) 6,610
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities .............. ... i 149,114 24,185 25,438

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Net capital contributed to subsidiaries . ............ oo i (45,577) (21,088) (563,275)
Investment securities:

Maturity and FEPAYMENLS .. ..ottt ettt et e e - (930) 765,458

Net purchase and Sales .. ... .o .ot (3,857) - (797}
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities .. ... oo (49,434) {22018) 201,386
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net change in borrowings:

Repayment of long-termdebt ......... ... ... o (125,000) (715,000 (227,742

Net proceeds received from fong-termdebt .......... ... o - 525,000 -

Net change in borrowings from non-bank subsidiaries ............... ... 3,894 109,808 18,365
Sale (aCqUISIION) OF trEASUNY STOCK . . .o\ v vt ettt et et 800 85 (194)
Acquisition of Restricted Stock . ... o - (3,083) -
Cash dividends paid to stockholders . ..... .. ..o (26,058) (24.790) (22,499
Termination of ESOP ... 1,748 - -
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock ... 15,437 156,893 5,244
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities .. ................. ... (123,i59) 48913 (226,826)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents . ......... .. ... i (23,479) 51,080 (2)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ........... ... ... o 51,080 - 2
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period .. ... $ 27,601 $ 51,080 $ -
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NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NoTtEe 28 - BusiNESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

During 2002, the Company established the following reportable segments: the Consumer Bank, the Corporate Bank and
Treasury & Other. The Consumer Bank and Corporate Bank are organized principally around the customers served by
Sovereign. The Consumer Bank provides a wide range of products and services to consumers including mortgage,
automobile and other consumer loans and lines of credits. The Consumer Bank also attracts deposits within its primary market
area by offering a variety of deposit instruments, including demand and NOW accounts, meney market and savings accounts,
certificates of deposit and retirement savings plans. The Corporate Bank originates small business and middle market
commercial and asset-based loans and provides cash management and capital markets services to customers in Sovereign’s
market area. Treasury & Other includes interest expense on Sovereign’s borrowings and debt, earnings from the investment
portfolio, trust preferred securities and minority interest expense, amortization of intangible assets, merger-related and
restructuring charges and certain unallocated corporate income and expenses. The assets that have not been allocated to
the Consumer and Corporate Bank, and are included in Treasury & Other, are certain cash and cash equivalents,
investments, goodwill and other intangible assets, bank owned life insurance and certain other assets. Although goodwill and
certain other intangible assets are not allocated to all of the segments for management reporting purposes, these assets are
considered by the Company for purposes of assessing impairment of its goodwill in reporting units under SFAS No. 142.
Goodwill was allocated based upon the relative fair values of the reporting units.

The leaders of the Consumer Bank, Corporate Bank and Treasury & Other business lines report directly to the Chief
Executive Officer. The accumulation and aggregation of segment information is based on this reporting structure. The Chief
Executive Officer evaluates the segments based on income before taxes which is derived from the Company's business unit
profitability reporting system by specifically attributing managed balance sheet assets, deposits and other liabilities and their
related interest income or expense. Funds transfer pricing methodologies are utilized to allocate a cost for funds used or a
credit for funds provided to business line deposits, loans and selected other assets using a matched funding concept. The
provision for credit losses recorded by each operating segment is primarily based on the net charge-offs of each line of
business. The difference between the provision for credit losses recognized by the Company on a consclidated basis and the
provision recorded by the business lines at the time of charge-off is included in Treasury & Other. Other income and
expenses directly managed by each business line, including fees, service charges, salaries and benefits, and other direct
expenses as well as certain allocated corporate expenses are accounted for within each segment’s financial results. During
2002, certain organization and allocation methodology changes were made which enhanced the Company’s management
reporting systems and the information provided. In addition, designations, assignments and allocations may continue to
change from time to time as management accounting systems are further enhanced or product lines change. Where practical,
the results are adjusted to present consistent methodologies for the segments. Segment accounting policies for the lines of
business are the same as those used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements with respect to activities
specifically attributable to each business line. However, the preparation of business line results requires management to
establish methodologies to allocate funding costs and benefits, expenses and other financial elements to each line of business.

The following table present certain information regarding the Company's segments (in thousands):

DECEMBER 31,2002

CONSUMER  CORPORATE TREASURY

BANK BANK & OTHER® TCTAL
Net interestiNCOME . . ... oot e $ 904344 $ 25932 $ (4050) $ 1159616
Provision for [0an 10SSES . ... ..o v vt 45,864 80,433 20,203 146,500
Fees and otherincome™ ... ... .. 245,601 69,675 65,819 381,095
General and administrative eXpenses . ... .......oueuiii e 650,176 130,966 38,965 820,107
Depreciation/Amortization . . ... 34,467 914 94 441 129.822 *
Income (Loss) beforeincometaxes ........... ... o 453,905 117,598 (104,548) 466,555
Intersegment revenues (expenses) ... .. i 514,977 (299.594) (215,383) -
AVEFAgE ASSETS ...ttt $ 13186318 $ 9,986,320 $ 14588615 $ 37761253

]



DECEMBER 31,2001

CONSUMER  CORPORATE TREASURY

BANK BANK & OTHER® TOTAL
Net INtereStinCOME . .. ... ..o $ 900722 $ 223810 $ (70,250 $ 1054282
Provision for10an10sses .. ... ... e 45,752 43,037 8311 97,100
Feesand otherincome™ ... ... ... .. .. oo 234723 67,730 96,439 398,892
General and administrative @Xpenses ..............iiiiiieiii 646,242 102,768 28,275 777,285
Depreciation/ AmOrtization .. ... .....o it e 32,720 890 143,090 176,700
Income (Loss) before income taxes and extraordinaryitem . .................. 443,451 145,735 (439,241) 149,945
Intersegment revenues (EXpense) ® ... ... ... 585,872 (367,892) (217,980} -
Average ASSEIS ... .. $ 13767362 $ 8393104 $ 12313804 $ 34474270

(1) Commercial Banking fees in the accompanying Consoliated Statements of Operations include fees on commercial deposits. For segment reporting purposes, these fees are included in the Consumer Bank results
above.

(2) Intersegment revenues (expense) represent charges or credits for funds used or provided by each of the segments and are included in net interest income (expense).

(3) Included in Treasury & Other in 2002 are charges for an additional loan loss provision for Main Street of $6 million, as well as merger related expense of $15.9 million. included in Treasury and Other in
2001 are merger related and restructuring expenses of $8.5 miflion and $243.2 million of expense associated with non-sclicitation payments related to the SBNE transaction (see Note 3 to the Consolidated

Financiat Statements).

NoTE 29 — MERGER RELATED AND RESTRUCTURING ITEMS

Following is a summary of amounts charged to earnings related to restructuring activity (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000
Merger related restructuring and OThEr ltEMS . ...\ vu it $ 15,871 $ 8,500 $ 18,500
Total $ 15,871 $ 8,500 $ 18,500

In 2002, Sovereign recorded charges related to the Main Street Acquisition of $21.9 million. Of this amount, $11.3 million
related to branch and office consolidations, $3.5 million related to system conversions and $1.0 million for community
grants. These charges were expensed and are included within “Merger related and restructuring charges” in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. In addition, a loan loss provision of $6.0 million was recorded to conform Main
Street’s allowance for loan losses to Sovereign's reserve policies. This charge was expensed through “Provision for loan
losses” on the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Also in 2000, the Company initiated a restructuring to analyze front and back office operations and computer operating
platforms and eliminated approximately 500 positions. In total, Sovereign recorded $27 million in restructuring costs,

$8.5 million of which was recorded in 2001 related to the closure of 14 "in-store" offices and a redirection of e-commerce
efforts, and $18.5 million recorded during 2000 which was comprised of $14 million of severance and outplacement costs,
and a $4.5 million write-off of a redundant computer-operating platform. These charges were expensed within “Merger
related and restructuring charges” of the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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NoTe 29 — MERGER RELATED AND RESTRUCTURING !TEMS (CONTINUED)

Restructuring Activity

The status of restructuring activities is summarized as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000
Charge recorded N €aIMINGS . ... o\ttt e $ 15,871 $ 8,500 $ 18,500

Amount provided in purchase accounting
200 7,838 - -

2000 (10537) (1281) (1,855
000 e - 2017) (11,019

Non-cashcharge .. ... ..o - (5,000) (4,500

Changes in estimates
2002 e - - -

Reserve Balance at December 31, 2002 ... o $ 13,172 $ 202 $ 109

NoTE 30 — SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In March 2003, Sovereign completed a tender offer for its outstanding 8.625% Senior Notes due March 2004 ("8.625%
Notes") and its outstanding 10.25% Senior Notes due May 2004 ("10.25% Notes"). This offer, was priced at $1,062.50 for
each $1,000 principal amount of the 8.625% Notes and $1,091.25 for each $1,000 principal amount of the 10.25% Notes.
As of the close of the tender offer on March 4, 2003, $139.2 million of the 8.625% Notes and $162.4 million of the 10.25%
Notes had been tendered and not withdrawn. In accordance with the terms of the tender offer, Sovereign has accepted for
payment all 8.625% and 10.25% Notes that have been validly tendered prior to the expiration of the tender offer. The
Company will record a debt extinguishment loss on this transaction in the first quarter of 2003.

In March 2003, Sovereign Bank completed the issuance of $500 million of subordinated notes. The notes will have a coupon
of 5.165% and will mature as of March |5, 2013. The subordinated debt qualifies as Tier 2 regulatory capital for Sovereign
Bank and Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
Not applicable.

PART 11

Item 0. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The information relating to executive officers of Sovereign is included under ltem 4A in Part | hereof. The information
required by this item relating to directors of Sovereign is incorporated herein by reference to: (i) that portion of the section
captioned “Election of Directors” located in the definitive Proxy Statement to be used in connection with Sovereign's 2003
Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “Proxy Statement”). The information required by this item relating to compliance with
Section 6(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned “Section
16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Proxy Statement.

Item I |.Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to (i) the sections captioned “Compensation Paid
to Directors” through “Indemnification” in the Proxy Statement and (i) the section captioned “Performance Graph” in the
Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.
The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to that portion of the section captioned “Election
of Directors” in the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.
The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Indebtedness of
Management” and “Other” in the Proxy Statement.

Item [4. Controls and Procedures.

As of December 31, 2002, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and the participation of the Company’s
management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15. Based on that evaluation, the
Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of the date the Company completed its evaluation. There have been no significant changes in
the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date the
Company completed its evaluation.

PART IV
Item |5. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K.

(A) l.Financial Statements.
The following financial statements are filed as part of this report:

» Consolidated Balance Sheets

+ Consolidated Statements of Operations

> Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
» Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

* Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules.
Financial statement schedules are omitted because the required information is either not applicable, not required or is
shown in the respective financial statements or in the notes thereto.
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3. Exhibits.
(3.1) Articles of Incorporation, as amended and restated, of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Sovereign’s Registration Statement No. 333-86961-01 on Form S-3.)

(3.2) By-Laws of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc., as amended and restated as of August 14, 2002. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Sovereign’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, SEC File No. 00116581, for the quarter
ended September 30, 2002.)

(4.1) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. has certain long-term debt outstanding. None of the instruments evidencing such
debt authorizes an amount of securities in excess of 10% of the total assets of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis; therefore, copies of such instruments are not included as exhibits to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. agrees to furnish copies to the Commission on request.

(10.1) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. Stock Option Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.] to Sovereign’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K, SEC File No. 0-16533, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1994.)

(10.2) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Sovereign’s Registration Statement No. 33-44/08 on Form S-8.)

(10.3) Employment Agreement, dated as of March |, 1997, between Sovereign Bancorp, inc., Sovereign Bank, and
Jay S. Sidhu. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Sovereign’s Amended Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q/A, SEC File No. 0-16533, for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 1997.)

(10.4) Employment Agreement, dated as of May |, 1997, between ML Bancorp, Inc. (a predecessor company of
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.) and Dennis . Marlo. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Sovereign’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K, SEC file No. 0-16533, for fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.)

(10.5) Employment Agreement, dated as of September 25, 1997, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and Lawrence
M. Thompson, jr. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Sovereign’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, SEC File
No. 0-16533, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997.)

(10.6) Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, (the “Rights Agreement”), dated as of june 21, 2001, between
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and Mellon Investor Services LLC (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the
Registrant’s 8-K/A No. 2 filed July 3, 2001).

(10.7) Form of Rights Certificate (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit B to the Rights Agreement).
Pursuant to the Rights Agreement, Rights will not be distributed until after the Distribution Date (as defined in the
Rights Agreement).

(10.8) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. Non-Employee Directors Services Compensation Plan. (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.7 to Sovereign’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, SEC File No. 0-16533, for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2000.)

(10.9) 1993 Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. Stock Option Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Sovereign’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K, SEC File No. 0-16533, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992.)

(10.10) Indemnification Agreement, dated December 21, 1993, between Sovereign Bank and Jay S. Sidhu.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Sovereign’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, SEC File No. 0-16533, for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1993))

(10.11) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. 1997 Non-Employee Director’s Stock Option Plan. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit “A” to Sovereign's definitive proxy statement, SEC File No. 0-16533, dated March 15, 1996.)
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(10.12) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Sovereign's
Registration Statement No. 33-89586 on Form S-8.)

(10.13) Amendment #1 to Employment Agreement, dated February 26, 2003, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and
John Hamill (filed herewith) and Employment Agreement dated January 7, 2000, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.
and John Hamill. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Sovereign's Annual Report on Form 10-K/A, SEC
File No. 0-16533, for fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.)

(10.14) Employment Agreement, dated as of January 30, 2003, between Sovereign Bancorp, inc. and Joseph P. Campanelli.

(10.15) Employment Agreement dated as of June |, 2001, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and James D. Hogan.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Sovereign’s Annual Report on Form 0-K, SEC File No. 0-16533, for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.)

(10.16) Employment Agreement by and between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and James J. Lynch dated September {6,
2002. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Sovereign’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, SEC File No.
001-16581, for the quarter ended September 30, 2002.)

(10.17) 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit “b” to Sovereign’s proxy statement, SEC
File No. 0-16533, dated March 26, 2001)

(10.18) Non-Employee Directors Stock Bonus Program
(10.19) Senior Officers Stock Bonus Program

(21} Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

(23.1) Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

{99.1) Chief Executive Officer certification pursuant to |8 U.5.C Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(99.2) Chief Financial Officer certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

{B) Reports On Form 8-k

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SOVEREIGN BANCORP, INC.
(Registrant)

March 12, 2003
By: /sl Jay S. Sidhu

Jay S. Sidhu, Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following

persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

Is! P, Michaefl Ehlerman
P. Michael Ehlerman

Isl Brian Hard
Brian Hard

/s! Andrew C. Hove, jr.
Andrew C. Hove, Jr.

Is] Daniel K. Rothermel
Daniel K. Rothermel

Isf Jay S. Sidhu
Jay S. Sidhu

Isl Cameron C.Troilo, Sr.

Cameron C. Troilo, Sr.

Isl James D. Hogan

James D. Hogan

Is] Lawrence E. McAlee, Jr.

Lawrence E. McAlee, Jr.
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Director

Director

Director

Director

Director, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Chairman of Board of Directors

(Principal Executive Officer)

Director

Chief Financial Officer

and Executive Vice President

Chief Accounting Officer
and Senior Vice President

Date
March 12, 2003

March 12, 2003

March 12, 2003

March 12, 2003

March 12, 2003

March 12, 2003

March 12, 2003

March 12, 2003




CERTIFICATIONS

I, Jay S. Sidhu, Chief Executive Officer of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc., certify that:
I. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Sovereign Bancorp, inc,;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this annual report was being prepared;

{b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures of a date within 90 days prior to
the filing date of this annual report the (“Evaluation Date"); and

(c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

(a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s ability
to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were significant
changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our
most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 12, 2003

Is/ Jay S. Sidhu
Jay S. Sidhu

Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATIONS
[, James D. Hogan, Chief Financial Officer of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc., certify that:
|1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the pericd covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules [3a-14 and {5d-14) for the registrant and we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
annual report was being prepared;

(b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures of a date within 90 days prior to the
filing date of this annual report the “Evaluation Date”); and

(c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based
on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

(a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any
material weaknesses in internal controls; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and | have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were significant
changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our
most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 12, 2003

Is/ jJames D. Hogan

James D. Hogan

Chief Financial Officer
and Executive Vice President
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

1500 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103
(215) 557-4630
Sovereignbank.com

WESB SITE AcCESS TO UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION FILINGS

All reports filed electronically by Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC),
including the annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current event reports on Form 8-K, as well
as any amendments to those reports, are accessible at no cost on the Corporation’s Web site at www.Sovereignbank.com.

These filings are also accessible on the SEC’s Web site at www.sec.gov.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.’s corporate governance practices are described in the following documents, which are available free
of charge on the Corporation’s Web site: Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Conduct and Ethics, Code of Ethics
for CEO and Senior Financial Officers, Policy on Personal Securities Transactions, Audit Committee Charter, Compensation
Committee Charter, Ethics and Corporate Governance Committee Charter, and Nominating Committee Charter.

WAIVERS CF PROVISIONS OF CODE OF CONDUCT

There were no waivers of the provisions of Sovereign’s Code of Conduct and Ethics or Sovereign's Code of
Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers for any Sovereign director, senior financial officer or
any other executive officer in 2002 or through the date of this filing. Information regarding any waivers of the provisions of
Sovereign’s Code of Conduct and Ethics and Sovereign's Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial
Officers for any director, senior financial officer, or executive officer of Sovereign will be disclosed on Sovereign’s web site
under Investor Relations at www. sovereignbank.com

Sovereign Bancorp |
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Joseph P. Campanelli
Vice Chairman

Larry K. Davis, CPA
Controller

john M. Arnold
Chairman,
Petroleum Products Corp.

P. Michael Ehlerman
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer,
Yuasa Battery, Inc.

Albert L. Evans, jr.
President and

Chief Executive Officer,
Evans Delivery Co., Inc.
Brian Hard
President,

Penske Truck Leasing

Andrew C. Hove, Jr.
Former Vice Chairman
and Chairman, Federal
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} Richard E. Mohn

OFFICERS AND BOARDS OF DIRECTORS

SOVEREIGN BANCORP, INC., BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Andrew C. Hove, Jr.
Former Vice Chairman and
Chairman, Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation

Daniel K. Rothermel
President
Cumru Associates, Inc.

SOVEREIGN BANCORP, INC.,OFFICERS

James D. Hogan, CPA
Chief Financial Officer

Dennis S. Marlo, CPA
Chief Risk Management Officer
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CPA
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fe are deeply appreciative of the astute

¥ leadership and unwavering commitment
that Richard Mohn provided Sovereign Bancorp
and Sovereign Bank during his tenure as Chairman
of the Board and as a member of the Board of
Directors. Sovereign’s team members salute you
and wish you the best of luck in your retirement.

Jay S. Sidhu

Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer,
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and
Sovereign Bank

Cameron C.Troilo, Sn
President, Cameron C. Troilo, Inc.

David A. Silverman, Esq.
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary

Lawrence M. Thompson, jr,
Esqg.

Vice Chairman and
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Robert A. Sadler
Retired President,
CadmusMack

Jay 8. Sidhu

Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer,
Sovereign Bank and
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.

Cameron C.Troilo, Sr.
President,
Cameron C. Troilo, Inc.




Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.
1500 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19102

Sovereign Bank
| 130 Berkshire Boulevard
Wyomissing, PA 19610

610-320-8400
215-557-4630
Fax: 610-320-8448

P.O. Box 12646
Reading, PA 19612

www.sovereignbank.com
General inquiries -
info@esovbank.com

Investor related inquiries -
investor@sovereignbank.com

Sovereign’s Common Stock is traded
and listed on the New York Stock
Exchange (“NYSE") under the symbol
“SOV”. Sovereign's Trust Preferred
Income Equity Redeemable Securities,
PIERS Units, are traded on the NYSE
under the symbo! “SOVPR”, and
Sovereign Trust Preferred Securities are
traded on the NYSE under the symbol
“SOVPRA".

Options on Sovereign Common Stock
are traded on the American Stock
(AMEX), Chicago Board Options
(VIX), Philadelphia Stock (PHLX) and
Pacific (PCX).

Sovereign Common Stock high, low
and closing prices are reported in most
major newspapers as “Sovrgn Bcorp”,
“Sovereign” or “SovBcp.”

2N

KRN (0wt

Ernst & Young LLP

Two Commerce Square, Suite 4000
200! Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103

Copies of the Annual Report,
[0-K, interim reports, press
releases and other communications
sent to shareholders are available
at no charge by contacting:
www.sovereignbank.com
investor@sovereignbank.com
Veice mail: 800-628-2673

Stevens & Lee
Philadelphia and Reading, PA

Cash dividends on common stock and
PIERS Units are customarily paid on a
quarterly basis on or about the |5th of
February, May, August and November.
Sovereign Trust Preferred Capital
Securities dividends are customarily
paid on a quarterly basis on or about
3/31,6/30,9/30, and 12/31.

Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. maintains a
Dividend Reinvestment and Stock
Purchase Plan for its shareholders of
record of Common Stock. This plan
provides a convenient method of
investing cash dividends and voluntary
cash payments in additional shares of
Sovereign's Common Stock without
payment of brokerage commissions or
service charges. For a copy of the
Prospectus and enroliment card, please
contact Mellon Investor Services at
800-685-4524,

Investors, brokers, security analysts
and others desiring financial information
should contact:

James D. Hogan, CPA
Chief Financial Officer,
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.
610-320-8496
Jhogan@sovereignbank.com

Mark R. McCollom, CPA
Chief Financial Officer,
Sovereign Bank

610-208-6426
Mmccollo@sovereignbank.com

Tye M. Barnhart

Senior Vice President,
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.
investor Relations and
Corporate Development
610-988-0300
Tbarnhar@sovereignbank.com

Shareholiders who wish to change

the name, address or ownership

of stock, report lost stock certificates,
or consolidate stock accounts should
contact:

Melion investor Services

One Mellon Bank Center

500 Grant Street, Room 2122
Pittsburgh, PA 15258
800-685-4524

The Bank of New York
[0l Barclay Street - 8W
New York, NY 10286
212-815-2498
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